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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “"Company”) and all of
its subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group” or “we"”), | present the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2024 to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)"”).

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND
ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2024, domestic GDP reached 134.91 trillion, representing an
increase of 5.0%. The domestic economy has maintained the
momentum of recovery, which has been faster than that of most
major economies. In 2022 and 2023, after a series of breakthroughs
of 120 trillion, China’s economic growth has leapt to a new level.

According to public data released by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China (“NDRC"),
National Bureau of Statistics of China, etc., the output of natural
gas in 2024 was approximately 246.45 billion m3, increased by 6.0%
as compared to that of last year; the import of natural gas was
130 million tons, increased by 9.9% year-on-year, and the apparent
consumption of natural gas was 426.05 billion m?, increased by
8.0% year-on-year. In 2024, China’s Liquefied Petroleum Gas
(“LPG") production was 54.18 million tons, representing a year-on-
year increase of 4.7%,; the total retail sales of social consumer goods
were approximately RMB48.79 trillion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 3.5%.

With the joint efforts of the management and all employees, the
Group recorded the piped gas sales of 410.79 million m? for the
Year, representing a decrease of 1.81% as compared to last year;
the cylinder gas sales of 105,219 tons for the Year, representing an
increase of 9.23% as compared to the corresponding period last
year.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND
ANNUAL RESULTS (Continued)

The revenue was increased for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the revenue of the Group was approximately RMB2,635 million
(2023: RMB2,514 million) and the earnings for the Year was
approximately RMB59 million (2023: loss of RMB227 million) mainly
due to the share of loss of joint ventures of approximately RMB243
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Basic earnings per
share was RMBO0.17 cents (2023: basic loss per share RMB2.59
cents). The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was
11.50% (2023: 12.44%), representing a decrease of 0.94 percentage
points as compared with 2023.

FINANCIAL POSITION

By ensuring the stability of the financial position, the Group carefully
utilises fund for reasonable investment and seizes the opportunity
of business development. As at 31 December 2024, the debt-to-
capitalisation ratio of the Group, representing the ratio of total
borrowings to total borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, was 3.39% (2023: 3.17%).

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
INDUSTRY

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

Proactively and securely promoting peak carbon dioxide emissions
and carbon neutrality and implementing dual control of energy
consumption are the important institutional arrangements for China
to accelerate the construction of ecological civilization and promote
high-quality development. To accelerate the construction of a dual-
control system for carbon emissions, China is adapting to the new
situation of economic and social development, taking the decrease
in energy intensity as a binding indicator, and promoting the shift to
dual-control for carbon emissions. The Group forged ahead with high
quality development in the natural gas industry, so as to safeguard
the safety, efficiency and continuity of gas users. As supported by
multiple dividend policies, such as energy reform and development
planning under the “dual carbon” target in the future, the Group's
strategic development goal in the natural gas industry will be
continuously strengthened in the future. The Group will also continue
to expand its market share in the natural gas industry, fully integrate
its development strategies and objectives such as low carbonisation
and clean energy to develop the piped gas industry in a healthier and
safer manner.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEEE

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Cylinder Gas Supply Business

Recently, China accelerates the development of a green and
low-carbon economy, improves the policies and standard systems
to support the green and low-carbon development, and creates
an ecology for the healthy development of green and low-
carbon industries. It improves the incentive mechanism for green
consumption and promotes the formation of green and low-carbon
production methods and lifestyles.

Driven by the favorable policy, the Group’s cylinder gas business
combines its nature of convenience and flexibility to complement
the Group’s pipeline gas market niche. It will also proactively help
expanding the market coverage of cylinder gas business in the future,
seize the "dual carbon” target and the market opportunity of energy
clean-up reform, expand the market scale, optimize the business
model of cylinder gas business, provide convenient and efficient
services to customers and enhance market competitiveness.

Gas Distribution Business

In 2024, the society-wide total energy consumption increased by
4.2% over the previous year. With the acceleration of the energy
transition to green and low-carbon, clean energy maintained
its growth trend, with natural gas increasing by 0.3 percentage
points. The Group has laid solid foundation for natural gas trading,
expanded into new markets for gas distribution, diversified gas
distribution business to strengthen its development base and ensure
steady growth in sales volume.

Food Ingredients Supply and FMCG Supply Business

With the effective implementation of various policies and measures
for expanding domestic demand and promoting consumption,
residents’ consumption confidence has been gradually recovered,
thus accelerating the release of consumption demand, as well as
giving rise of new changes and bright spots among the consumer
market. Through the management of professional third parties,
the FMCG supply and food ingredients supply business is capable
of providing customers with quality goods and diversified services,
making the food ingredients supply and FMCG supply business more
professional and brand-oriented.
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REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Looking forward, the Group will maintain its focus on the
development in the field of retail terminal, fully respond to national
policies, seize market opportunities, and tap the potential of various
customers’ needs while strengthening the development of natural
gas customer connection. The Group will fully leverage the Internet
technology to optimize piped gas transmission and distribution
business and cylinder gas supply business model, providing
customers with convenient and efficient services and enhancing
market competitiveness. Leveraging the professional management
capabilities of the third parties, the Group will foster the food
ingredients supply and FMCG supply business growth, aiming at
diversifying the Group’s revenue and creating higher returns for its
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the staunch
support of all Shareholders and the community over the Year.

Dr. Mo Shikang
Chairman

Beijing, 31 March 2025

Chairman’s Statement
FEERE

TELOBEERERE @

ERERE

RERK AEBHRBERKTERAERD
BERFIE RO RBEREE BNMSHE £
MEMRABPEEFAENRARRIZEEAPNE
K RLNAERERMELEEMRBEED
MBEXMAHEEGENEBEN REPRHE
REMORE BARTEHRF N -FNAE=ZH
BEXEERN HERMHBEBRBMNES XY
EEEERAZEL BRRAEE SRR -

-
c
]
£
]
2
©
il
*
:ﬂ
S
©
£
=
©
=
(9]

&
KABREAATESEH R MBR R &5 A
BB P B A0 % 3 BOA T

BEttE/EL
FRE

b3 - 202553 A31H

FREREMRAT
2024 F (B E2024F 12831 L EE)



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWMES N

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), under the
leadership of the directors and management of the Company, all of
our staff executed the development strategies of the Group seriously,
thus successfully achieving the business goals for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The revenue was increased for the Year, the revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB2,635 million (2023: RMB2,514 million) and
the profit for the Year was approximately RMB59 million (2023: loss
of RMB227 million) mainly due to share of loss of joint ventures
of approximately RMB243 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Basic earning per share was RMBO0.17 cents (2023: basic loss
per share RMB2.59 cents). The overall gross profit margin of the
Group for the Year was 11.50% (2023: 12.44%), representing a
decrease of 0.94 percentage points as compared with 2023.

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

The piped gas transmission and distribution business mainly
relies on the gas pipeline which were built by the Group to
transport flammable gas fuels to end-users. The Group's piped gas
transmission and distribution business is categorised into piped gas
connection and piped gas sales. Natural gas is the main gas supply
of the Group's piped gas transmission and distribution business. As
a clean energy, natural gas can help to improve the environmental
pollution problem and simultaneously it has the advantages of safety,
high unit heat value and low price. It has become an important
development direction of international clean energy.

Piped gas transmission and distribution business is one of the
Group’s main businesses and main source of income. During the
Year, revenue of approximately RMB1,093 million (2023: RMB1,169
million) was recorded from our provision of piped gas transmission
and distribution business, which accounted for approximately
41.47% (2023: 46.53%) of our total revenue. The overall gross profit
margin of piped gas transmission and distribution business for the
Year was approximately 11.99% (2023: 11.67%). During the Year,
the gross profit margin slightly increased due to the decrease in cost
of gas.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business (Continued)

Piped Gas Connection

During the Year, revenue from piped gas connection was
approximately RMB89 million (2023: RMB124 million). Revenue
from piped gas connection represented approximately 8.09%
(2023:10.60%) of the total revenue of the piped gas transmission
and distribution business. The gross profit margin of piped gas
connection fee for the Year was approximately 39.84% (2023:
50.85%). During the Year, the Group’s subsidiaries had an addition
of 21,157 units of residential household customers and 826 units of
commercial and industrial customers, respectively. At the end of the
Year, the Group had an accumulated number of connected residential
household customers and commercial and industrial customers of
588,061 units and 13,136 units respectively, representing a growth
of approximately 3.73% and 6.71% over that of 2023, respectively.
During the Year, the decrease in gross profit margin of the gas
connection business was mainly due to the decrease in price with
stable cost.

Sales of piped gas

During the Year, revenue from piped gas sales was approximately
RMB1,004 million (2023: RMB1,045 million). Revenue from piped gas
sales accounted for approximately 91.91% (2023: 89.40%) of the
total revenue from the piped gas business. The gross profit margin
of piped gas sales was 9.54% (2023: 7.02%). During the Year, the
Group's sales volume of piped gas from subsidiary companies was
410.79 million m3, among the total sales, 132.16 million m? (2023:
128.28 million m3) were sold to residential household customers;
278.63 million m? (2023: 290.07 million m3) were sold to commercial
and industrial customers. During the Year, piped gas sales volume
decreased slightly, the gross profit margin slightly increased mainly
due to the decrease in costs.

Cylinder Gas Supply Business

Cylinder gas supply business is another major business of the Group.
Currently, the Group’s cylinder gas supply business is mainly the sales
of liquefied natural gas (LNG), liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), and
liquefied dimethyl ether (DME). During the Year, while maintaining
established customers, we actively developed new users and
expanded the sales market.

THE RS

\

=)

RAFE TERTEREBRALHARKSIE
TT (20234 : ARH124B70) BEEMRIERE
I Ak B B R BE 2 75 42 A 498.09% (2023
F:10.60%) c TAFE MARERKENTERELY
39.84% (20234 :50.85% ) "R AFE  KNEE
MEBAR DRI EERERRBF21,157F #7118
BERIEERAF86F -MAFER KNEEH R
2D ERERMFS88,061F ' 2t ER LR
%M F13,136F  52023F 5 B 1 11 493.73% &
6.71% - AFE - MAEREBENETHREE
AR ER TREMAAET S -

o

EEM A E

RAEFE TEBRABEERADARK10.042
7T (2023 ARBE1045B L) EHEMANEE
WA EBIRREB LU AS1.91% (20234F -
89.40% ) - BB R IHE EF E499.54% (2023
F:7.02%) RAFE AEBABHRETEMR
HEBM,09B L K EF RAERAFPHE
BEEMRI13,2168 L 75 K (20234 1 12,8288 31
FK) RIAERFIHEEEEMRA27,8638
K (20234 : 29,0078 L 5 K) - AFE - B EMR
REHEEXEFERE R EANELEAZTEZAHMK
AT REETEL -

0

i 5 R SR IR PR SR S

BEERRBEEREZSAEENS - HEIRXE
BRAKRENEENRRETEE/BRIERAR
BIEAMRAM - FROBREES RAFE
MEEEBREEFNRK BHREENAF &
RHEMH -

FRERERALQA
2024 F R (B E2024F12A31B L FE)

<5
%R
a

5%
|
T
o




Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

BUS'N ESS RE\/l EW (Continued)

Cylinder Gas Supply Business (Continued)

During the year, the Group sold a total of 105,219 tons of cylinder
gas (2023: 96,332 tons), which contributed a total sales revenue
of approximately RMB678 million (2023: RMB656 million). During
the Year, revenue from cylinder gas supply business accounted for
approximately 25.72% (2023: 26.09%) of our total revenue. The
gross profit margin of cylinder gas supply business was approximately
23.07% (2023: 23.52%). During the Year, the Group actively
explored the market, resulting in increased sales volume as compared
with last year. Gross profit margin was basically similar as last year.

Gas Distribution Business

During the Year, the Group's gas distribution business sold a total
of 197,065 tons of gas (2023: 135,994 tons), which contributed
a total sales revenue of approximately RMB793 million (2023:
RMB586 million). During the Year, gas sales volume increased
significantly by approximately 44.91% and revenue increased by
approximately 35.45% as compared with 2023. During the Year,
the gas distribution business accounted for approximately 30.11%
(2023: 23.31%) of our total revenue. The gross profit margin of gas
distribution was approximately 0.54% (2023: 1.09%). During the
Year, the Group continued to develop and serve customers. However,
due to market conditions, sales prices declined, leading to a decrease
in the gross profit margin.

Food Ingredients Supply and Fast-moving Consumer Good
("FMCG") Business

The food ingredients supply business is mainly a service providing
to commercial consumers by supplying fruits and vegetables, fresh
produce, seasoning, dry foods and oil and other ingredients. In order
to realise profitability of the food ingredients supply and FMCG
business, the Group has successively entered into agreements with
third parties during 2024, under which the food ingredients supply
and FMCG business will be managed and operated by the third
parties, while the Group will receive either fixed monthly incomes or
revenues on a pro rata basis subject to the monthly turnovers.

During the Year, the food ingredients supply and FMCG business realised
revenue of approximately RMB71 million (2023: RMB103 million),
accounting for approximately 2.70% (2023: 4.07%) of the Group's
total revenue. The Group has been optimising the food ingredients
supply and FMCG business and improving its operating model. The
performance of segment has improved mainly based on the reversal
of impairment of right-of-use assets. Therefore, the segment of food
ingredients supply and FMCG business has recorded profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REV'EW (Continued)

Impairment Losses under the ECL Model, Net of Reversal

Impairment losses under the ECL model, net of reversal, amounted
to loss approximately RMB1,817,000 (2023: loss of RMB8,291,000),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB6,474,000 as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The reason
was mainly attributable to decrease in expected credit loss on other
receivables.

Other Gains and Losses, Net

Other gains and losses for the Year amounted to loss approximately
RMB119,872,000 (2023: RMB66,632,000), representing an increase
in loss of approximately RMB53,240,000 as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. It was mainly attributable to
increase in impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment of piped gas transmission and distribution business,
in order to write down the carrying amount to recoverable amounts.

Other Income

Other income for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB49,475,000 (2023: RMB42,620,000), represented an increase of
approximately RMB6,855,000 as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase was mainly due to increase in pipe
renovation income.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB4,245,000
(2023: RMB4,494,000), represented a decrease of approximately
RMB249,000 as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in interest on bank
borrowings.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB133,856,000 (2023: RMB141,604,000),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB7,748,000 as
compared with the corresponding period of last year, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB120,261,000 (2023: RMB115,198,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB5,063,000 as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, which was mainly attributable to
the increase in staff costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

B US'N ESS REV' EW (Continued)

Share of Results of Associates

Share of profit of associates for the Year was approximately
RMB27,066,000 (2023: RMB21,349,000), representing an increase of
approximately RMB5,717,000 as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
profits generated from the associates of the Company.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures

Share of profit of joint ventures for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB70,294,000 (2023: loss of RMB242,653,000).
The significant increase in profit was mainly due to the decrease
in impairment loss recognised on the carrying amount of our joint
venture in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets during the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to the
same period last year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB11,066,000 (2023: RMB24,947,000), represented a decrease
of approximately RMB13,881,000 year-on-year. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to an increase in credit of deferred tax in the
current year.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

There was no material acquisitions or disposals for the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the consolidated financial position of the
Group is as follows:

Currently, the sources of the operating and capital expenditure of the
Group are operating cash flow, internal current capital and banking
facility arrangements. The Group has sufficient funds to meet future
capital expenditures and operational needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Borrowing Structure

As at 31 December 2024, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB88,250,000 (2023: RMB81,775,000), which
comprised domestic bank borrowings denominated in RMB of the
project companies in China. Bank borrowings (in which interest
is calculated by reference to the Loan Prime Rate announced by
the People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points) are mainly
applied to gas pipelines construction, as general working capital
and for operating expenses. Apart from the borrowings of
approximately RMB51,800,000 (2023: RMB62,000,000) which were
secured by certain assets with carrying amount of approximately
RMB 145,049,000 (2023: RMB153,017,000), others were unsecured.
Short-term borrowings amounted to approximately RMB83,550,000
(2023: RMB81,600,000), while others were long-term borrowings
due after one year.

Capital Structure

The long-term capital of the Group comprised equity attributable to
owners and borrowings, which was confirmed by the sound debt-to-
capitalisation ratio.

Foreign Exchange risk

As all of the Group’s operations are in China and substantially all of
its revenue and expenses are denominated in Renminbi, there was no
significant foreign exchange risk in its operation. We currently do not
have foreign currency hedging policy but monitor the market trends
of exchange rates closely, and adopt appropriate measures when
necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities is set out in note 45 of the annual
results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Employees

For the year ended 31 December 2024, we had approximately 5,000
employees (including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures),
most of them were resided in Mainland China. The employees
salaries are determined from time to time with reference to their
duties and responsibilities, business performance of the Group and
profitability and market conditions. In addition to pension funds,
individual employees may be granted discretionary bonus and/or
share options as rewards for their outstanding performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

We adhere to pursue long-term sustainable development in
the communities in which our business and operations located.
We understand the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders (such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public) when making business decisions. We will continue to advance
in corporate governance, energy conservation, remuneration of
employees, general social welfare and etc.

Social Environment Protection

As a responsible clean energy business operator, we are committed
to the promotion and the use of clean energy in order to minimise
the environmental damage caused by energy demand for economic
development. Through the construction of urban-gas distribution
network, we encourage commercial and industrial customers and
residential households to replace high polluting coal and oil with
clean energy, and vigorously promote the Coal to Gas project. Coal-
fired boilers are replaced by natural gas boilers to reduce pollutant
emission.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

2024 marked the tenth year for the intensive implementing of the
energy security new strategy featuring “Four Reforms and One
Cooperation”. Since the new era, China has persisted in taking
the priority ecologically, green and low-carbon development path,
unswervingly implemented the energy security new strategy, and
promoted energy transition and development to new steps forward.
This firmly guaranteed the energy support for the high-quality
economic and social development, as well as effectively supporting
the construction of a beautiful China. Natural gas, with its nature in
safety, cleanness, and economical use in China’s energy structure, is
currently the main energy source for guaranteeing energy security.
With the development of policy support, technology innovation
and market-oriented reform, its strategic position will be further
strengthened, and will become the core hub of the construction of a
new energy system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

In the future, the Group will remain committed to the concept of
high-quality natural gas development and build a comprehensive
natural gas security system which is safer, more stable and more
efficient. It will put in place the decisions and deployments made by
the central government on its environmental policies, by proactive
response to favorable policies such as peak carbon dioxide emissions
and carbon neutrality. It will make full use of policies and the healthy
development environment of the gas industry, to expand its market
size and market share, while taking solid steps in developing its
own industry. Meanwhile, the Group will formulate corresponding
business risk response policies, and while enhancing the operating
productivity and cost efficiency, we will also remain cautious in
capital investment and maintain effective credit monitoring to
minimise the risk of default of customers.

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

In 2024, apart from proactive implementation of the energy security
new strategy featuring “Four Reforms and One Cooperation”, which
comprehensively promoted energy security and green low-carbon
transition, the Energy Law also proposed: “The country shall take
various measures to increase the exploration and development of
natural gas resources and enhance the domestic supply guarantee
capacity of natural gas.” The capacity to ensure energy security
has been strengthened; The energy consumption structure is
continuously optimised, while the proportion of non-fossil energy
consumption is steadily rising, thus significantly improving the
development level of green low-carbon energy.

The Group will take the full advantages of piped gas, so as to
maintain existing users, identify new users, actively expand value-
added business, and continue to promote the development of piped
gas business at a steady pace.

Cylinder Gas Supply Business

The energy market has entered a critical period of deepening reforms
as a whole. As one of the urban gas sources, the cylinder gas is
featured by cleanness, efficiency and flexibility and forms a strong
complement to the piped gas business of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Cylinder Gas Supply Business (Continued)

China’s energy transition, based on its high-quality development, will
accelerate the construction of a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient
new energy system, so as to provide a strong energy guarantee
for the economic and social development, and constantly meet the
growing needs of the people for a better life. Based on the basic
national conditions and development stage, China has grasped the
balance between new energy and traditional energy, and promoted
the energy transition while ensuring the reliable supply of energy.
We shall vigorously promote the clean and efficient use of fossil
energy, optimise the role of fossil energy support and modulation,
and accelerate the construction of a new energy supply system with
cleanness, safety and resilience.

The Group, in light of the characteristics of the cylinder gas industry
and the actual business needs, will continue to develop and improve
CVG gas management systems, to realise digital and information
management of cylinder gas business, to realise electronic filling,
distribution, information technology for reducing the operating costs
and improving distribution efficiency, and to improve the safety and
security capabilities of the cylinder gas business. Leveraging favorable
policies and development environment and prospect, the Group will
ensure safe operation and efficient transportation, so as to expand
the market share of areas with no established presences, and create
better economic performance.

Gas Distribution Business

In 2024, the society-wide total energy consumption increased by
4.2% over the previous year. With the acceleration of the energy
transition to green and low-carbon, clean energy maintained its
growth trend, with natural gas increasing by 0.3 percentage points.
In 2024, as the domestic macro-economic recovery continued to gain
traction aided, the natural gas market continued to recover and the
demand for natural gas increased rapidly. It undoubtedly provided
favorable opportunities for the gas distribution business. Amid this,
building on the established presence of gas distribution business, the
Group will seize the development opportunities of the gas industry
to further expand such business, with an aim to enhance the sales
volume and income from the business again.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Gas Distribution Business (Continued)

The construction of ecological civilisation in China has entered
a critical period, in which, carbon reduction is the key strategic
direction. The regulation and control of total energy consumption
and intensity have been improved, which is more focusing on the
dual control system of total carbon emission and intensity. The aim
of improving the national oil and gas security capability is to ensure
the stable and reliable supply of fuel gas. The Group will strengthen
the construction of gas distribution system, enhance the efficiency,
as well as strengthen the safety management in gas operation,
thus establishing a complete safety management system of safety
inspection, supervision, rectification and elimination of hidden perils,
so as to ensure the safe operation of the Group.

Food Ingredients Supply and FMCG Business

In respect of the food ingredients supply and FMCG business,
through all-round platformization management, intelligent
management, the Group greatly improved the efficiency of
distribution. The handover of the food ingredients supply and FMCG
business to third parties for their operations will facilitate the food
materials supply and FMCG business to explore new markets and
achieve mutual benefits. In terms of retail business, as the economy
of the society has fully restored to its normal operation, consumption
potential unleashed under the release of consumption policies. Thus,
the consumption has been recovering quickly. Upon the handover
of the food ingredients supply and FMCG business to third parties
for their operation and management, efficient processes will be
introduced for reducing the operating costs and improving the
profitability of the food ingredients supply and FMCG business.

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 31 March 2025

THE RS

= T L
A=EFEE w
M S LR ()

HEIER N ARREEA AR A ER AR
MBS ] SEEREROH A EMREF T &
B AR R E MR EEEGE - B&EREA R
RMRLZEREFEHENNE R BERROBEA
SHE - MBMRDHERER RESRE LR
ERRBEPNLEER BYUZERE BE-
BEUNRBHGRNTBL2ERER BRAE
BB

BN HENES XK

ERMHENESES A BBE2AMNAFEEL
ERAMEELER RARATRARE -BR
MHENESESERE KL% BEBHR
MEEMBSEKRARTME EREMER-
ERMHERESES A BECELE2EIR
EREET REBREZHE N BEBE

TEREN RIS HEBNRESR BMBEERES
EBERF - FEEERR BoARRRE
BIEEEKAN BRARMBERESEBHNAT
Ko

BRAELE

BEFHEERPITEE

b3 > 202553 A31H

FPRERERDF
2024 F R (B E2024F12A31B L FE)

15

<
3
fa)
=

EEEHNRR DN




Biography of Directors

EECRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo"), aged 67, is the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, he joined our Company since 30
April 2004. Dr. Mo is currently the chairman of our Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
chairman of the board of bt A EM R AR 2 Al Beijing Civigas
Co., Ltd.* ("Beijing Civigas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Group and acts as director posts in certain principal subsidiaries
of our Group. Dr. Mo holds a Bachelor degree in Sciences from
Tianjin Normal University, a Master degree in Economics from
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics and a PhD degree
in Economics from Nankai University in the PRC. Dr. Mo has
substantial experiences in the development and management of
natural gas projects in the PRC. Dr. Mo currently holds shares of
our Company, details of which was disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under this annual report. Dr. Mo is the father of Miss Mo
Yunbi, an executive Director.

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (“"Mr. Zhang”), aged 71, is the deputy
chairman of the Board and an executive Director since 21 March
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Zhang holds a MBA degree from the La Trobe
University in Australia. In late 1980s, Mr. Zhang joined the initial
financial securities industry in the PRC, he has been engaged as
senior management for provision of services relating to securities
and financial investment; securities brokerages; investment
banking; financial research and analysis for Wanguo Holdings
Limited, Guotai Securities Company Limited and Guotai Junan
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Zhang has extensive experiences
in financial and capital markets. Mr. Zhang currently holds shares
of our Company, details of which was disclosed in the Report of
the Directors under this annual report.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXEC UTl\/E DlRECTO RS (Continued)

Mr. Fan Fangyi ("Mr. Fan”), aged 48, is an executive Director
and the managing Director, he joined our Group since December
2003 and then was appointed an executive Director and the
managing Director by the Board on 1 September 2015. He is
currently a director of Beijing Civigas, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company, and also acts as a director in certain principal
subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Fan has over 10 years of experiences
in the management of our Group and is familiar with the scope
of our Group's operation in all aspects. Mr. Fan holds a Degree
in Economics from the Renmin University of China, JA{2EL % &
#% (Legal Professional Qualification*) from the Ministry Justice of
the PRC, and registered as a non-practising member of the Beijing
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fan has worked
in Grant Thornton (Beijing) Certified Public Accountants and
responsible for auditing. Thereafter, he has engaged by iR B[R
(¥20%) B A7 (Wah Ying International (Holdings) Limited*) and
was in charge of various investment business projects. Mr. Fan has
extensive experiences in investment banking sector, auditing and
merger and corporate acquisition.

Miss Mo Yunbi (“Miss Mo"), aged 35, is an executive Director,
Miss Mo joined our Company since 13 January 2015. Miss Mo is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of our Group and in charge
of the development of our Group’s food ingredients supply and
fast-moving consumer goods supply business. Miss Mo has been
engaged as a food and safety analyst in a private entity in the PRC.
Miss Mo graduated in the University of Bedfordshire, the United
Kingdom, with a Bachelor degree of Business Administration with
First Class Honours. Afterward, she has awarded a Master of
Science in Agricultural Economics with Distinction and a PhD degree
from the University of Reading, the United Kingdom. Miss Mo holds
shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in the Report
of the Directors under this annual report. Miss Mo is the daughter
of Dr. Mo, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the
substantial Shareholder.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biography of Directors
ERECZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Li Fun Replen (“Ms. Li"), aged 52, is an executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2021, she is current the company secretary
and an authorized representative of our Company, director and
secretaries of certain subsidiaries of our Group, she has joined our
Company since 30 November 2006. Before joining our Company,
Ms. Li has been engaged under company secretarial departments
in certain sizable companies listed in the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Ms. Li has
over 20 years’ experiences in charge of company secretarial duties
in listed companies. She is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an associate of both The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom. She holds a Bachelor degree
in Business Administration in United Kingdom, a Postgraduate
Diploma in Corporate Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Master of Laws in Chinese and
Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Junmin (“Dr. Liu"), aged 75, is an independent non-
executive Director, he joined our Company on 11 April 2005. Dr. Liu
is currently a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Dr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree, a
Master degree and a PhD degree in Economics from the Nankai
University in China. He currently acts as a professor of the Virtual
Economics and Management Research Center of Nankai University,
China. Dr. Liu is an independent non-executive director and a
member of nomination committee of China Literature Limited (stock
code: 00772, shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange) and an independent non-executive Director of the
fifth session of the Board of CHINA BOHAI BANK CO., LTD. (“CBHB")
and the chairperson of the nomination and remuneration committee
of the board of CBHB (stock code: 09668, shares of CBHB are listed
on the GEM board of the Stock Exchange) with effect on 6 January,
2025. Dr. Liu has awarded the 8th Sun Yefang Economics Prize and
E-ERESRAXHEREMTESLRE (The 3rd China High
School Humanity Social Science Research Excellent Award*). Dr. Liu
has acted as lecturer of Tianjin University of Finance and Economics,
professor and associate professor of the Faculty of Economics, Nankai
University, China.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Prof. Zhao Yanyun (“Prof. Zhao"), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 July 2013. Prof. Zhao is a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Prof. Zhao currently is a professor
and a doctoral tutor of Faculty of Statistics, as well as an officer,
a professor and a doctoral tutor of the China Research Center for
Competitiveness and Evaluation in the Renmin University of China. Prof.
Zhao also acts as part-time tutor in certain universities in China including
Zhejiang Gongshang University; Hebei University of Engineering and
Shanxi University of Finance and Economics. Prof. Zhao is currently
a consultant of FEIFFTE @ (Statistical Society of China*) and a
consultant of A2 A5 2 € (Statistical Education Society of
China*). Prof. Zhao has awarded a winner of B %57 43 5k & B 2= R U
7 8f (the Government of the State Council Special Contribution Expert
Government Allowance*), R BIZ B &t 4 A4 (Century Talent of
Ministry of Education of China*), FEIBEIR A EZIEL BT TEAS
TREBEKEAE (National Candidate of the Ministry of Personnel New
Century Hundred Thousand Talents Project of China*) and a candidate
of B4 = & A L#2 (Beijing Hundred Project of Chain*).

*  For identification purpose only
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Biography of Directors
ERECZERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 46, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed with effect from 15 July 2020, he
is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee as well as a member of Nomination Committee. Mr.
Cheung holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Master degree in Corporate Governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a member of
The Chartered Governance Institute. He is an executive director and
the Chief Financial Officer of CDW Holding Limited, a company listed
on the stock exchange of Singapore. He has acted as the Financial
Controller of OVM International Development Co. Ltd. (“OVM Int’l"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of a State-owned enterprise. OVM Int'l is
principally engaged in international trading and investment holding.
He has over eighteen years' experience in finance, accounting and
business management functions.

All executive Directors have not entered into any service contract
with the Company except Miss. Mo and Ms. Li who have entered
into service contracts with the Company. All independent non-
executive Directors have entered into service agreements with
the Company without specific period. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in the Annual General Meeting
in accordance the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELRS

GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Company currently performs a high standard of corporate
governance practices in enhancing the confidence of shareholders,
investors, employees, creditors and business partners and also the
growth of its business. The Board of Directors (the “Director(s)”) of
the Company (the “Board”) is committed to and regularly enhancing
the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure high
standards of ethics are maintained on the balancing of returns to its
shareholders and for the long-term success and sustainability of the
Company’s businesses.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (the”Code Provisions”) as set out
in the “Corporate Governance Code” contained in Appendix C1 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the”Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
As far as the Code Provisions is concerned, for the year ended 31
December 2024 (the “Year”) and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as a going
concern basis in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements required by the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amended from
time to time. This responsibilities include designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control systems relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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Corporate Governance Report

M 1N
RELIHRSE
(a) Directors’ securities transactions

Adoption of Model Code

The Board has adopted the "Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the "Model
Code”), amended from time to time, as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors.

Confirmation on Compliance

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, they all
confirmed in writing that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

Written Guideline for Relevant Employees

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of the
Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees, who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Company. Such relevant employees did and would abide
by the provisions of the Model Code. Besides, the Company has
adopted internal control policy in relation to the disclosure of
inside information of the Company (the “Inside Information
Policy”).

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code and/or the
Inside Information Policy by such relevant employees was noted
by the Company.
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(b)

Corporate Governance Report

The Board
Composition

The nomination committee of the Company (“NC”) is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition and diversity
of the Board, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of the Directors,
monitoring the re-appointment and succession planning of the
Directors and assessing the independence of each independent
non-executive Director.

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses
and the development of the Company and to the exercising
of independence. Other than Dr. Mo Shikang is the father of
Miss Mo Yunbi, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director)
Miss Mo Yunbi

Ms. Li Fun Replen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin

Prof. Zhao Yanyun

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming
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Corporate Governance Report

RELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

The composition, experiences, balance of skills, qualifications
and diversity on the Board are regularly reviewed by the NC
to ensure that the Board retains a core of members with
longstanding and deep knowledge of the Group alongside new
Directors who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences
to the Board.

The Board complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to (i) the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise; (i) independent non-executive
Director representing at least one-third of the Board; and (iii)
the audit committee of the Company (“AC”) should comprise
only independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out
in this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this annual
report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company
also maintains on its website (www.681hk.com) and on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of its
Directors (by category) identifying the role and function.

Appointment, Re-election and Resignation of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures and criteria for the appointment, re-
election, resignation, re-designation, rotation, retirement and/
or removal of the Director(s) in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws, the Listing Rules and all applicable laws.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and/or the Code Provisions
of the Listing Rules, (1) at each annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM") not less than one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from the Board by rotation; (2) each
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the conclusion of the AGM after he/she
was last re-elected as Director by shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholder(s)”) at the AGM and (3) each Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
by the Board should retire from the Board at the conclusion of
the first annual general meeting of the Company to be held
but they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as the
Director by the Shareholders at the same meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Resignation of Directors
(Continued)

During the Year, Dr. Mo Shikang, Mr. Zhang Hesheng and Dr.
Liu Junmin retired from the Board by rotation at the conclusion
of the AGM held on 7 June 2024 (the “2024 AGM") and
were then re-elected as the Directors by the Shareholders with
separate resolutions passed in the 2024 AGM in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws of the Company and pursuant to
the Code Provisions, Miss Mo Yunbi, Ms. Li Fun Replen and
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming shall retire from the Board by rotation at
the conclusion of forthcoming AGM (“2025 AGM") but, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

The Board and the NC have also recommended the re-election
of all the abovementioned retiring Directors (Miss Mo Yunbi,
Ms. Li Fun Replen and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming) standing for re-
election at the 2025 AGM.

Detailed biographical information of all the abovementioned
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the 2025 AGM will
be dispatched to Shareholders with this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

RELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Service Contracts with the Company

Three independent non-executive Directors (Dr. Liu Junmin,
Prof. Zhao Yanyun and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming) and three
executive Directors (Mr. Fan Fangyi, Miss Mo Yunbi and Ms.
Li Fun Replen) have entered into service contracts with the
Company without specific period respectively. Save as disclosed
above, the Company did not enter into any service contract
with other Directors. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules.

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance

The Board normally has at least four (4) scheduled meetings
a year to review the strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, environmental, social and
governance report, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters, if any, and meets at other times as and
when required. The Board requires Directors to devote sufficient
time and attention to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
During the Year, a total number of six (6) Board meetings, four
(4) AC meetings, one (1) NC meeting and two (2) remuneration
committee of the Company (“RC”) meeting and were held.
Minutes of these meetings are currently kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are open for inspection by the
Directors and Board committees’ members.
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EEELHRE
(b) The Board (Continued) by BEEZ(H)
Number of Meetings Held and Attendance (Continued) BEAHURHEE (&)
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contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have
spent sufficient time performing their responsibilities. The
individual attendance records of each Director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, AC, NC and RC as well as
the Shareholders’ meeting(s) (AGM and special general meeting
(“SGM"), if any), during the Year are set out below:

AGM Board AC NC RC
Names of Director EEH? REBEAE Ezg ENZEE REZEE §Mzag
Numbers of Meeting 238E 1 6 4 1 2
Executive Directors YNEES
Dr. Mo Shikang EtrFET N 6/6 i b))
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RNELE 11 6/6 bl
Mr. Fan Fangyi BhERE N 6/6
Miss Mo Yunbi E22/ n /6 £ 40
Ms. Li Fun Replen EX - Y'an 11 6/6 S m
g
Independent Non-executive Directors BI¥#TEE ; i
Dr. Liu Junmin BEREL 1l 6/6 4/4 i 0 g?j
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHR " 6/6 444 i n
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming REREE " 6/6 444 11 0 é
()
The high attendance record at the Board and its committee REBENEEFeNEZTEeZNSHE g
meetings during the Year, which was reviewed by the NC and R WO HRRZESeRFNZESEN [
RC, demonstrated the Directors’ strong commitment to the g@ﬁﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ$@7ﬁmf‘7¥qﬁ S

Company.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the Company's affairs. All Directors disclose to
the Board on their first appointment their interests as Director
or otherwise in other companies or organisations and such
information be reviewed and/or updated regularly. During the
Year, the Board has regularly reviewed the contributions from
the Directors and confirmed that they have spent sufficient time
in performing their responsibilities.
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RELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Responsibility of the Board

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the senior management. The Board
currently provides leadership and approves strategic polices
and plans with a view to enhance Shareholders’ interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Company and the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The Board has full
support of the managing Director and the senior management
to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of
the Group, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control systems, environmental, social and governance, risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Responsibility of the Directors

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to managing and executive Directors
and the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above mentioned officers.

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility to
oversee and monitor the operations of the specific business unit
and/or corporate transactions and to implement the strategies
and polices set by the Board. Each Director may seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company's expenses, upon making request to the Board.
All members of the Board are provided with monthly updates to
enable them to discharge their duties.
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The Board (Continued)

Responsibility of and Annual Confirmation from Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Through active participation in meetings of the Board, Board
committees and general meetings of the Company, the
independent non-executive Directors currently bring professional
qualifications, a wide range of business knowledges and
financial expertise, experiences, skills and independent judgment
on the issues of strategy, policy, performance accountability,
usage of resources, key appointments, connected transactions
and standards of conduct to the Board. Independent non-
executive Directors have taken and/or shall take lead when
potential conflicts of interest arise. Independent Board
committee, comprising all independent non-executive Directors,
has formed and/or will form to advise the independent
Shareholders on those connected transactions to be approved
by the independent Shareholders at the SGM. All independent
non-executive Directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction and performance of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received, from each independent non-
executive Directors for the Year, a written annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board and the NC considered all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Insurance of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance including company securities, employment
practices, regulatory crisis event, investigation, litigation, tax
liabilities and public relation, etc, for the Directors and senior
officers of the Group, which is reviewed by the Board on a
regular basis. The Company undertakes an annual review of
the Company’s Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance policy
in light of recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The review benchmarks the amount of cover
against other similar companies and considers whether separate
cover be required for members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

RELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Conflict of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their duties to act in
the best interest of the Company and have particular regard to
the interest of the Shareholders as a whole. Amongst others,
all Directors are required to declare the nature and extent of
their interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement, contract
or other proposal to be considered by the Board at meetings.
Unless specifically permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company,
a Director cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other proposal in which he/she has or any
of his/her close associates is materially interested.

Supply of and Access to Information

The Board and Board committees members are supplied with
comprehensive meeting papers and relevant materials within a
reasonable period of time in advance of the intended meeting
date (in any event no less than three (3) days before the date of
the meeting). All Directors and the Board committees members
are given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board and Board committees meetings and/or their
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision-making process,
the Directors and the Board committees members are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required.

All Directors and the Board committees members have
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who ensures that the Board and
Board committees receive appropriate and timely information
for its decision-making and the Board and Board committees
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are being
followed. The Directors and the Board committees members
can obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses.
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The Board (Continued)

Supply of and Access to Information (Continued)

The Board receives from the management monthly management
accounts, explanation or analysis of the operation performance
of the Group and relevant information which enable the Board to
make an informed assessment for the performance of the Group,
from time to time. Other regular and ad hoc reports are also
prepared for the Board and Board committees, to ensure that
the Directors and members of the Board committees are supplied
with all the requested information in a timely and appropriate
manner.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Role of Chairman

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director,
who perform similar role as chief executive officer, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The respective responsibilities
of the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are
clearly defined. The chairman of the Board provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the management, the chairman of the Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
information and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The position of the chairman of the Board is currently
held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

The chairman of the Board ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. He also ensures all Directors are properly briefed on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. The chairman of the
Board encourages Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensures that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus. He
pushes all Directors to make a full and active contributions to
the Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders
as whole.
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RELIHRSE
(c) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Managing Director is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, internal control
system, risk management system and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval. The position of the Managing
Director is currently held by Mr. Fan Fangyi.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
Group structure, Board and Board committees meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Company, etc. and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements in
Bermuda and Hong Kong.

An induction programme covering the roles of a Director from
the strategic, planning and management perspective, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, as well as
the essence of corporate governance and the trends in these
areas, be therefore arranged for newly appointed Director(s), if
any, after he/she joined the Board.

The Board acknowledges that continuous professional
development and training of Directors is an ongoing process
to ensure the continued enhancement of their skills and
knowledge.
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Training for Directors (Continued)

Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and materials
to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills from time
to time. All the information and materials are relevant to the
Group’s business, the economy, corporate governance, rules and
regulations, accounting, financial or professional skills and/or
directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements
in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to each Director. During the Year, the record of the
trainings of the Directors, on named basis, is set out in the table
below:
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Btz 90 R DR EBENSEEMK
M BEMEREENMB LG FAA
Bl MM R EAREZ X755 KF bE
R -RAERG - &5 MIEREEKEE
R/SEENBENEEER - SRPETE
AEERRHEBHRLREEEI - AFERNE
ENEIEHEAABERIIT :

Receiving

briefings from

Reading financial

journals, officers,

written Attending company

training webcast secretary

materials and/ training and/  and/or other

or updates or forums executives

W

BEAE D FE

BEST 8@ ek WEM,H

FIMRER EBEREFIMS HitbSEW

Directors BE= HEH o w18 IGE:

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Mo Shikang EEELT v/ v/

Mr. Zhang Hesheng ok A o A v v

Mr. Fan Fangyi BAEEE v/ v

Miss Mo Yunbi REZNE v v

Ms. Li Fun Replen ES G v v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITESE

Dr. Liu Junmin AERELT v/ v/

Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHE v/ v

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming RAERASEE v/ v/ v/

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company's expenses. The company secretary of the
Company is responsible to keep records of training taken by
each Director. The NC reviewed the training records of each
Director annually.
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PREARE

(e)

Company Secretary

The company secretary, being an employee of the Company, has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs and reports to
the Board. She keeps close contact with all Directors and ensures
that the operation of the Board and all Board committees are in
compliance with the procedures as set forth in the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. Additionally, the company
secretary of the Company is responsible for compiling and
regularly submitting draft minutes of Board meetings and Board
Committee meetings to the Directors and committee members
for their comment, and final version of minutes for their
records, within a reasonable time after the relevant meetings.
Each Director may obtain advice from and the assistance of the
company secretary of the Company to ensure that the meeting
of Board and Board committees procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations, are followed. To ensure the possession
of up-to-date knowledge and market information to perform
her duties, the company secretary of the Company attended
sufficient professional training during the Year.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which includes developing and reviewing the Company’s
policy and practices on corporate governance, assessing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management. During the Year, the Board
reviewed, monitored and assessed the policy and practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development to Directors and senior management, policies and
practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirement
and the compliance with the Model Code under the Listing Rule
and disclosure requirements in this Corporate Governance Report.
The Board kept under review in light of the changing legal and
regulatory requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
AC, NC and RC is responsible for monitoring the Company'’s
specific affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are disclosed in the corporate website of the Company
(www.681hk.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The members of the AC at present are all independent non-
executive Directors whereas, the majority of NC and the RC
comprise independent non-executive Directors. The list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” in this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at Company's expenses.

Audit Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The AC
currently comprises independent non-executive Directors,
among them one independent non-executive Director possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. None of the
members of the AC is a director, former partner or principal
of the Company's existing external auditor. The AC currently
comprises the following three members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, (chairman)
(i) Dr. Liu Junmin

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun
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CEEREE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the AC include the followings:

(1)

To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
responsible staff of accounting and financial report
function, compliance officer (if any), internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditor and
its independence by reference to the work performed and
services provided by the external auditor, their fees, their
firm’s standards and practices and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and/or removal of external
auditor;

To review the continuing connected transactions as
disclosed in the annual report, if any, and confirm that
those transactions entered into by the Group were (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the respective agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Shareholders as a whole; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC held four (4) meetings during the Year, inter alia,

(1) review and approve the draft audited and unaudited
consolidated financial statement together with and the
respective draft result announcements, including changes
in accounting policies and practices; major judgmental
areas; significant adjustments resulting from the audit
(if any); going concern assumption; compliance with
accounting and auditing standards and compliance with
the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting to the Board for consideration and
approval,

(2) review the results of the external audit and discuss with
the external auditor on any significant findings and audit
issues;

(3) assess the independence of the external auditor of the
Company and the effectiveness of audit process;

(4)  review the relationship with the external auditor and then
recommend the re-appointment of the external auditor of
the Company and recommended its remuneration;

(5) evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
systems of internal control and risk management;

(6) review the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staffs of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget; and

(7)  review the current continuing connected transactions.

The attendance records of the meetings of AC during the Year
is set out in this report.
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EEEIERSE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to auditor in respect of
audit service and/or non-audit services provided by the auditor
to the Group were as follows:

REFRN - BLAZBED A AR BIE H 2 R
BR/SERBREAXN BN ZER
ol

2024

RMB’000

Nature of services R E AR¥T
Audit for the Year KFEEEZ 1,000

Nomination Committee

The written terms of reference has been suggested (amended
from time to time) under the Code Provisions. The NC currently
comprises the following four members, major of them are
independent non-executive Directors:

(i)  Dr. Mo Shikang*, (chairman)

(i) Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming”

Dr. Liu Junmin*

# executive Director

* independent non-executive Director

The main duties of the NC include the followings:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy;
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

(3) review the Board diversity with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy (defined below);

(4) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(5)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

Nomination Policy

The NC has been delegated by the Board to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board on an annual basis.

The Company has adopted below the policy for nomination of
Directors (including the nomination procedures and criteria for
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship) in
accordance with the Code Provisions.

Objective of the policy

NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to the Shareholders
for election as Director(s) at general meetings or appoint as
Director(s) to fill casual vacancies.

NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number
of candidates more than the number of the Directors to be
appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or the number
of casual vacancies to be filled.

ERELHSE

T UHRERBEBALTHIESS
UHAESSREER

B) REEFEREZTIEBRRIES
EXREMZTTIL(EERTX) ¢

(4) FHEBMYIFERTEFMBILE: R

(5) MEFZEXEHZEURES (L
HREXERITHRASE) BEFEIRE
FERNEE-

1E IR

ExgCZ R EeEFhIEES
2R RERAEK -

ARBMRETREXRAUNTERRELR
R(BREEREFMEELENNEEREA
M) -

BGRB8

RAZBEGANESTSRAEEANE  UH
ExgERRARREBRERRAS L&
TRES IHEFSZTREFNAME

EELTS

REZEERAMAZHEN (REAR
HE)BBENRRAE LREXRENEE
MES A kBEFH BRI R = RE
B o

TREBRSRAT 39

2024 F (B E2024F 12831 L EE)

41
¥
|
i
£
S|

t
o
o
(]
(5
(]
v
[=
©
c
S
[}
>
[}
(L)
[}
-}
©
S
5}
o
b
o
V)




Corporate Governance Report
PREARE

(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC
in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity;

o accomplishment, experiences and/or knowledge in the
principal business of our group, from time to time;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

o diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

1. The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the
NC, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members, if any, for consideration by the NC prior to its
meeting. The NC may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make
recommendations for the Board’'s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the NC shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

3. Until the issue of the circular to Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) and has posted it on the Company’s website
(www.681hk.com), which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board, the summary of which are set out
below:

(a)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

In designing the Board’s composition, the diversity of
Board members has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The NC held one (1) meeting during the Year, inter alia,

(1

assess the structure, size and composition of the Board
and analysis the diversity of the Board with reference to
the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board;

evaluate the performance of the Board with reference to
the Board performance report;

study the independence of each independent non-
executive Director in accordance with the Listing Rules;

identify those Directors to be retired from the Board and
by rotation in the AGM and then be re-elected as Director
in the same meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules;
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Corporate Governance Report
LRELHRE

(g) Board Committees (Continued) (9)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(5) propose the maximum number of Directors of the Board
in the AGM;

(6) review the service contract(s) entered and to be entered
with the Director(s), if any; and

The attendance records of the meetings of the NC during the
Year is set in this report.

Analysis of the diversity of the Board by NC is shown by the
following charts:

Executive Directors

WITES

M

Age Group
F R4 5

Directorship with
the Company
EERATESFEH

6-10 years F
33%
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Board Committees EEZ E 2 (Continued) (4&)

Nomination Committee }24 Z B & (Continued) (&)

The Board

[ EE

an’

Business Experience
[GE3S

Accounting
i
=

Auditing
By

Business management
HEER

Compliance with the corporate governance

T DADAE

Development & management of fuel gas projects

RFIEE G R R R

Development of the Group's food ingredients supply and FMCG Supply business
AEEEMPERNESEGER

Financial management

prasged

Financial research and analysis

I AT RIAT

Food safety
RMEE

Investment banking
RERT

Marketing and project management
GBI RARER

Merger and acquisition of gas enterprises
BRI

Securities and financial investment
BHELERIEE

Securities brokerages

FEHER

ERELIWSE

Academic Background and
Professional Qualification
BMERREXER

Accounting

&5

Agricultural economics

BELCE

Business administration

IrER

[ ] Certified public accountant

Eaiix-61

[ | Chartered secretaries

EMATRE

Economics

B

Legal

R

PhD

Bt

Professor
-
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Sciences
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CEEREE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
of RC has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The RC
currently comprises the following five members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming’, (chairman)
(i) Dr. Mo Shikang*

(iii)  Mr. Zhang Hesheng?*

(iv)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

(v)  Dr. Liu Junmin®

* independent non-executive Director

# executive Director

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for the Directors and senior management. The RC
has primary responsibility for making recommendations on
and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management to the Board after consultation with the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman, assessed performance of the executive
Directors and accessed to professional advice, at the Company'’s
expenses, when necessary. The RC is also responsible for
establishing a formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates be participated in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration be determined by reference to
the duties and responsibilities of Directors in the Group, business
performance, profitability and market conditions.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The RC held two (2) meetings during the Year, inter alia,

(1)

(6)

review the summary of remuneration package paid to
each Director and senior management of the Company
for the Year;

study the current remuneration package, policy and
structure of all Directors (including appointment(s),
resignation(s) and retirement(s) during the Year, if any);

propose remuneration packages in the coming year with
reference to the duties and responsibilities of Directors,
business performance and profitability of the Group
and market conditions, the corporate objective and goal
set by the Board with reference to salaries paid by the
comparable companies to Directors;

consider the service contract(s) entered and to be entered
with Director(s) and/or Director(s), if any;

review the procedures of remuneration policy, procedures
and structure for fixing the remuneration packages; and

propose salary adjustment.

The attendance records of the meetings of the RC during the
Year is set out in this report.

ERELHSE

= = (4=
EEZEE(E)
ZER TS S (1)
FWZET (&)

AEERN FHEEEERRIT_QREZH"
A (EPBEE):

(1) BERAARRSEERSREEREL
NAFEZFHMESHE

2 ER2REZ(BREAFEZRT &
EREREES (WH) ) ZBEITHMA
B BERRRERE:

(3) BEFHEL ETFL2EBEEIEH
MEE AEEEBRERAT 6
RMIBAkR - EE G 2 AR
MEERAELERRAESINZ
e

4) FEBECRBEEZRITLZRBEN
(ma)

(5) BRIBEHFMES ZFHFMBER BT
RIRRE) ]

(6) BEFHE-

FHMZEEAFERNZEH L FCEIAN
REEA -

PREZEBRERAR
2024 F (B E2024F 12831 L EE)

45

4
¥
|
i
£
S|

t
o
o
(]
(5
(]
v
[=
©
c
S
[}
>
[}
(L)
[}
-}
©
S
5}
o
b
o
V)




Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRSE
(h) Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control and risk management
systems to safeguard the interest of Shareholders and the
assets of the Group. During the Year and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board, through the AC, reviewed
the implementation of the systems of internal control and
risk management and reviewing of financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions system.
A review be conducted at least annually on the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and risk management.
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
we has reviewed and monitored effectiveness of our major
subsidiaries in relation to corporate management, human
resource, procurement and sale, inventory, finance, contracts or
information system.

The Group has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation
of responsibility and authority to the management. The
internal control and risk management systems of the Group
are designed to identify and evaluate the significant risks and
to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of failure
to achieve business objective, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatements or
losses.

The Group which currently engages in the businesses of
the sales and distribution of fuel gas including piped gas
transmission and distribution, cylinder gas supply, gas
distribution, and food ingredients supply and FMCG supply in
China, has established internal control and risk management
systems which are designed and structured in accordance with
its specific business and operation functions.
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Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

The Board monitors the Group’s business risk, operating
risk management and internal controls. An internal audit
team is maintained to carry out internal audit functions to
ensure proper compliance with the internal control and risk
management systems to identify the potential risks which may
arise in the operation and financial aspects of the Group's
business for implementation of appropriate measures and
policies on a continuing basis. The scope of review and the
audit plan of the internal audit team for the Year, which are
formulated based on a risk assessment approach and focuses
on areas with relatively higher perceived risks, are reviewed and
approved by the AC in conjunction with the management. The
internal audit team executes its functions based on a yearly
plan and prepares reports for its assignments. These reports
are submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis.

During the Year, the Board, through the AC, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems and the internal audit functions
of Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial reporting system, operational and compliance controls
and risk management system. The Board and the AC confirmed
that during the Year, there were no significant control failings
or weaknesses identified which might have a material impact
on the Company’s financial performance or condition and
the required procedures and human resources are in place to
ensure adequate internal controls within the Group.

An external audit has also been conducted to carry out the
internal audit functions to ensure proper compliance with
the internal control system and risk management system to
identify the potential risks which may arise in the operation
and financial of the Group's business for implementation
of appropriate measures and policies on a continuing basis.
The scope of review and the audit programme of external
audit firm, which are formulated based on a risk assessment
approach and focuses on areas with relatively higher perceived
risks, are approved by the AC at the end of the preceding
financial year in conjunction with the management. The
external audit firm executes their functions based on a yearly
plan and prepares reports for their assignments. These reports
are submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis. Such reports are also circulated to the
external auditor on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report
PREARE

(h)

Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has approved and adopted an Inside Information
Policy for the Company for monitoring inside information to
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information as set out in
the Inside Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

(a)

Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board
in accordance with the Listing Rules. In cases where a
decision by the Board is pending or in cases of incomplete
negotiations, the Group shall implement the procedures
set out in the Inside Information Policy to maintain the
confidentiality of information. Until an announcement is
made, the Directors and the management should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential. If the
confidentiality cannot be maintained, an announcement
shall be made as soon as practicable.

Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors and/or the
company secretary of the Company, immediately so that
remedial actions, including making an inside information
announcement, can be taken at the earliest opportunity.

The Group’s finance department shall keep track of the
Group's threshold levels for disclosure pursuant to the
percentage ratios as defined in the Listing Rules, so that
an announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arise.
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Corporate Governance Report

Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside information is announced promptly through the websites
of the Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.681hk.com). The electronic publication system of the
Stock Exchange is the first channel of dissemination of the
Group's information before any other channels.

Investor Relation

The Company has committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relation policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings with
institutional investors and analysts, if required, are conducted
from time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
Shareholders timely. The Directors host the AGM each year to
meet the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company's website at www.681hk.com contains important
corporate information, biographical details of current Directors,
organisation structure, annual and interim reports with
comprehensive and user-friendly information about the Group,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders and the investor community
to have timely access to updated information about the
Company and the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene
a SGM and state the purpose therefore at the Company’s
registered office in Bermuda at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

Dividend Policy

The Directors propose the dividend, if any, in accordance with
the dividend policy of the Company ("“Dividend Policy”) which
essential features are summarised below:
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Corporate Governance Report
PREARE

()

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Dividend Policy (Continued)

Purpose

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines of
the Company in relation to the distribution of dividend to the
Shareholders.

The objective of the Dividend Policy is to reward the
Shareholders by sharing a portion of profits/earning, while also
ensuring that enough funds are retained for the future growth
and prospects of the Company.

Factors when considering the distribution of dividend

The distribution of any dividend by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, which normally did/will take into
account of the following factors:

e The financial results of the Company and the Group;

° Interests of the Shareholders;

° General business conditions and strategies;

e The capital requirements of the Group;

e  Contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries to
the Company, if any;

° Taxation considerations;

° Possible effects on our creditworthiness;

e  Statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

e Any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There is no assurance that any particular dividend amount, or
any dividend at all, will be declared and paid in the future.

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend

Any distribution of dividend for a financial year shall be subject
to the approval by the Shareholders. Shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company can approve any distribution of final
dividend, which may not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

All of the Shareholders have equal rights to dividend.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Dividend Policy (Continued)

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend (Continued)

Dividend may be distributed in the form of cash and/in specie
of Shares. Any distribution of Shares, however, must be
approved by the Shareholders.

The Board may from time to time to declare the special,
quarterly and/or interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified.

Communication Policy

The Company has adopted communications policy with
Shareholders and investors that provide ready, equal and timely
access to understandable information about the Company, the
policy is posted on the Company’s website (www.681hk.com).
The Board is welcome to Shareholders for their comments
and/or enquiries about the Company. Shareholders may send
their comments and/or enquiries to the Board by addressing
them to the company secretary of the Company who ensures
these enquires and/or comments to be properly directed to the
Board. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposal for the
Company's consideration at the general meetings can send
their proposal to the company secretary of the Company.

Pursuant to Bye-laws of the Company, if a Shareholder wish
to propose a person other than a retiring Director for election
as a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
Shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination
which shall be given to the head office of the Company within
the 7-day period commencing the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may be
determined and announced by the Directors from time to
time). The relevant procedures are posted on the Company's
website (www.681hk.com).

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch registrar
and transfer office, namely, Tricor Tengis Limited, whose
contact details are stated in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.
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CEEREE
(k) Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels of
communication with its Shareholders. The Board and the
management are committed to the constructive use of AGM as
a forum to meet with Shareholders and to hear their views and
answer their enquiries about the Group and its business.

Dr. Mo Shikang, the chairman of the Board, did and would
use his endeavours to attend all Shareholders’ meetings.
The chairman of the Board did and would arrange for the
chairmen of RC, NC and AC or their alternates be available to
answer enquiries at each AGM of the Company. A member
of the independent board committee of the Company also
be available to answer enquiries at any general meeting
of the Company, if any, to approve connected transactions
or any other transactions that are subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval.

The Board did and would arrange auditor to attend every AGM
of the Company to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Most resolutions would be passed by way of poll at each
of the general meeting of the Company. Shareholders who
are unable to attend general meetings of the Company can
appoint proxies to attend and vote at general meetings of the
Company. The chairman of general meetings of the Company
would provide explanation of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and then would answer enquiries (if any)
from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of poll. The
Company would send notice of the AGM of the Company to
the Shareholders at least 21 clear days before each AGM of the
Company and at least 14 clear days before all other general
meetings of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.681hk.com) is maintained
for the dissemination of the Company’s announcements,
press releases and other relevant financial and non-financial
information on a timely basis.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Executive Director maintains
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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Amendments to the Bye-laws

The existing Bye-laws have not been amended since 2009.
The Stock Exchange has amended the Listing Rules, relating
to, among others, the articles of association or equivalent
constitutional documents of listed issuers under the new
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January
2022 for which listed issuers are required to make necessary
amendments to the constitutional documents by the second
annual general meeting following 1 January 2022 to bring their
constitutional documents to conformation.

In order to (i) bring the Bye-laws in line with the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules as well as the applicable laws
of Bermuda; (i) allow general meetings of the Company to
be held in the form of a hybrid meeting or electronic meeting
where the Shareholders may attend by electronic means in
addition to a physical meeting where the Shareholders attend
in person; and (iii) adopt house-keeping improvements and
amendments in line with the aforesaid proposed amendments,
the Directors got the approval from the Shareholders by way of
special resolution for the amendments to the Bye-laws and the
adoption of the New Bye-laws in 2023 AGM.
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Report of the Directors

EEGEE*

The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) are pleased to
present this report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the sales and distribution of fuel gas
including the piped gas transmission and distribution, cylinder
gas supply, gas distribution and food ingredients supply and fast
moving consumer goods (“FMCG") supply businesses in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out in this annual report. All these sections form part of
this “Report of the Directors”.

SUBSIDIARIES

The activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are set
out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2023: nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

FOR ATTENDANCE OF 2025 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 20 June 2025 to Wednesday, 25 June 2025 (both dates
inclusive), for the purpose of determining the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) eligibility to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 25 June 2025 (the “2025 AGM") and during which
period no transfer of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will
be effected. In order to qualify for attendance of the 2025 AGM,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates of the Company must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited (address:
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 June 2025.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the Year are set out in
notes 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Further details of the movement in the share capital and share options
of the Company, if any, during the Year are set out in notes 34 and
39 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed under the section of “SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS” above, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any
distributable reserve (2023: nil).

PARTICULARS OF BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024
is set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted
for 2.82% and 11.07% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year,
respectively.

For the Year, the aggregate purchase attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together
accounted for 14.54% and 49.63% of the Group’s total purchase for
the Year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any Shareholder who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of
the said top five customers and/or suppliers of the Group for the
Year.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

DIRECTORS =5

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of RAFEEARBEAFRAPZETESTHOT:
this annual report were:

Executive Directors: BITES:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman) EtEEL (EE)
Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman) SRAAESEE (BIEE)
Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director) BHERLE (EFHLE)
Miss Mo Yunbi REZ/E

Ms. Li Fun Replen ES G
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHITES:
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHE

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming RS A&

Dr. Liu Junmin BBt RE L

Changes in Information of Directors ESERE

Set out below are the changes in the Directors’ information since the TXEF) B AR F2024F B BSR4 FIEE 15 BRI
publication of the interim report 2024 of the Company, which are EMBAEIBSIBEETRECESENE
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing B

Rules:

1. Dr. Liu Junmin, an independent non-executive Director, was 1. B2025F1A6B# AHRELEETDE

appointed as an independent non-executive Director of RITIRDBR AT ([FEERT IRERT
the fifth session of the Board of CHINA BOHAI BANK CO., 09668 * AN X ATAIKIRENZ) L gy
LTD. (“CBHB") and the chairperson of the nomination and EEEGBYIENTEE EEQRA NS §§,§
remuneration committee of the board of CBHB (stock code: MEEgFEEE- S
09668, shares of CBHB are listed on the GEM board of the Em
Stock Exchange) with effect on 6 January 2025. '_“E’
2. The salary of Ms. Li Fun Replen, an executive Director and 2. H2024F8A1HE HITESTEARAR g
the company secretary of the Company, has been adjusted to AIMEZTBL T HERAREZEGFAEE §.
HK$838,500 per year with effect from 1 August 2024. 838,5007T ° o«
Save as disclosed above, there is no other information which is bR RSN SRR LR AIS13.51B(1) K
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. BTYHEOEMER -
Board Committees EEZEY

As at the date of this annual report, the composition of the board RAFRA ARAEEZESHAEKET
committees of the Company is set out in the section headed FHR2RAIER] —FR-
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out in this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall be
indemnified against all losses and liabilities which they may incur in
connection with their duties. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS® SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTATION

Three independent non-executive Directors (Dr. Liu Junmin, Prof.
Zhao Yanyun and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming) and three executive
Directors (Mr. Fan Fangyi, Miss Mo Yunbi and Ms. Li Fun Replen),
have entered into service contracts with the Company without
specific period, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation from
the Board and then re-election in the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with Bye-law of the Company and pursuant to the
Code on Corporate Governance Code to the Listing Rules, Miss Mo
Yunbi, Ms. Li Fun Replen, being executive Directors, and Mr. Cheung
Chi Ming, being independent non-executive Director, shall retire from
the Board by rotation at the conclusion of 2025 AGM but they, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of any Director proposed for
re-election (Miss Mo Yunbi, Ms. Li Fun Replen, Mr. Cheung Chi Ming)
at the 2025 AGM.

DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS EMOLUMENT

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis and five highest
paid individuals (five of them are Directors) are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Director, namely, Dr. Liu Junmin, Prof.
Zhao Yanyun and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, of their independence for
the Year pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the
Board and the Nomination Committee considered all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the
“"Model Code"”) were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

KABRDHPZHR
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BYFHTESZFEER

ARBCWEIRBIIFATES (BIRIBREL
HEESHRMRTHLE)RE EMBRAE313
GAFE s EEBUMRRAE - EFGNREE
BeURRABBILIFNTEFORBEIAL

sERRM -HERSOD R

== < AY == N 7
BEEF2ER

R2024F 12 A31H BREFEF L EAEGHIFE352
EARARBTEE 2 ELMATes: SB[ £
BITANESETELFRSWZESE] (B
Al ERNe AR MR BlESRAAT
S ETAAEEE (TELEFRBERN ([#
H B ) EXVES) ([HEBSEE]) 201D 18R
N SRESHP z ST

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of ordinary Shares held ordinary
RAREBRHHUA Share capital*
Personal Family Corporate FiEE
interests’ interests interests? Total ETEZER®D
Names of Director EENSR BAER RikER DAER? ay SR A
Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo") Rt FET - - | 2,591,904,762
([EfEL)) 1,135,000,000  3,726,904,762 4171
Miss Mo Yunbi (“Miss Mo") BEENE - - | 2,591,904,762
([EE]) 1,135,000,000  3,726,904,762 41.71
Mr. Zhang Hesheng M St 338,271,282 - - 338,271,282 3.79
Mr. Fan Fangyi BRRKE 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000 0.25
Dr. Liu Junmin ABRREL 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.06
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHK 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.06

TREBRSRAT 5g

2024 F (B E2024F 12831 L EE)

41
o
¢
i
L]

w
=
[<]
-
o
Q
=
[a]
Q
K=
(=
Y=
o
i
o
o
(]
o




Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial
owner.

2. Civios Group Limited (“Civios Group”) is the ultimate holding
company of the Company, which was legal and beneficially owned
70% by Dr. Mo and 30% by Miss Mo. Civios Group legally held the
entire issued share capital of Renown City Holdings Limited (“Renown
City"), whereas the entire issued share capital of Lofty Key Limited
("Lofty Key"”) and Ping Da Development Limited (“Ping Da”) were
both legally held by Renown City. Lofty Key and Ping Da legally
held 2,591,904,762 Shares and 1,135,000,000 Shares, respectively.
Therefore, Dr. Mo and Miss Mo were deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Lofty Key and Ping Da were interested under the SFO.

* The percentage has been adjusted, if any, based on the total number of
ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2024 (i.e.
8,934,561,203 Shares).

Save as disclosed above and under section headed "“DIRECTORS'
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES” below, as at 31
December 2024, none of the Directors nor their associates had any
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations
which had been entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

60 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2024 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2024)

EERKRM HBERKRSD KR
BEFH 2R =

o :

1.

N\

URERAEBEESFRABESHEARFENES-

AARZBBIER AR AESLEEGRAR ([B
HEE]) BEXEENBAEFLRENESD
AEREHFATIO%N30% - BHEBAEER
WEERBR AR ([BE]) 2D EHTRNG -
MERER AR ([REDMFERREFR QA
([FE]2HEETROHELZANEFF-Z
BEA T =D Bl A AR A2,591,904,762 8% Ik 10 K&
1,135,000,0000% f% {7  #utt - EfH £ R E /D EIR
BEFEAEROMRIERZENFEREGERS
2R EE -

AN EERBEARRRNR2024F 12 A31BE %17
37 A% () 48 8 (BN8,934,561,203/ A% (7 ) fEH 3
B (mE) -

BRUAFHBEERTX [EERERDRES ZE
F) —En T FR E SN R2024F 123318 - IRIE
BHERBEGOEIZBEAAFATFEZERL
B ATEeeE - SKARBIZETRIZAM G AR A MR
BT BEEE Bok B8 A AR A sk H A48 H
EEZ D AR RS E S A A

NLpoy A
mAOKR



DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION" in this report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies was a party or in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS® RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouse and children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code, amended from time to time. All
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the Year. Employees, who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company, have been requested to comply with provisions of Model
Code.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

RRABARGDHPZHR

Name of Shareholder

BR&®

RNRBRAP 2 ERED

MR2024F 128318 BIEFH L EKHIE336
BEARBIATFEZECMAMGEEE ZEALT
(BREBEBIINEEARRFRMD ZHERWNT

Approximate
percentage (%) of

the issued

ordinary

Number of share capital*

Nature of ordinary FriEe
interest Shares held BOTEERG

BitE HBREEROHE BABEDL(%)*

Lofty Key
E3

Ping Da
T

Renown City
5B

Civios Group
BHEE

Notes:

Beneficial owner

ESHAA

Interested in controlled corporation
R AR 2 RS

Lofty Key

E3

Ping Da

Interested in controlled corporation
SRt UNCIPA: $2

Lofty Key

E3

Ping Da

FiE

1. The entire issued share capital of Lofty Key was held by Renown City,
whereas the entire issued share capital of Renown City was held by
Civios Group, Civios Group was legal and beneficially owned 70% by
Dr. Mo and 30% by Miss Mo, respectively. Accordingly, Renown City,
Civios Group, Dr. Mo and Miss Mo are deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Lofty Key is interested under the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAP'TAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. The entire issued share capital of Ping Da was held by Renown City,
whereas the entire issued share capital of Renown City was held by
Civios Group, Civios Group was legal and beneficially owned 70% by
Dr. Mo and 30% by Miss Mo, respectively. Accordingly, Renown City,
Civios Group, Dr. Mo and Miss Mo are deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Ping Da is interested under the SFO.

* The percentage has been adjusted (if any) based on the total number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2024 (i.e. 8,934,561,203 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company any of its Associated
Corporations, which had been recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or substantial Shareholders or
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report and within
the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

SHARE OPTION

Shareholders approved a resolution of adoption of a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) in the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 9 September 2016.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, nil share
option was outstanding, granted, exercised, lapsed and/or cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

Purpose Provide incentives to the eligible persons
to contribute to the Group, to enable
the Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a
long-term basis and to attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Participants Eligible person include any executive,
employee (whether full-time or part-time),
Director (including independent non-
executive Director), consultant, adviser,
partner, joint-venture partner, service
provider, customer and/or agent of the
Company or any of its subsidiary or any
person, who in the absolute discretion
of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group at the time when
an option is granted to such person.

Price of Shares Determined by the Board and shall at
least be the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of the Share;

(b) the closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer, which must be a trading
day; and

(c) the average closing price of the
Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations
sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date
of offer.
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SHARE OPT'ON (Continued)

Total number of Shares 694,495, 413% i% 17 » 44 A<

694,495,413 Shares, being approximately

available for issue 7.77% of the issued share capital of the BOZROBEE RARBEEITRANTITII% -
and the percentage ~ Company. REMDBHTR
of the issued share EEDHE
capital that it
represents as at the
date of this annual
report
Maximum entitlement  Not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in BR2HEHETER NEM2EARNSHEAR

of each participant any 12-month period. K5z LR BTN 21% ©
Period within which Subject to the discretion by the Board. REBREZBE hAEsepBEET-
the securities must be & ZHR
taken up under the
option
Minimum period for Not applicable. TEBRENERS T~EA-
which an option must BzEEHR
be held before it can
be exercised
Amount payable on No amount is payable on acceptance of BEASENCSE ENERESASNESRE-
acceptance an offer.
£ 41
Period within which Not applicable. BUkEE EEE T@ER- g b
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[
made/repaid v i
=
Remaining life of the The scheme will be valid and effective T8l 2 FlehE HA HETEIE 220269 A8H 4 E
scheme until 8 September 2026, after which no BEEH - ZARBETER
further options will be granted, but in HEAON Y BEE R RIS L2

all other respects the provisions of this
scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in respect of any option granted
prior to the termination of this scheme
and any such option shall continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of issue.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primary in form of
contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
the PRC statutory public welfare fund respectively. Details of which
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Continuing connected transactions during the Year

On 31 March 2023, Xi‘an Civigas Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas")
entered into a natural gas supply agreement (“2023-2025 Natural
Gas Supply Agreement”) with Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co.,
Ltd. (“Shaanxi Natural Gas”) to renew the continuing connected
transactions under the natural gas supply agreement on 30
December 2022 entered between Xi‘an Civigas and Shaanxi Natural
Gas, pursuant to which Shaanxi Natural Gas has agreed to supply
and Xi'an Civigas has agreed to purchase natural gas for a term of
two years and nine months commencing from 1 April 2023 to 31
December 2025. The period/annual cap amounts for the transactions
under the 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement for the nine
months ended 31 December 2023, and each of the two years ending
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2025 were RMB112,790,000,
RMB206,174,000 and RMB227,572,000 respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the aggregate transactions amount was
within the abovementioned annual cap amount, details of which may
refer to the announcement of Company dated 31 March 2023.

Shaanxi Natural Gas is a shareholder of Xi‘an Civigas (being a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 40% equity interests in
Xi'an Civigas, by virtue of its interests in Xi‘an Civigas, is regarded
as a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Shaanxi Natural Gas is principally engaged in the
distribution and pipeline transportation of natural gas, the sale of
city gas, as well as the operation of gasification projects. It is one of
the leading natural gas providers in Shaanxi Province, China. Through
the purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi Natural Gas under 2023-
2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement, it can stabilise the supply in the
region Xi‘an Civigas serves.
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CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions during the Year (Continued)

In view of the highest applicable percentage ratio of the respective
transactions under the 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement
and their respective period/annual cap amounts under the 2023-
2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement be more than 5% as set out
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the respective transactions
under the 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply Agreement were:

(i)  between the Group and a connected person at the subsidiary
level,

(i) on normal commercial terms or better, and

(i) approved by the Board and confirmed by the independent non-
executive Directors,

that are therefore exempted from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.101(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, but are subject to annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the
Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor of the Company has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the 2023-2025 Natural Gas Supply
Agreement as disclosed by the Group in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions during the Year (Continued)

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
under the CCT Agreement and confirmed that these transactions
entered into by the Group were:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no transactions which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constituted connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, they are in compliance with applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules and are reported in this annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

Throughout the Year and up to the date of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Board reviews and monitors
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements in a regular basis. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

During the Year, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company
has complied with the requirements under memorandum of association
and Bye-laws of the Company, the Listing Rules, the SFO, the Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda and other laws applicable to the Company. Details
of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in the Listing Rules are provided in
the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

AUDITOR

With the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Fan, Chan &
Co., Limited, being the auditor of the Company, will retire and being
eligible, offers itself for re-appointment in the 2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 31 March 2025

Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

BFIRRENER

AEBBRENAREFENERAKEETER
0 LERYASERERTENEZ ERAR
BMA BTETHBZRIMERER EFEH
et W EE R AR BRI & AR M BUR AR i - 47
MrEEMELEM TS TNHEBERNER:
ERMRANE LR TR -

RAREE  BARBAAM ARARDEBTARA
MEBERAEMNE AR EWARR - E5FED
EBERE-NAN—FRRAMEMERRART
AR - BRAARRE ST EMARA (BEERT
) FFRIGEXNBERCERANFR[DEER
HEIA-

= B Em

REBEERSORS AAAEUMBRE 5
175 B2 7116 12025 18 B A B EH &
B A R B AR

EEEGD

SERERE
BFHEERNTEE

b3 - 202543 A31H

TREBRSRAT g9

2024 F (B E2024F 12831 L EE)

41
o
¢
i
L]

w
=
[<]
-
o
Q
=
[a]
Q
K=
(=
Y=
o
i
o
o
(]
o




SRRt B AT A TR &)
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

To the Shareholders of
Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 77 to 229, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Hong Kong 10#£1007-1012Z
BRR R

FREREBRAT

(RBREZZMALzBERRE)

AZBMEEZTREBRAER AR ([E27R])

MEWBAR (KifE [ EE£B])SNREITEER

229E WMERE SRR & R BIER2024F 128

3THMGA MBI RE HEZ B EFERNELR

AREEREMEERERE GEARIEHRK

HERERERUANRGEEUBRENTE BFEE
SRR ER -

BMRE ZEREAMERREBERETSER
MAgEMN (BEMEREEL) BEEMAF
MWRRT S£EEMN20245F12 831 B4 E BT
MR EHZEZAEFENGETBRRREE
Bemes TEEREBAKAZHEERTE

BPERBEE B ASHMN (BEEE
A) ETEF - RAEZFENTEAENRLID
EARE [ZBERET S EMBRRAENER
EIRDRIEE— TR - REBEBFERAANAE
Min e (EEGFHEIEETRD) ([s7/11) - M
BYR BEEE YEBRTTRAFNHEMERS
BEE-BMBEE RAMESHESRIER
REBEWREMNESFT LIRHER-



Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on the matter.

Key audit matter
BRESEE

Refer to notes 16, 17 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

Y- BERRE EHELSELARETLEERE
FARB B IREZ ML 16 - 17202 2k

We identified impairment of property, plant and equipment,
ROU assets and intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets were significant
and the estimation of their recoverable amounts involve
exercise of significant management judgement. As at 31
December 2024, the net book value of the property, plant
and equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets before
recognition of impairment loss for the year then ended
amounted to approximately RMB869,155,000, approximately
RMB78,469,000 and approximately RMB17,126,000
respectively.

BPEHWE BENMEREG ERESENNELEERE
AR —RIZEAFTE EAVE BELRRE ERESE
EARBEEEREEIBEAN  MHEAIKRLOEEN A5
B REEEEH EAFIE - 20245128318 - BRBE%
HIEFERBEBEMYE BMELREG EREEENNE
REEZFREES B/ ARKS69,155,0007T - AR
78,469,0007T & 49 A R#17,126,0007T °

Management performed assessment at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is any
indication that property, plant and equipment, ROU assets
and intangible assets may be impaired. Should indication
of impairment exist, an impairment assessment will be
performed accordingly.
EBERNSREPRETAMUEEDSE BFEREKH £
RAEEENBIEERALBERENR - HEFERETR
AlgE T ERRER -

AREAIFHERERFANERHE RSHEAE
PrRAaBRANBEARASEENSTH -ZFA
~ERMEFBRGAMBRRALDASREE
TREN ZATEHZFTREHREBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FTNAHBERETSRETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”) and intangible assets

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets of Group's
subsidiaries included:

BMEREEEETT

EEENBRRME BE R
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B

assessing and challenging the Group’s impairment
assessment models. This included challenging
management’s identification of impairment
indicators, as well as considering whether the
discounted cash flow forecasts of the cash
generating units (“CGUs") supported the carrying
values of the CGUs and the relevant non-current
assets belonging to the CGUs. We also considered
whether the Group’s impairment assessment
indicated that a reversal of a past impairment
provision was required;

AR RER BESERRENGEES LB REE
REEEHNRERS URERHREELSU L
PEUHBERERERAREIFREELEBEMUR
BRECESLSEM HBAERDEEREE
BT ER SEENBETHEARATER
B 38 R BB

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue, margins, staff costs and rental and
other lease related expenses, with the historical
performance of these CGUs, management’s
forecasts and new operating lease terms;
BRI RERATRANREZHAZE (B
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Key audit matter

REESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FTNAHERETSRETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”) and intangible assets (Continued)

W BEREE EARRENRERAERE ()

As at 31 December 2024, there existed indications that the
property, plant and equipment, ROU assets and intangible
assets might be impaired. Management has conducted an
assessment of impairment for these property, plant and
equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets to determine
whether the carrying amounts of the assets were higher
than their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the higher of the value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal.

R2024F 124318 BRRBETRYE  WEL&E EHEE
ENREREEAREERBE - EEECHYME KE KK
H EREEENREBIEEREBEETI G UEETEER
HESEmRAKEE&E AIWEEETERNEHRAEBRAR
AREREEXAREFNRSEEE °

The value in use of the CGUs to which these assets belong were
calculated from cash flow projections by using data from the
Group's internal forecasts and as such relies upon management
assumptions, such as the estimates of future performance,
corporate expense allocation and the discount rate.
ZEEEMBReELASUZERABENGTENRER
A EEBEAXEREEMENIRSRETRA - ZFBAMK
BRERBENMRE WARRKRM CERAI DAL
H&Ko

The estimation of future operating performance is dependent
on, amongst others, the industry landscape, overall economic
environment and the competitors in local markets. Management
assesses, on a yearly basis, whether there are events indicating a
potential impairment of the non-current assets.
ARKERBOGATRN (HFBIF)ITEBRE BRLE
RERAMTSHNGEFAEF EREEBFIAERFERHA
EMBEE R e BB ER) FIE o

Based on the assessment, management is of the view that
an impairment loss of approximately RMB130,684,000,
approximately RMB4,343,000 and approximately
RMB4,697,000 should be recognised for property, plant and
equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets, respectively, for
the year.

ERZEiE BEERANFERME KEKZE £/
BEENRETEERD RIERLAR130,684,0007T * 4
AR #4,343,0007T & 49 A K #4,697,0007T K (B E5 18 ©

evaluating the discount rates adopted in the cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against those of
other similar operations;
FRS2BREMBAUXBHBRREXAMERERE
T8 RI 8 52 H BT FE AR A0 BE 3R K

performing a sensitivity analysis of both discount
rates and cash flows and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment charge and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and
ETHRRRLBERENFRE SN LE BRE
ERFMEANFZERREFERMEREREMN
I S5

considering the Group’s disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment, ROU assets and intangible assets,
including the key assumptions and sensitivities
to changes in such assumptions, with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIARBEESE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR e BT e I iREK
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED RIENET @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with WERIEEBEBMNEETR  RIMEEHLEIEY
governance, we determine those matters that were of most ARG EMERERNEBIARAEE A MIBHKE
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements — #2EE:ETEIE o K FIFEZEENHE Pl G L EIA -
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We BRIEEFEER P AT ARBEILFTEIE S EE
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation mMERNBEAT EEABBHERMBETE
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely (EXEEMEKNEALIRESBBEELNA
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be FH R RS TSERBR T ERS P EEZ
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences FIg -

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited SEREETERA
Certified Public Accountants HE DI AN

Rooms 1007-1012 BB

10/F., K. Wah Centre b BEEBE1915%

191 Java Road FEBRAP L

North Point 10#£1007-1012F
Hong Kong

31 March 2025 202543 H31H

Lam Wai Yan MNERF

Practising Certificate Number: P06906 HEFERI : P06906
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERGRAEMSEERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 #H E£2024F12A31BLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARET R ARETTT
Revenue WA 5 2,634,675 2,513,521
Cost of sales $HE KA (2,331,617) (2,200,930)
Gross profit EH 303,058 312,591
Impairment loss under the expected credit ~ BHEEEE ([BHEEFHRE])
loss (“ECL") model, net of reversal BT 2R EEE - 0k #E 7 (1,817) (8,291)
Other gains and losses, net Hib s MR FE 8 (119,872) (66,632)
Other income H b Yy A 9 49,475 42,620
Finance costs B S B AR 12 (4,245) (4,494)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAY (133,856) (141,604)
Administrative expenses TERRAX (120,261) (115,198)
Share of results of associates EIRE 2 N EEE 27,066 21,349
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEECEES 70,294 (242,653)
Profit (loss) before tax B AR I (&) 10 69,842 (202,312)
Income tax expense FTiS it 2 13 (11,066) (24,947)
Profit (loss) for the year AERRM (BR) 58,776 (227,259)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for —~ AEE H 2 H Kz (FIR)
the year
[tems that will not be reclassified HgBTeEdoEE a2
subsequently to profit or loss: BHH:
Fair value change on equity instruments at BARBEFAEMEENE
fair value through other comprehensive (AX)ZBEZIAZAR
income (expense) (“FVTOCI") net of tax 28 (REFE) 3,929 (17,240)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEHEMEENE (FAxX)
for the year 3,929 (17,240)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEEZAEKRE (FAX) B
for the year 62,705 (244,499)
FRZRERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeRaEREAMZENER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 #HZE2024F12831H1EFEE

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARETR ARET T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: T EEFEEGEF (EE)
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIE 2SN 15,317 (231,749)
Non-controlling interests R 43,459 4,490
58,776 (227,259)
Total comprehensive income (expense) THIEEEZEBA ()85 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBEBA 18,096 (248,902)
Non-controlling interests FEIER R 48 44,609 4,403
62,705 (244,499)
Earning (loss) per share FRAER (FBE) RMB A R RMB AR ¥
— basic —HAK 15 0.17 cents 2 (2.59) cents 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5 Mk &R

As at 31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E ARBT T ARETT

Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment e 16 738,471 927,144
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 74,126 98,302
Investment properties REME 18 105,312 3,770
Goodwill EES 19 - -
Intangible assets EEE 20 12,429 18,355
Interests in associates NI 21 112,962 174,052
Interests in joint ventures REELHEZER 22 1,082,948 1,104,454
Deferred tax assets REFIAE E 33 14,658 3,163
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BARBEFAREMEZE KGR Z
EmT A 23 109,933 107,733
Long-term deposits and other receivables & % & K H fth &g I F00E 24 20,438 18,435
2,271,277 2,455,408
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 25 43,729 47,033
Trade, bills and other receivables and B ZEERHMEWRIBAR
prepayments TR IE 26 323,239 195,596
Contract assets BHEE 27 25,496 34,072
Financial assets at FVTPL RARBEFABRCeREE 28 5,393 16,595
Bank deposits RITIF K 29 120,313 211,468
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEIER 29 578,906 393,033
1,097,076 897,797
2%
Current liabilities REBEE ¢ &
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b JE S 5/ 18 30 247,023 274,020 | =
Contract liabilities AHBE 27 250,981 231,903 |
Tax liabilities MEAR 7,705 9,224
Lease liabilities HEARE 31 4,207 3,730
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEHEE——FREEH 32 83,550 81,600
593,466 600,477
Net current assets REBEERE 503,610 297,320
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBAERG 2,774,887 2,752,728

FRERERADA 79
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEeMEBERILIERR

As at 31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E ARBFTT ARETT

Capital and reserves BAR &
Share capital LN 34 564,507 564,507
Reserves fH 1,953,738 1,935,642

Equity attributable to owners AATEBAELER

of the Company 2,518,245 2,500,149
Non-controlling interests FEERAES 48 227,384 218,502
Total equity 48R R 2,745,629 2,718,651

Non-current liabilities FEREBAE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE ——F& I H 32 4,700 175
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 10,470 16,162
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIB A F 33 14,088 17,740
29,258 34,077
2,774,887 2,752,728

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 229 were §F7752298 2 fn 6 B 5K B 120253 A31
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 HEESettERBEETR AU TRERES
March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Mo Shikang Mr. Fan Fangyi
Director Director
EitEEL BHEEEE
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
CREKEDxR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 #H E£2024F12A31BLLFE

Surplus Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Reserve Deemed Capital Revaluation  Valuation Other  Retained Controlling
capital premium reserve surplus fund  contribution ~ contribution reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total

Bx  RHEE  ERER  AARR BBOEE  BEIR  IAEE RABGER NRGERE  ReRE  REERW gt FEREE it
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOD0  RVB00  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWB00
ARBTT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR

(Note 3) (Note b) (Note ) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f)
(Wita)  (Wb) (i) (Wid)  (Wke) (Wi3)
At 1 January 2023 R202351A18 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 225,884 26,628 7121 85,772 20 6,657 733,116 2,749,051 2333713 2,982,424
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - - - - - - 3149 (231,749 4490 (227259
Fair value change on equity instruments 2% (Exf A Et 2Bl 2
at FvTocl BAIEZLAERD = = = = - - - (19,793) - - - (19,793) (102) (19,895)
Income tax relating to fair value change ~ ERAA B AL 2ERE
on equity instruments at FVTOCI JRRIEZDAERD
ARZAER = - - - - - - 2,640 - - - 2,640 15 265
Totel comprehensive (expense) income A% E 28 () Ui
for the year @8 = = = = = = = (17,153) = = (231,749) (248,902) 4,403 (244,499)
Appropriations & - - - - 12423 - - - - - (12423 - - -
Disposal of an investment property HERENE - - - - - - - - (20) - 20 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B A Mg R 2
of subsidiaries RE - - - - - - - - - - - - (19,274) (19,274)
At 31 December 2023 and R2023E12A31A R
1 January 2024 204E1A18 564507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 238,307 26,628 712 68,619 - 6,657 488964 2,500,149 218502 2,718,651
Proft for the year AERER - - - - - - - - - - 15317 15,317 3459 58,776
Fair value change on equity instruments at 272 Bt ARt 2 E A
fTocl LEETAZRAEEY - - - - - - - 3,04 - - - 3,04 1193 4217
Income tax relating to fair value change ~ EEA A B AL2E
on equity instruments at FVTOCI Wi BRIAIRAE
BREMLAER - - - - - - - (245) - - - (245) (3) (288)
Total comprehensive income for the year A% E 2 MAGER - - - - - - - 2719 - - 15317 18,09 44,609 62,705
Appropriations % - - - - 9942 - - - - - (9942) - - -
Disposal of equity instruments at VTOCI - HERA A EF A2 E S
s ©
Yz BETA - - - - - - - (895) - - 895 - - - S =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR - - - - - - - - - - - - (2,551) (2,551) %
Capital reduction from anon-controlling ~ —FMBRE ZFEERRR £
shareholder of a subsidiary ZBAHE - - - - - - - - - - - - (690) (690) -
Capital injection from non-controlling ~~ HEAFEARRELTE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 64 64
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 5 FHB 2 312k ER
of subsidiaries 28 - - - - - - - - - - - - (32,550) (32,550)
At 31 December 2024 20245128310 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 248,249 26,628 mm 70,503 - 6,657 495,234 2,518,245 227,384 2,745,629

RRERERAEA g4
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Notes:

Capital reserve was recognised as a result of acquisition of additional
interest in an associate which became a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the Company's share capital issued as consideration in exchange for the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the
time of the Company’s listing in 1997.

The articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) state that they
should make an appropriation of 10% of their profit for the year (prepared
under generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each year to
the surplus reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of the paid-in
capital. The surplus reserve fund shall only be used for making good losses,
capitalisation into paid-in capital and expansion of their production and
operation.

The deemed contribution was arisen from a fair value adjustment of
imputed interest of a consideration related to acquisition of subsidiaries
from the major shareholder during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Capital contribution was arisen from the discontinuation of electrical
and mechanical engineering service operations at the time of disposal of
Kenworth Group in 2004.

The other reserve of the Group represents the effect arising from the
change in the Group’s equity interest on existing subsidiary without losing
control.

F Ui — B = R B R SME R (B AR — R
BT MiERERGEE -

A BEMEAR R BIRN19974F 1 I A LAY U B it
B AR HERFTETZARRRMHRARE
HZENBAREETZRAEERGEZ =/

ARRBRPEARKNE ([FHE])EMEL 2
B AR EBAERAAIN R BERESEF
BE2ah (REPE-—RARBEFTRUBH) 2
10%BEHZBHAEL BEERBEIPAER
Z50% - BHATELETARBEER Bt
EMAERUAERBRELEEREE -

BAEFERERBE201563A310 ILFE ¥ H
TERRKREMNBRARBHEAZREZGHEENE Z
AVEE X

& 2R B 7020044 () & Kenworth Grouphs £% 1
WETRRMES-

AEBEZ HtFHEAEERREHNBRR 2R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEelHERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 #EHZE2024%F12831HLFE

2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES QT E
Profit (loss) before tax BB AR (E8) 69,842 (202,312)
Adjustments for: NFIEE AR
Share of results of joint ventures EEaEREXE (70,294) 242,653
Share of results of associates FERE & N R EE (27,066) (21,349)
Bank interest income HRATH BB (7.134) (6,520)
Dividend income from an equity instrument BAREFAR 2 E e s TR
at FvT0C| ZREBA - (646)
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL E’A;MEEH\TEET%Z@EEEE‘%ZWE
/N - (277)
Fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL BRAAEFABRZEREELAN
EEE (193) (95)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz iz (7,667) =
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BB RRENRERAEE
equipment and right-of-use assets Ez () Bi (16,321) 2,093
Loss on disposal of an investment property HERBY X ER - 79
Fair value loss of investment properties REMEAREBE - 480
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEEVERE 1,229 1,229
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREETE 52,378 59,080
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 5316 5,300
Depreciation of investment properties REMEME 2,063 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, HWE BERXERRZRERSE
plant and equipment 130,684 63,755
Impairment loss recognised in respect of right-of-use  FL{EFAEEERR 2 MEFE
assets 4,343 1,640
Impairment loss recognised in respect of investment  FLIXBWEER 2 M EEE
properties 6,019 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible HEVEERRLNEESE
assets 4,697 -
Impairment loss in respect of trade and other B 5 RHE M EYRIE 2R EEE
receivables 1,817 8,291
Finance costs IR 4,245 4,494
Operating cash flows before movements in working BELCEDA RERENE
capital 153,958 157,895
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,515 1,892
(Increase) decrease in trade, bills and other B5 EBEREMBUGRIAN R
receivables and prepayments B ()R (13,351) 40,958
Increase in amount due from an associate & M — e B 2 1 S SRR R N (480) =
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint venture R —HEAZREHIE D) &N (96) 9
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from non- JEMIP /8 A Rl FEIE R 25 2 R
controlling interests of subsidiaries () mL (16,021) 8,310
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BNEERD (M) 8,576 (6,765)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 19,078 12,271
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables BSREMERTIECRD)EN (16,614) 8,498
Decrease in amount due to a non-controlling interest B — KB A A FFHIZ #2508
of a subsidiary L (618) (862)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeEBaRER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 #H ZE2024F12A31BLLEE
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2024 2023
2024% 20235
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
k=3 ARETR ARETT
Cash generated from operations REEBRETR 136,947 222,293
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRRBECEMER (28,088) (27,373)
Net cash from operating activities RETBREREFE 108,859 194,920
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BERE (84,127) (98,286)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant WENZE BERRERERAEEE
and equipment and right-of-use assets and ZETEE A REMEYGR
other receivables (5,988) (4,478)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERARBEFAEMEAKR L
EaIA (2,090) (190)
Proceeds from disposals of equity instruments at &AL B AR M2 @A 2
FVTOCI HERRTAZMEHE 4,107 106
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BRRATEF AR eREE 16,595 -
Addition of right-of-use assets EIEREEE (5.311) (2,760)
Investment into a joint venture REBLEZEE (10,200) -
Dividend received from associates Ba 2 WEmME S 35,977 -
Dividend received from a joint venture E—AAECERRARE 51,000 _
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries HENBLRMEHE 38 9,190 _
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE BERRERGERE
equipment 2,406 553
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—BRENEMEIE
property - 211
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERDABEFTAER EREE (5,200) (16,500)
Dividend received on financial assets at FVTPL BARABIMABRZZEBEEEHRE - 646
Interest received on financial assets at FVTPL BAREABR eBEEERFE - 277
Interest received from banks BRI A & 7,134 6,520
Increase in restricted bank balances X RS RITAEERE A (2.413) =
Decrease (increase) in bank deposits RITEZORD (18 m) 93,568 (211,468)
Net cash received from (used in) investing activities REZEFHEUW (FiH) 2B & FE 104,648 (325,369)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank borrowings raised FTERMRITIEE 91,950 105,760
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERTEE (85,475) (109,505)
Capital injection into subsidiaries from non- FERERANEARTE
controlling interests 64 -
Capital reduction of a subsidiary —RIM B AR 2 B AR (690) =
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of ORI INGE R E dopd i ds,
subsidiaries (24,550) (19,274)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEER (4,688) (4,120)
Interest paid EAIFIE (4,245) (4,494)
Net cash used in financing activities REFBMAZHSFE (27,634) (31,633)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReRkReSERELEMORD ) FE
equivalents 185,873 (162,082)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#E & KIREEEER 393,033 555,115
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRAGRAGZEEE  URITEBK
represented by bank balances and cash BE 25 578,906 393,033




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 M35 R

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in Bermuda on 13 November 1996. On 24 April 1997, the
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of the Company’s annual report.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Lofty Key Limited, incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Civios Group Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
and the ultimate controlling parties of the Company are Dr. Mo
Shikang and his daughter Miss Mo Yunbi, both of whom are
the executive directors of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the piped gas
transmission and distribution including the provision of piped
gas, construction of gas pipelines and the operation of city
gas pipeline network; (i) the cylinder gas supply; (iii) the
distribution of gas and (iv) the food ingredients supply and fast
moving consumer goods (“FMCG") business through the chain
stores operation including supermarkets and a convenience
store in the PRC. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 47.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)

a. Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accounts (“HKICPA"”) that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

o Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

o Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior year and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™) (continued)

b. Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS
1, the Group changed its accounting policy for the
classification of borrowings:

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at
the end of the reporting period, the Group has a right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Covenants that the Group
is required to comply with, on or before the end of
the reporting period, are considered in classifying loan
arrangements with covenants as current or non-current.
Covenants that the Group is required to comply with after
the reporting period do not affect the classification at the
reporting date.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification
of liability as current or non-current retrospectively. The
application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (lIHKFRSS”> (Continued)

2. BRI REIERTH)
i EZER ([ &8

BHREER]) @

c¢. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet ¢ CDHEBEERERZFITIRLEBITE
effective 78 B 7 3R & 2E B

AEEYEREFRA TN AT
8] 2 AR A 1B 181 R A R HT AT A B RT
BREVBREER - AEET R
HREM RRETEAMBRESE
AT E R REBEZFH &
RETEBVBRELEANSTHERL
BRENRVBRRDERNERNTE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the current accounting period. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and amendments to HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new and amendments to
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RT3 BHSHZEEBRN
SERHMBEN

° Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial Instruments

. BAVBREERFIRREBNBFHRELENETR (BFIAR) 2 T A
SR ETERIEET

1 January 2026

202651 H1H

. Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

. BEMBHMELENE10E REB G HRIE285 (BFIR)  KEZ HAL FE
ENAlEEP R FHEELERTE

To be determined

N

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards, Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11

ERMBHREER G LR (BFIR) BEH KRG ER 2 ERIF X
H—F115

Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability
ER G ERMNE215E (BRI AR) - S Al L2 4

HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

RN B ImEERIFE8 - fFHK 0925 K K EF

88 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited

2024 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2024)

1 January 2026
202651 H1H
1 January 2025
202541 H1H

1 January 2027
202741 H18



The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the material accounting policy
information sets out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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The material accounting policy information is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy information above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associate and joint venture is described below.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policy information as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

(i)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;
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(i)

(iii)

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:

1)

Piped gas transmission and distribution

The Group supplies natural gas to customers through
pipelines, including both residential households and
commercial and industrial customers. Revenue is
recognised when the piped natural gas is transferred to
and consumed by customers of which the volume of gas
sold is measured by gas meters installed at customer sites.

Construction and installation

The Group provides construction and installation service
under construction contracts with its customers. Such
contracts are entered into for customers to gain access
to the Group's gas pipelines. Revenue is recognised
over time based on the completion status of respective
construction. The construction period is typically less
than one year. The management considers that this
input method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation.

(iy AEEWBOELELINE-—BEE"
MZBEERAEBENRFHEPE
3K

(iy "EENBEOYRELHAEER
BERAZMNEE BAKEHLZSE
STRK B #0815 3K BB A] 58 il 37T RO
Gk

BRI WARERFPERARSHNE MK
745 B0 12 ) 4B B A K — B A RERR

AREBMHER B AT HRIROMA
1) EBEMRHE

AEEEBEENEFHERAR
BREEERMIBXEEP -EEE
ARRBEAETF  UWEFFEMRR
HlgmRARA BEEMRERLTER
BEFRFTHM AR E -

2) IRZK

AEERBEEPEIUANLIES LR
HIBRLERE FTVENEEER
FPEAASENARE B WAKES
B T2 & 58 A 2 e i fE] T DA TERR o
R HﬁLI%JﬁA Fo Efiwut_ﬁ lig
BAEHTERAOS N T EEE
1BE e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(Continued)

3)  Cylinder gas supply

The Group sells liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") to
customers by tank containers, including both residential
households and commercial and industrial customers.
Revenue is recognised when control of LPG has
transferred, being when the LPG has been bulk delivered
to the customers’ specific location.

4)  Gas distribution

The Group sells liquefied natural gas (“LNG"”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) to commercial and
industrial customers. Revenue is recognised when control
of CNG/LNG has transferred, being when CNG/LNG has
been delivered to the customers.

5) Food ingredients supply and FMCG

The Group also sells merchandise to customers through
supermarket and a convenience store. Revenue is
recognised when control of the merchandise has
transferred, being when the goods has been passed to
the customers.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted for on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of various offices, warehouses, equipment and
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Lease for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or fair value as deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, pipelines and other assets in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or deemed
cost of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal and retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties were initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties were measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties were included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

FEDMABERERER  UMEEEE (£
TRERINEA (HREKRA)  BREBEER
HstalERFHR 2 RSREE - bt A £ H
FH - NAEERFEEIRNEREHRRE
Bl Mibst 2 ERES HIRAEEEAR-

WE BERRBINEERRERRFE
% B ER T & E LR R E N D
BHRER WX BWFENREERE L ELHE
EEZEABBIRABEEZ HERR
FIBEREBEERE T AEE N BN

=7
it ©

AEBRNYENFERERER (BREHEEL
WREBFXD)MRE  2RRERHEEL
WREFKRD ZEEERERFHE QA
B L Pl 3 BL

BB REE SR Sy BCRS - A E i AE
SRR E M B REAFNEEREE
El - BEREBEIEHEHELNNIFEEE
BFRD RAD Bt < H A SED R - B
BMEDBERME BE REE-

BEMEARANN LT ER  BRTMER
FEIEFAS - RANIAHER IR - REMERER
REFE-REVFEFAABESEL Z W
HEENEEL BE T ABE-



During the year end 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), the
Group changed the operation of the retailing of merchandises
through supermarkets and a convenience store. The Group
entered into agreements, namely strategic co-operation
agreements, with independent third parties for them to
operate the supermarkets and convenience store, including
the lease of the properties. As a result of the change in use
of these properties that were previously used by the Group
for its operation of the retailing of merchandises through its
supermarkets and convenience store, the Group has transferred
the carrying amounts of these properties from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties during the Year.

The transfers of the above — mentioned properties into
investment properties during the Year resulted in investment
properties becoming a material class of assets of the Group
in the current year. This led the directors of the Company
to reassess the Group's accounting policy for its investment
properties. The reassessment takes into account the nature
and location of the properties comprising the investment
properties of the Group and the high level of estimation
uncertainty involved in the estimation of the fair values of such
properties. Taking these factors into consideration, the directors
determined that the cost model should be applied to this new
material class of assets of the Group.

As the investment property of the Group in the year ended 31
December 2023 was immaterial, the change to the cost model
for investment properties is applied prospectively with effect
from 1 January 2024.

Under the cost model, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

|N FO RMAT'ON (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment properties and intangible assets
(other than goodwiill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

|N FO RMAT'ON (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment properties and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

3 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset (which comprises the
gross carrying amount less any impairment allowance) from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses,
net” line item.
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The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables and bank balances) and other items (contract assets)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets from initial recognition until derecognition.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for the credit
impaired balances and based on provision matrix for the
remaining balances.

For all other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. ERESTTBERER &
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) W T B (48)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)
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(i) Significant increase in credit risk () fEERREZEM
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased FEEERREVIAERAREE B

significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
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initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group AEBETSEMEEMEEER 21
considers both quantitative and qualitative information B A B R B AT N ZE R B AN 5k
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical LA SR RIIEEER -
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into HEgms B EERREEEE

account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed
for ECL on an individual basis);

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset
(which is the gross carrying amount less any impairment
allowance).

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Covenants that the Group is required to
comply with, on or before the end of the reporting period, are
considered in classifying loan arrangements with covenants as
current or non-current. Covenants that the Group is required
to comply with after the reporting period do not affect the
classification at the reporting date.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the Year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit (loss) before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the lease liabilities, and the
related assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “Other gains and losses”.
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Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for
staff in the PRC are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer MPF
contributions and the offsetting mechanism as a funding
mechanism for the LSP obligation and the LSP obligation
is measured on a gross basis, which is not reduced by the
offsetable accrued benefits, as the employer’s rights to those
benefits are recognised as a separate reimbursement asset.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
directors are measured at the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees and directors (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Related parties

A person or an entity is related to the Group if:

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to the Company'’s parent.
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In the application of the Group’s major accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on the historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress are depreciated over their economic useful
lives. The assessment of estimated useful life of an item of
property, plant and equipment is a matter of judgement
based on the experience of the Group, taking into
account factors such as technological progress, changes
in market demand, expected usage and physical wear and
tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long lives of these assets,
changes to the estimates of the useful lives can result
in variations in their carrying amounts and depreciation
charges recognised in respect of the assets. As at 31
December 2024, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment was approximately RMB738,471,000
(2023: RMB927,144,000).
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Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets and investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
exist that may affect the recovery of the asset's carrying
value; (2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, and in the
case of value in use, whether the net present value of
future cash flows are estimated based upon the net cash
inflows expected to be generated from continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including estimation of future cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU")
to which the asset belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test. As at
31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties are approximately RMB738,471,000 (2023:
RMB927,144,000), approximately RMB74,126,000 (2023:
RMB98,302,000) and approximately RMB105,312,000
(2023: RMB 3,770,000) respectively. Impairment loss of
approximately RMB130,684,000 (2023: RMB63,755,000),
approximately RMB4,343,000 (2023: RMB1,640,000)
and approximately RMB6,019,000 (2023: RMB nil) were
recognised for property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment properties respectively during
the Year to the consolidation financial statements of this
annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

(c)

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost with
significant balances or which are credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL. In addition, the Group uses provision
matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of
each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to the changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 36(b) and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.

5. REVENUE

(i)

4.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

LT T EEREZ2EE
IR ()

(c)

RBERIGTENESMEENRAME
EERRE

BEBEBAKBRELEEERENIRE
HERAGENSREESRBHEE
5B 1B AT o o - RSB R B
BEAERTRENE S ERFIEN
BHEEER BHEEEDERAE
BzBEEREOR TEARHEZTMN
BRARB DN EESHAIE KA X
BFZAEMEE - REREHR €5
TEBABERINEHER  TEEH
EHEERNES - A EEEE 2 &
BYHAEFESHR - EEBHEERS
BRAEEZE SN EMEKERE D
BIFE R 3RER A B S R KB 7E36(0) AN
26FF A EE o

WA

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () EFEHNHNBADH
customers
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Types of goods or services BmE R ER
Sales of piped gas BEERREE 1,004,135 1,045,703
Piped gas connection EEMRER 88,441 123,877
Cylinder gas supply TSR R AL FE 677,633 655,574
Gas distribution PRE 5 88 793,395 585,726
Food ingredients supply and FMCG BMIEERE LS 71,071 102,641
2,634,675 2,513,521
Timing of revenue recognition LON 430!
On point in time basis HFEy 2,546,234 2,389,644
On over time basis HHFEL 88,441 123,877
2,634,675 2,513,521
FRERERAF

2024 F R (HE2024F 128310 L EE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

5. RE\/EN U E(Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the segment revenue
amounts disclosed in the segment information.

5. A )

EFEHNNBADH ()

()

EPAHMMBAED FER D RED
U A B B BRE DA T

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Segment revenue 2B UL =
Piped gas transmission and distribution & & A R A2
— Sales of piped gas —BEMAHEE
e Individuals LR EPN 318,409 242,937
e Commercial entities HEER 685,726 802,766
— Piped gas connection — BB AR 88,441 123,877
1,092,576 1,169,580
Cylinder gas supply R R E
— Individuals —fEA 269,975 282,144
— Commercial entities SSE - 407,658 373,430
677,633 655,574
Gas distribution BRR5 8 793,395 585,726
Food ingredients supply and FMCG BRMHERES
— Wholesales —Ht g 16,755 56,286
— Retail of merchandises —ZEERMm 54,316 46,355
2,634,675 2,513,521
All the revenue from contracts with customers are derived EFAANFBERAEREFRE-

from the PRC.
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The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

(a)

Sales of gas and merchandise

For the sales of cylinder gas, a receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued.

For the sales of natural gas, the Group would
require advance payment before the delivery of
gas for certain customers, any shortage against the
periodically actual delivery of the natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days to its customers
for the invoices issued.

The Group sells merchandises directly to retail
customers within supermarkets and a convenience
store. Revenue from sales of goods to retail
customers is recognised when the product is
transferred to the customers upon sales. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchases the goods. The payment is
usually settled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sell merchandises to wholesalers.
Revenue from sales of merchandise to wholesalers
is recognised when the control of the merchandises
has transferred, being when the merchandises
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales
of merchandises not yet delivered to customers
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when goods are delivered
to customers.
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Sales of gas and merchandise (Continued)

For the sales of piped gas, the Group would require
advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual usage of natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its
customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for
future usage of natural gas supplied by the Group.

In addition, the Group requires advance payment
before the usage of the natural gas through prepaid
card for certain household users. The charge of the
actual usage of natural gas will be deducted directly
to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers
can only consume the natural gas up to the balance
of the prepaid card.

Construction

The Group provides gas pipeline connection
construction services under construction contracts
with its customers. Such contracts are entered into
before construction of the gas pipeline connection
begins. The Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs. Revenue from construction services
for gas pipeline connection is recognised over time
using an input method, i.e. based on the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs.
The directors consider that this input method best
depicts the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services and hence is the appropriate
measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under
HKFRS 15 due to its accuracy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVEN U E (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contract with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Construction (Continued)

The Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits before the commencement of
the construction work which will give rise to
contract liabilities until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contracts exceed the amount of the
deposits. The Group is entitled to invoice customers
for gas pipeline connection construction work upon
completion of the construction works. The Group
recognises contract asset for any work performed
in excess of payment from customer for the same
contract. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
upon completion of construction works. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All the contracts for sales of gas and merchandise,
and gas pipeline construction are for original expected
duration of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), being the managing director of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
sold or services rendered which is also consistent with the basis
of organisation of the Group.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H
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The Group currently organises its operations into four operating
divisions, which also represent the operating segments of
the Group for financial reporting purposes, namely (i) piped
gas transmission and distribution; (i) cylinder gas supply; (iii)
gas distribution and (iv) food ingredients supply and FMCG.
They represent four major lines of business engaged by the
Group. The principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

(1)

Piped gas transmission and distribution — sales of piped
gas to end-user households, industrial and commercial
customers and construction of gas pipeline networks
under gas connection contracts;

Cylinder gas supply — sales and distribution of gas using
tank containers to end-user households, industrial and
commercial customers;

Gas distribution — sales of natural gas to industrial and
commercial customers; and

Food ingredients supply and FMCG - wholesales and
retail of merchandise (including but not limited to
rice; meat; fresh food; FMCG) through supermarkets
and a convenience store. The Group entered into
agreements, namely strategic co-operation agreements,
with independent third parties for them to operate the
supermarkets and convenience store, including the lease
of the properties.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the
reportable segments for segment information presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segment for the two years:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Piped gas

transmission
and  Cylinder gas
distribution supply

EERRBE BEMIAHE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR%TR

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

TEPE R (&)
2R R A

UTRAKEMFRZKERD OB Z
WA R BT -

HZE2024512A318 L EE
Food
ingredients
Gas supply and
distribution FMCG Total
BTt
MR # k&S CL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥®TR AR®TR

Segment revenue from external RESMPE P H) 7 ZUA

customers 1,092,576 677,633 793,395 71,071 2,634,675

Segment (loss) profit 2 (B8 ) & A (40,717) 2,247 2,628 2,964 (32,878)
Unallocated income AOBEBA 7,134
Central administration costs ~ FRITHEX (11,214)
Share of results of associates (B & AR ¥4 27,066
Share of results of joint ventures JEfEA B R E ¥4 70,294
Finance cost SRR (4,245)
Unallocated impairment loss of KA EZEWEZ

investment properties RIEER (6,019)
Unallocated gain on disposal of K2 Be it &M% B K

property, plant and equipment X f& R AEEE 2 "

and right-of-use assets Wz 12,037 f_g %‘
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B2 A 2 4tz 7.667

'uE.
Profit before tax BR 4 AT Al 69,842

PFRERERAA 177
2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE)



For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023FE12A310 IEEE

Piped gas Food
transmission ingredients
and Cylinder gas Gas supply and
distribution supply distribution FMCG Total
R e
BEMREE BEERREE MRS RE% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®Tr ARETR
Segment revenue from external 2k B 4MHBE 5 £) 5 S A
customers 1,169,580 655,574 585,726 102,641 2,513,521
Segment profit (l0ss) PERF (EE) 35,661 3,061 4,096 (7,515) 35,303
Unallocated income AARKA 7,646
Central administration costs AR TEL B (9,155)
Share of results of associates ~ FE{fEE & A R4 21,349
Share of results of joint ventures JE{E & & M E¥%E (242,653)
Unallocated impairment loss of &2 E#% - W&E K
property, plant and equipment &% % 2 il (B /& 12 (10,308)
Finance costs IERA (4,494)
Loss before tax BR T AT B 48 (202,312)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated W HEWAEREINDES - M1E
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in EVW*EHE%E‘ FHE -
both years.
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating EMRLEE DI 2 SFTBUR RER A M SRR
segments are the same as the Group's material accounting MsE3FTil 2 AN B 2 EA G ERMAER o

policies described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment result represents the (loss) profit (incurred
by) earned by each segment without allocation of share of
results of associates, share of results of joint ventures, central
administration costs, finance costs and certain other income,
unallocated impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties, unallocated gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and gain
on disposal of subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

DEPEE RS DR (EL) MEUZ (B8 )i
M- My BC B Bt 22 R B RAE BB
BOERSE PRIBFE BBEERANRE
TEMWA - RDEWE  BE RRE R
REMEZRERBR KOELEWE B
FREEmAREREEE 2 Wt UREE
P 8 A A) 2 W as o itk Ty E TR 0 B M R 3R Y
BREBLERRE2HRIFAETA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

I\ [ &2 AR .
SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (Continued) 6 7] ﬁLBE >t (48)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities NTRAEERERREES B EE
by reportable and operating segments. ERBEDH-
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Segment assets PTHEE
Piped gas transmission and distribution BB RE R 800,336 894,918
Cylinder gas supply TSR R AL FE 275,288 253,670
Gas distribution KRR 5 88 34,947 26,103
Food ingredients supply and FMCG BRMHERES 10,817 48,894
Total segment assets DEEEBE 1,121,388 1,223,585
Investment properties "EMEE 105,312 3,770
Interests in associates NELE N T 2z 112,962 174,052
Interests in joint ventures REBREZ#ER 1,082,948 1,104,454
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRApEARMEEKR R TA 109,933 107,733
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 14,658 3,163
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREGs A ABRZe/EE 5,393 16,595
Bank balances and cash RITEBR KRS 699,219 604,501
Dividend receivable from associates FE U S & A BRI AR B 52,179 =
Dividend receivable from a joint venture JE—MHE &R ERE 51,000 =
Other unallocated assets HMEkPREE 13,361 115,352
Consolidated assets IREEE 3,368,353 3,353,205
Segment liabilities DEEE 2
Piped gas transmission and distribution BB R 392,366 376,618 | =
Cylinder gas supply R R R M E 88,932 104,384 | =
N Al [N
Gas distribution R 88 9,481 2,785
Food ingredients supply and FMCG BRMHERES 15,808 38,478
Total segment liabilities nEAELBE 506,587 522,265
Bank borrowings RITEE 88,250 81,775
Tax liabilities HIEAE 7,705 9,224
Deferred tax liabilities REERIBAE 14,088 17,740
Other unallocated liabilities = NN == 6,094 3,550
Consolidated liabilities REBaE 622,724 634,554
FRERERAF

2024 F R (HE2024F 128310 L EE) 129

B




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. TEPER =
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEENREE (&)

= i

2N

E@'&‘ i
B
D
ok

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

Y2Vl BRELNRDBEIEER

3 all assets are allocated to operating segments other than . BRIEEBEE NEE AR 2R RNE
investment properties, interests in associates, interests Bh¥rEZ BAREBEFAHMWE
in joint ventures, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred EhES o ERSTE BERBEE 1%
tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and ALhETABRZEREE -BITHE
cash, dividend receivable from associates, dividend B NIRE  EUINEBEATIIRE - ElR—
receivable from a joint venture, certain property, plant and MEETERE - BTWE BERK
equipment and other receivables; and AR B U R IB SN Fr A B E D

ENETEREDE: &

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . GIRITEE BMEAE BEEHREAE
than bank borrowings, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities EETFHMENZIBEBIN FAEREYH
and certain other payables. EARTEEESH -

Other segment information Hih o &R

Piped gas Food
transmission ingredients
and Cylinder Gas supply and
distribution gas supply distribution FMCG Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BERRHE  BEARLE REA% =NEERES AAE G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBTT ARBT R ARBT R ARBTT
For the year ended HENMENANBLER
31 December 2024
Amounts included in measure  HEA BEADEERHS
of segment profitorlossor ~ EEBHRZEE:
segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% BE R RENE
equipment 36,934 11,490 913 114 2,927 52,378

Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ (FREEENE 1,946 2,934 62 m 102 5316

Depreciation of investment properties & EAEH & - - - - 2,063 2,063

Amortisation of intangible assets ~ ESEEFEE 1,229 - - - - 1,229

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, ~ HENE FE R ER

plant and equipment FREEEZEE (Wa)

and right-of-use assets 13 3,754 - (8,051) (12,037) (16,321)
Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ E41%  BERR &

of property, plant and equipment,  FENE EREEE

investment properties, ight-of-use ~~ REFAERRZ

assets, and intangible assets REEE 117,528 2,281 - (85) 6,019 145,743
Net (reversal of allowances) allowance 512 5 R E fh e 3108

made in respect of trade and other  (EMERE):HE2

feceivables BEER (372) 1,204 1,651 830 (1,536) 1817
Additions in right-of-use assets PERRELE 2,169 11,578 - - 189 13,936
Capital expenditure in respect of ~ BEME HERREL

property, plant and equipment EARX 56,723 29,063 4 1,235 yLY) 87,267
Amounts regularly provided to  EHETEEERKERE

the CODM but not included in B EABERINEE

the measure of segment profit AP EERL R K2

or loss or segment assets: SE:

Interests in associates NN 3 - 112,962 - - - 112,962

Interests in joint ventures READE 2R 1,082,948 - - - - 1,082,948

Share of results of associates AN - 21,066 - - - 21,066

Share of results of joint ventures ~ ElFAELEER 70,294 - - - - 70,294

130 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2024 Annual Report (For the Year Ended 31 December 2024)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

a1 <A\
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TENE
Other segment information (Continued) PTHEERERE (&)
Food
Piped gas ingredients
transmission and Cylinder Gas supply and
. distribution gas sufply distribution FMCG Unallocated Consolidated
BEMRBE  BRMRLE RRAE RIEERES AR aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000

AE#TR NS ARETT AR®TT NS ARETR

For the year ended HEUBENANBLER
31 December 2023

Amounts included in measure  FEABEAAFRAHA
of segment profit or loss or BERTRZER:

segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plantand 913 BERZENE

equipment } 39,302 14,988 - 4371 413 59,080
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ (FREEENE 1,781 2,874 - 544 101 5,300
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EHEREE 1,229 - = - = 1,229
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,  HEN% R RR(E

plant and equipment and right-of- R BEAE 2 BB

Use assets (ht) 1379 999 - (285) - 2,093
Loss on disposal of an HERANE /B

investment property - - - 79 - 79
Impairment loss recognised in respect 4% - FifE R EL R

of property, plant and equipment  EAEED JAEBE

and right-of-use assets \ 44,825 9,329 - 933 10,308 65,395
Net allowance (reversal of HEAREMEUFE

allowances) made in respect of (BERE) L RETE

trade and other receivables } (1,058) 2,806 (110) 3,828 2,825 8,291
Additions in right-of-use assets NEFREAE 10,629 1,052 = - 205 11,906
Capital expenditure inrespectof ~ BENE BERREZ

property, plant and equipment AR 60,149 42,454 - 2922 1,156 106,681
Amounts regularly provided to ~ EHRAIEEEREERE

the CODM but not includedin R EAPEANEE

the measure of segment profit 2 BEAER Y EH K2

or loss or segment assets: SR
Interests in associates N PNIPA S - 174,052 - - - 174,02
Iterests in joint ventures REEPXZER 1,104454 - - - - 1104450 e
Share of results of associates RIERENARE - 21,349 - - = 1309 B B
Share of results of joint ventures ~~ ERABL£EE (242,653) - - - - 04265 ks

©
'uE.

Geographical information EE R
All of the Group's revenue was generated in the PRC (place REERERATRFAER (REEBEESK
of domicile of the Group entities that derived the revenue) A2 TFh 2 ) B4 kA S B FEB0% M 3E
and over 90% of the Group's non-current assets were also RBEEMINFE (REERBBEEZEE
located in the PRC (place of domicile of the group entities that E2IFMHEL) o A - i 27 [R & H o
hold such assets). Accordingly, no geographical information is
presented.
Information about major customers FEEFEHR
No individual customer of the Group had contributed sales of REEFE  SENEE 2 @REF R
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years. ERBEARNEEERANI0% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

7. IMPAIRMENT LOSS UNDER THE ECL 7. RHIEEBIEEAT =
BAERE R - HIEREE

MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Impairment loss, net of reversal R AEEE - MR E D

Trade receivables from contracts REEFE K2 ERGIA
with customers

Other receivables H b fE WK IR

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 3.

(2,078) 639
261 (8,930)
(1.817) (8,291)

H it iz I 5 18 75 48

2024
20244
RMB’000

2023
20234
RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and & ¥ % - BB K 3% 5 DA N {5 B #E

equipment and right-of-use assets BEZ W= (BE) 16,321 (2,093)
Loss on disposal of an investment property  H&REWE 2 E1E - (79)
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL AR {ETABRHZ S RHEE

(note 28) A EWE (HiFE28) 193 95
Net foreign exchange gain P& 5 W e H 58 1,690 1,320
Fair value loss on investment properties TEYERN AR (KE18)

(note 18) - (480)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) LEHB ARz W (FFE38) 7,667 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AT S IEER 2 RMEEE

— Property, plant and equipment —M% WEREE (130,684) (63,755)

— Right-of-use assets —EREEE (4,343) (1,640)

— Investment properties —REMHE (6,019) =

— Intangible assets —EEEE (4,697) =

(119,872) (66,632)
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

OTHER INCOME 9. Hbg A
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETTT

Bank interest income HRITHE A 7,134 6,520
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL 2 A R Bt ABm SREE 2
A EHA - 277
Rental income e A 5,294 3,293
Dividend income from an equity instrument AR EREEAAHEMEE
at FVTOC| Wz #EmTAZREBA - 646
Repair and maintenance services income  #{&RE RIS WA 2,470 57
Sales of gas appliances, net SHEMR SR FE 18,614 20,211
Incentive subsidies (note) BN AL () 783 2,081
Underfloor heating engineering and pipe  H8& T12 & & & kiE i A
renovation income 9,520 1,705
Others HAith 5,660 7,830
49,475 42,620
Note: B aE
The amount mainly represents incentives from the government ZEBERBETEBRNRBER T AREEESH

authorities in the PRC related to the Group's operations N5 FE {7 R 45 2 B2«

without any conditions.

B

=
I0
v
=
<
=
'S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

10.PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10.R 8 anaA (EE)
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Directors’ emoluments (note 11) E5Me (MIEE11) 6,124 6,030
Other staff costs (excluding directors) HMETIKAN (TBEES)

— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ — ¥ & 2R M EY IS 157,053 141,413

— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRTEFET 85K

contributions 23,264 20,931

Total staff costs @8 TRA 186,441 168,374
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MR AR 2778 kA& 2,278,411 2,140,039

— Costs of gas purchased — R R RIE A AN 2,107,415 1,952,727

— Costs of merchandise sold —EERmAA 59,624 87,055

— Production costs —BUER AR 111,372 100,257
Auditor’s remuneration %S0 AD B &

— Audit services —BZRH 1,000 1,000

— Non-audit services —EBZRE - =
Depreciation / amortisation ik V1

— Property, plant and equipment (note 16)  —#1% &&= M & & (Mi5E16) 52,378 59,080

— Right-of-use assets (note 17) —(FREEE (ME17) 5.316 5,300

— Investment properties (note 18) — &M ([:E18) 2,063 —

— Intangible assets (note 20) —EmEEE (Mi5E20) 1,229 1,229
Contract costs recognised as expense in MRREBESEOERA

respect of gas connection construction FRX & 8K (T AHE

contracts (included in cost of sales) K AS) 53,206 60,891
Commission expense HefX 18,484 20,365
Entertainment expense BERZ 5,370 5,656
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NESEZHMERANVES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES HENE T
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (a) EECEE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 8 (2023: 8) DATEER8R (2023 : 8% ) EE 2
directors were as follows: BT
Performance
related
Directors’ Salaries, incentive Retirement
fees allowances  payments benefits Total
RENE
EERE He BE RBAEX BRINER &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARETR AR®TRT AR®TR

(note)
()
For the year ended B £2024512A318
31 December 2024 JI:3:5
Executive directors: HTES:
Dr. Mo Shikang R EET - 1,547 220 - 1,767
Mr. Zhang Hesheng R4 K& - 1,306 172 - 1,478
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHREE - 703 26 38 767
Miss Mo Yunbi REE/ME - 703 71 51 825
Ms. Li Fun Replen FELL - 736 - 17 753
Independent non-executive directors: B IFFHITES:
Mr. Liu Junmin AEREE 178 - - - 178
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHE 178 - - - 178
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming REALE 178 - - - 178 EET
.g E(‘
534 4,995 489 106 6,124 uE_
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FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NESZMERANES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES HFMHE T =
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) (a) EEz#< (8)
Performance
related
Directors’ Salaries, incentive  Retirement
fees  allowances payments benefits Total
REIH
EEme He R  RBAR RIKEF A

RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTE ARBTIT ARRTT ARETR

(note)
(BtaE)
For the year ended B £2023512A318
31 December 2023 LFE
Executive directors: HTES:
Dr. Mo Shikang Rt EET - 1,534 214 = 1,748
Mr. Zhang Hesheng SR LA - 1,296 165 = 1,461
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHREE - 698 23 34 755
Miss Mo Yunbi REZ/NMA - 698 67 51 816
Ms. Li Fun Replen FELL - 706 - 16 722
Independent non-executive directors: BV FEHITEE
Mr. Liu Junmin BHREE 176 - - - 176
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHE 176 - - - 176
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming REALE 176 - - - 176
528 4,932 469 101 6,030
Note: B &
The performance related incentive payments were determined REEARBNRD2EEE ZEAARSE
by reference to the individual performance of the directors and B WKARAFGMNEESRESEH
approved by the remuneration committee of the Company and the AE o
Board.
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11.DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during both years.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, all are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the above disclosures.

12.FINANCE COSTS

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

NEZEZMMERENES
FENE T »

(a) EZzHME (8)

EXFATRATEEME NEBREE
BARBRAEEER 2 IRF -

EXFARBIFNTEEME AR
BEERARAERTZ R -

RREFER TEBLEETHRESL
FAERELMHM LB AEEH]
BEREENMEESRSI AR
AREER ORI RREBEE -

(b) EfuEZSHFMAL

AEERUSERHFEMALREARRE
E-EHMEER EXXKE-

12. Bt 7 AR 2N

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREEF T
2%
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFRE 3,206 3,426 [
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 1,039 1,068
[N
4,245 4,494
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2023

2023%F
RMB’000
ARMET T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"): PEMBEMEH ([REREB)
- Current tax — BN AR 1A 22,710
— (Over) under provision in prior years —BAEFE GRERE) BETR 934
— Withholding tax (note) —JFEHF (H3E) -
Deferred taxation (note 33) EERIIA (M15E33) 1,303
24,947

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profit derived in Hong Kong for both years.

The EIT rates applicable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries ranged
from 15% to 25% (2023: 15% to 25%).

Following the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in Western Region
which was promulgated by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC in 2020, certain subsidiaries which are
operating in the Western China region are granted a concessionary
tax rate of 15% by the local tax bureau. The validity period of this tax
policy is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030.

In accordance with the announcement no. 12 of 2023 regarding
(ARE— PR IVHMECENEBIRFPERAATBERR
B4 (“Announcement on Tax and Fee Policies for Further
Supporting the Development of Small Profit Making Enterprises
and Individual Industrial and Commercial Household*") issued by
the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration, for
the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2027, in respect
of the portion of taxable income for the year derived by the
Group's small profitmaking enterprises, the annual taxable income
shall be included in its taxable income at the reduced rate of 25%,
with the applicable enterprise income tax rate of 20%.

Note:

Withholding tax is calculated at 5% (2023: nil) on the dividend income
received from the subsidiary in the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only

AR AR B W B E 1 BN A B E LA
JERBU A - SR W MR S B BRI E
BRISHIR B R -

AEBHREKMBEARIAEBCEMSHHRE
NF15%Z25% (20234 : 15%Z%25% ) °

BEFEARANBEREEMKELZE
BH2020F B4 ) (FaEfh @SB EEXE
8% - EPIEL MR B M E D T AR A ES
EHRIEHERRL TAI5% BRI R - B
Wi 55 898 X B 5202141 B 18 220304
128318 -

BEVBERIRERBERREMRZ NS
2023F F125% R E— P HF M E
MEBIHFPFEREBHERENRAS) -
R2023F1 818 E2027%128318 It 55
- AR B/ NE R (b 3 E R N ERR
WAL TS @ FERERTBAEIZFAR
FRE25% T AE BRI - BB AT
PR EE20% °

GEE

FEFNFIE B B B A R B 2 R B R A 2 5%
(20234 : )T & -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13.Fr BB =
The charge for the Year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) REFRAXELRE Em & E 2 KRR
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and KGR B RDR A (BB BERNOT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Profit (loss) before tax LA R A (E1E) 69,842 (202,312)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% 2783t BT 15 51 B R 25%

(2023: 25%) (20234 : 25% )5t & 17,461 (50,578)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures G & & EELE 2 MK E (17,574) 60,663
Tax effect of share of results of associates BB E AR EE G E (6,767) (5,337)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose I~ A] FAFE WA Z Tt 75 5 £ (3.064) (2,726)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax “RA] HIFi 5z 2 B 75 2 &

purpose 18,703 22,071
Tax effect of profit which are under tax MIBRRIE Nadl 2 M E

concessions (16,893) (17,738)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEE BB LE 9,555 9,607
Effect of temporary differences not RERERHER LT E

recognised 11,994 6,277
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE (BERE)BETR (407) 934
Other H At (1,942) 1,774
Tax charge for the year FABIBS H 11,066 24,947
Note: B 5
The tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%) represents EIT which is applicable to BEMEHRRE2%EARNEBHEHEAFER
most of the Group's operations in the PRC for the Year. B2 KRB 9 375 (20234 : 25% ) © P

3 &=

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RMERR AEEHEBARDARIBEEBE E
unused tax losses of approximately RMB205,745,000 (2023: # AR #205,745,0007T (2023F : AR ¥ |5
RMB304,166,000) available for offset against future profits. 304,166,0007T ) A] A AR 85 2K 0@ Al o A
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the BORMETRR &N I 2L B E R
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. These RIELEHIBEE - ZZ A BERTEBEKR
unrecognised tax losses will expire in various dates up to 2029 TR B fE)m  HEZ=20294 (20234 : 2028
(2023: 2028). ) e
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= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

14.DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting year.

EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earning (loss) per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

Basic earning (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the
profit (loss) attributable to the owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

14.5% B

15.

RE E20244F M2023F12A831HIEFE -
BMERAR R EBBRKRERS  SRIER
IRATRR B B 3RS R UAZKR - N E R R
ERRRE °

FRER (FE)
KRB NS RERRF (B
RIS TR

BERERAN (BER) DA RBES AR
Ead (BR)FUAARFEAD ETEER
ZINEFIBGETH -

Year.
2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AREEF T
Earning (loss) BR (&EHR)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to KABHEAR NEIAEE &
the owners of the Company and for the (B8 RAEFETRER
purpose of basic earning (loss) per share BH (&E8) 15,317 (231,749)
2024 2023
20244 20234
Number of shares B & H

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earning (loss) per
share

No diluted earning (loss) per share is presented for both years
as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue.
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.M % -BENZE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand Transportation  Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery Pipeline vehicles in progress Total
BE B RE

BF  NFKE RMOERE HRRER EE  EWEF  ERIE git
RVBO00  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB00
ARBTT  ARETL  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AREBTR

CoST i
At 1 January 2023 R0BE1A18 2193803 12518 2734 104411 905,480 58,259 27881 1429719
Additions HE 128 3805 2,089 18827 37,929 6,636 13,147 106,681
Transfer gi - - - 4364 13,484 - (17,848) -
Disposalsfritten off HE /M (149) - @) 87) (2,854) 2,174) = (6,061)
At 31 Decerber 2023 R03E128318 317,903 16,343 29,428 126725 954,039 62,721 2,18 1530339
Additions HE 2,158 306 3,055 28,531 834 883 44300 87,267
Transfer 1 15,988 2,755 1,500 3,955 = = (24,1%) =
Transfr to investment properties ~ BRERENE (103171) 3810) - . 5 - - (106981)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38)  (HEMBRE ([i338) (7.988) - (152 (5,016) (561) (670) (294) (14,681)
Disposalsiwritten off e /H% (6,975) (126) (878) (3,976) (2.921) (6,909 (749) (22,534)
At 31 Decerber 2024 1045128318 217915 15468 32,953 150,219 951,391 63,225 039 1473410
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z:HTEREEFE

AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2023 ’03F1518 73,789 12510 17510 16803 289,3% 13653 - 483,641
Provided for the year KERAR 10563 561 1532 10,541 29,974 5,90 - 59,080
Eiminated on disposalsfuritten off (1% /4 (131) - ) (760) (848) (1,535) = (3.281)
Impairment et} 13739 3% IE; 3315 5117 785 31 63,755
At 31 December 2023 103E128318 97,960 13466 19,108 59,919 363,599 18812 331 603195 [P
Provided for the year REERE 7208 1,366 1,254 9,161 29311 4078 - ORI S &
Transfer to investment properties ~ EAZRENE (20418) (1,497) - - - - = (21.915) E
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) EME A (Fiz38) (7.930) - (150) (4352) (44) (667) (136) (13683 =
Eliminated on disposalshuritten off ~ Hi% /4 #4413 (5,013) (125) (606) (3310) (#10) (6,256) - (15,720)
Impairment W 18479 m 841 20,600 87,767 1478 1,291 130,684
At 31 Decernber 2024 1045128318 90,280 13438 20,447 82,018 479,805 47,445 1,486 734,939
CARRYING VALUES i
At 31 Decernber 2024 045128318 121,635 2,030 12,506 68,201 471,566 15,780 40753 738471
At 31 December 2023 R0B3E128318 219,943 2871 10,320 66,306 500,440 13,909 2,809 927,144
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Notes:

At the year end of the 2024, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets which are used in the Group’s
segment of piped gas transmission and distribution, in view of
the unfavorable operating results from the segment. As part
of the impairment assessment of the non-current assets in this
segment, management estimated the recoverable amounts of
the below companies, each of which constituted an individual
CGU and whose main business is provision of piped gas, to be
lower than their carrying amount. Based on the results of the
impairment assessment, the management estimated impairment
loss amounts were approximately RMB108,188,000 for property,
plant and equipment, approximately RMB4,643,000 for right-of-
use assets and approximately RMB4,697,000 for intangible assets
in order to write down the carrying amounts of these CGUs to
their recoverable amounts, which were estimated based on their
value in use. The impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in these CGUs in the
Year was due to the surge in the purchase prices of natural gas.
However, the natural gas prices charged by the CGUs to their
customers could not rise at the same time and same rate as
the purchase price increases as the sales price of natural gas is
regulated by the local government. The recoverable amounts of
the major CGUs have been determined based on the value-in-use
calculation using the following assumptions in the below table:

CcGU
REELEN

Recoverable amount BEEk:

Impairment for property, plantand 1% BERZE
equipment RME

Impairment for ROU EREEERE

Impairment for intangible assets EWEAERE

Period of cash flow projection BenEmis

Revenue growth rate within TEHRNZPAERE
5-year period

Growth rate beyond RTFEHEIERE

5-year period

Discount rate 8RR &

P & -

Fuping Civigas
ETHRRE
RMB’000
ARBTR

40,133

5,450

5
4.0%-8.5%

1.16%
11.25%

MR2024F K - ER B EMREBIR D BT
Pl sdE - KRR ESEETRET G
AT AEEZ D BAAYE  BE R &
B ERREEREFEENKESEE -
ER%Z D MBIEREE ERMETIEH—
D BEEREEMF TRAR (FEEK—E
BRI REeELEBEM HEXTBEKARME
ERR) MR E RN ERAE - RIK
BENLER BEEGTME  BE K&K
BUAREREEENRETLEENRER
BEED R AARK108,188,0007T * 4
AR #4,643,0007T & 4 A K #4,697,000
TL A E IR S E A B AR EE KR
ZHBEEFERAEEGBTHITKRESEE R
AEE ZERSEEBENNME  BE KR
RIBEURERAREEAREREENRE
TTHRRARBEERNAA -AM AR
AAREEXHTBRNESE HREEE
B AIEF P YA KA B S A B
BEERKLREREBEE T ZRECELS
MR E S B ER TRASA T RE
RIEEHREEFEET:

Zhenfeng Gas Chongging Civigas
HERR EETRMR
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T
3,769 101,839
30,007 72,731
4,126 517
4,697 -

5 5

-4.9%-7.9% 0.7%-9.5%

1.16%
11.25%

1.16%
11.25%



Notes: (Continued)
Fuping Civigas

Fuping Civigas, located in Fuping County, is primarily engaged in
pipeline gas business. The projected revenue growth rate of 4.0%
in the first year of the projection period of reflects a stable increase
driven by a customer base primarily consisting of residential users, while
higher projected revenue growth rates in the subsequent years in the
projection period reflect the expectation of expanding demand from
industrial users.

Zhenfeng Gas

Zhenfeng Gas, located in Zhenfeng County, is primarily engaged in the
distribution of liquefied natural gas. The projected decline of 4.9% in
revenue in the first year of the projection period reflects the expected
impact of loss of two major industrial users as customers, though a
recovery is expected in subsequent years as the subsidiary transitions to
pipeline gas business.

Chonggqing Civigas

Chongging Civigas, located in Chongging City, is primarily engaged in
pipeline gas business. The projected revenue growth rate of 0.7% in
the first year of the projection period reflects the impact of losing one
industrial user and the limited short-term growth in the region, while
higher projected growth rates are expected in the subsequent years to
reflect the continued development of its value-added services.

There is no quoted price in active market for the above mentioned
CGUs, and in the opinion of the directors of the Company there
is no basis for making a reliable estimate of the price at which an
orderly transaction to sell the CGUs would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Further, the CGUs are used by the Group in its continuing operations,
its value comes from the revenue it earns in future net of any
associated costs or any savings which the asset causes. Hence, value in
use has been adopted to assess the recoverable amount of each of the
CGUs. Value in use refers to the net present value generated from an
asset/CGU. This model focuses on the cash flow generation when used
by the owner, not the purchase value.

As mentioned above, in view of the unfavorable operating results
shown by the segment of piped gas transmission and distribution,
the main underlying reason for changes in the value of the inputs
and assumptions from those previously adopted for the impairment
assessment of the CGUs engaged in piped gas transmission and
distribution business is the change in revenue growth during the
projection period.

BYeE: (#8)
EFHRRR

ETPRARURE LS TEREEENRE
15 R MM E —FRARAERES40% R
REIEREETAPAXNZT S HHES R ESL
£ MBAHERBENRRKRAEREE ML
ERBTEAPHERTEHRAH AL -

HERE

HEMRURNELEH TE2RERERARD
88 o B HIR 35 — F IR ATRA T FE4.9% R K &
MRXEETXAPEFPONRARE HHNIHES
REMEEBMREBEL BRHENERBFE
o

EBTRBR

BEETRMAMNREET T2REEBMRE
%o FRAHMNE —FIRARAERETR0.7% R
MAE—RTERAPAZREMERARNT
2B HE R B EFENTRRIE R RGIE I AR
R E BB BRI 45 AR B /R o

PR e ELEMILERRTSHE  ARFTE

R WEEERE WA SEAFT M52 REAER
TR TRFERHARETEFRZHERE
BBt REEEBM B AEENERFE
REEBHER - EREERRNEARRREZ IR
A IR AT AR B PR A % B EE P e R 2 £
AoEl RMEREBEATESREELEM
ZAKNESE - ERAEEEEE ReELEM
PREAZFRE HRBASNESARRAEE
EZRER - MIEEE(EE-

kX Pt - ERE BIARBRE XD MR
MZREXRG RS EENRBERTZRE
EEBNZRENE HRABEZBERRR
BRERNEBLEHNTIZHRERE BTN
HARAE Rz &8 -



Notes: (Continued)

(b)

At the year end of the 2024, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets which are used in the Group’s segment
of cylinder gas supply, in view of the unfavorable operating
results from the segment. As part of the impairment assessment
of this segment, management estimated the recoverable
amounts of the below companies, each of which constitutes
an individual CGU and whose main business is provision of
cylinder gas, to be lower than their carrying amounts. Based
on the results of the impairment assessment, the management
estimated that provision of impairment amount of approximately
RMB18,816,000 for property, plant and equipment, and reversal
of impairment amount of approximately RMB300,000 for right-
of-use assets in order to write down the carrying amounts of
these CGUs to their recoverable amounts, which were estimated
based on their value in use. The impairment loss of the property,
plant and equipment in these CGUs are mainly due to operate
the industry in which they are highly competitive, and these
CGUs have small market share with low gross margin. The
recoverable amounts of these major CGUs have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculation using the following
assumptions in the below table:

Kunming Shengjian

CGU Hengtong Dali Civigas
REELEN ERARER RERRAR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETR
Recoverable amount ThELE 11,353 -
Provision (reversal) of impairment for - 413 % K ik /s
property, plant and equipment HE(RE) 1,348 10,555
Provision (reversal) of impairment  §EFEZE R (WE)
for ROU - -
Period of cash flow projection ~~ B&REEHH 5 5
Revenue growth rate within RERNRMAERE
5-year period 10%-10.86% 8.54%-8.93%
Growth rate beyond RESEERR
5-year period 2% 2%
Discount rate BRX 11.25% 11.25%

B eE: (#8)

(b)

MR2024F K - ERREE R T E D AR
B EE - AN R EEDEITRERTE -
LA A BZ D ST R K EE
LREAREENAIKESRE -EAZD
BEEREFNHH -0 BEEED G
THlAR (FEBK—EEBREELE
- EXBEHAREEERR) M kE
SHRENEREE - BERETGEER &
EEGYE BELSEBZRERES
A B ANRE18,816,0007T LA K f# FHHEA
EZRERDeEL A ARK300,0007T
N ZERSEABUNERERRER
BEBEFEAEARMGTNAIKESE 255
CEABENNDE BERIEORES
BEERRELLMETERFRZ A
ZERCELEBNNMSHER) £
ERR - ZEXTBHSEABEMNIKE
SEIER TRAHA TREREFEHE
EFfEETE:

Tianjin Tianjin
Civigas Tianjin Binhai Ji County
Heng'an Civigas Civigas
REHRER REERTRAR RERERRAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETR ARBT R
- - 10,916

155 9,327 (2,569)

- 344 (644)

5 5 5

5% 5% 5%

2% 2% 2%
11.25% 11.25% 11.25%



Notes: (Continued)
Kunming Shengjian Hengtong

Kunming Shengjian Hengtong, located in Kunming City, Yunnan
Province, is primarily engaged in the sales of industrial gases. The
projected revenue growth rate reflects the expectation of a recovery in
industrial activity in the PRC and the corresponding expansion of the
industrial gas market.

Dali Civigas

Dali Civigas, located in Dali City, Yunnan Province, is primarily engaged
in the sales and distribution of cylinder gas. The projected revenue
growth rate reflects its transition from the dimethyl ether market to
LPG, and the ongoing market expansion through new station openings
and low-price strategies.

Tianjin Civigas Heng’an, Tianjin Binhai Civigas and Tianjin Ji
County Civigas

Tianjin Civigas Heng'an, Tianjin Binhai Civigas, and Tianjin Ji County
Civigas, all located in Tianjin, are primarily engaged in gas cylinder
inspection and the sales and distribution of cylinder gas respectively.
The projected revenue growth rates reflect stable market conditions
and aligns broadly with the projected GDP growth of the PRC.

There is no quoted price in active market for the above mentioned
CGUs, and in the opinion of the directors of the Company there
is no basis for making a reliable estimate of the price at which an
orderly transaction to sell the CGUs would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Further, the CGUs are used by the Group in its continuing operations,
its value comes from the revenue it earns in future net of any
associated costs or any savings which the asset causes. Hence, value in
use has been adopted to assess the recoverable amount of each of the
CGUs. Value in use refers to the net present value generated from an
asset/CGU. This model focuses on the cash flow generation when used
by the owner, not the purchase value.

As mentioned above, in view of the unfavorable operating results
shown by the segment of cylinder gas supply, the main underlying
reason for changes in the value of the inputs and assumptions from
those previously adopted for the impairment assessment of the CGUs
engaged in cylinder gas supply business is the change in revenue
growth during the projection period.

BYeE: (#8)
ERARER

ERATREAMNEREAREAT T2HRETX
Wﬁiﬁﬁ TR AE R R RIS R T X5 8)
EEER TEMRMIGEBRRAEL-

REHFRRR

REHFRRRAMNREFERED T2 FER
MRHE R D AR AERERREF —F
BE T35 MR L AR R TR E A - LAK B B R R
R R EREETHETISER -

REPREZ RBEBTRAERKZHHH
RBRE

REPRER REEEHRMARRZHE S
BRI RRET DR E2RERMRER R
HEE AR & R 8 - R A R X RIS E

M WEABEAENEELEERKNE—
B o

FARSELABNWERRBTNISRE  NARE
ERR WEEELHAEGATS2EEER
THATRFERMARETAEFRSHEEE
WEWEMWﬁiF$$4E$EIKﬁHﬁ
R R EEERRNEAR KRR K
I AR AN BR AL A AR B A AN 3l 5% B 72 P O 2 B
% Im RMEREEAFESREEEEM
ZAINE G - EAEBEREE  ReEEEM
PELZFRE HRBAUSNERALARE
EzBEeR MIEEEEE
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IREEE RURFREMABEEXB RS
FEEMZM%&% Hg ABig 2 BEEBRR
BRERNEREE EWEEW@%I RIER
HARARE Rz &



Notes: (Continued)

(@}

At the year end of the 2023, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment assets
which are used in the Group's segment of piped gas transmission
and distribution, in view of the unfavorable operating results
from the segment. As part of the impairment assessment of
these assets belonging to this segment, management estimated
the recoverable amount of Fuping Civigas CGU, whose main
business is provision of piped gas in Fuping County and is a
significant CGU in the piped gas transmission and distribution
segment, to be lower than its carrying amount. Based on the
results of the impairment assessment of the Fuping Civigas
CGU, the management estimated the recoverable amount of the
CGU based on its value in use for comparison with the carrying
amount of the CGU, which comprised of property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB82,030,000. The recoverable
amount of the CGU based on its value in use was estimated
to be approximately RMB37,399,000 as at 31 December 2023.
Thus an impairment loss of approximately RMB44,631,000 was
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2023 to write down the carrying amounts of the
items of property, plant and equipment belonging to the CGU
to their recoverable amounts. The impairment of these assets in
the year ended 31 December 2023 was due to the surge in the
purchase prices of natural gas. However, the natural gas prices
charged by the CGU to its customers could not rise at the same
time and same rate as the purchase price increases as the sales
price of natural gas is regulated by the local government. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on
the value-in-use calculation using the following assumptions:

Period of cash flow projection

Growth rate within 5-year period in
the financial budgets approved by
the management

5 years
6.4%-7.4%

Growth rate for extrapolation of cash 1.7%
flows beyond 5-year period
Discount rate 11.5%

B eE: (#8)

(0)

MR2023F K - ERE B A& LD SRR
B EE - AN R EEDEITRERTE -
DA AEBZYBAAYE BB K&
ENAINESE - ERZD BBZEE
EREFHEN—HD EBREBEATETF
PRASEABNMN (HEBEEBARNEF
SZIREEERR BATERRBED 3
MEBEARESELENMN)N A K E S FEER
HEEE REEFPRESELESEUDN
BEFHER EREBREEGEHAEER
STREEABEMMT KBS UEERS
EXBUMNEAE (BEDE BER&
5 #) A R #82,030,0007T ) 3 1T LL & o
2023F 128318 BRIBEEFEAEETEN
BeEABUMAIKREDSEGFOAEAR
#37,399,0007T ° A It IR & 2023412
A31BIEFEMNGEBET RRRERE
#) NR#44,631,00000 A BRIZE E
EEBEMHYE BERZEEENEREE
WO ZE B T Uk Bl £ 58 - B Z=2023F12 A31
AEFE ZSEEBENHRAARE
BEMAF AT HRKAREBIZE K
[FEEE - NIREELE BN MERS WERA
RAREREXEEE BRE_ERERE
B-REELEMARIIRE 58 THE RN
THRIABEEHAEEFEEE:

5472 788 5 54

TIEEMEZTEEE 6.4%-7.4%
AFHAZERER

AFHRE 2 R = 1.7%

BRI = 11.5%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

At the year end of the 2023, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets which are used in the Group’s segment of
cylinder gas supply, in view of the unfavorable operating results
from the segment. As part of the impairment assessment of this
segment, management estimated the recoverable amounts of
the below companies as individual CGUs whose main business
is provision of cylinder gas to be lower than their carrying
amounts. Based on the results of the impairment assessment,
the management estimated that impairment amounts of the
CGUs were approximately RMB7,689,000 for property, plant
and equipment, and approximately RMB1,640,000 for right-of-
use assets in order to write down the carrying amounts of these
CGUs to their recoverable amounts, which were estimated based
on their value in use. The impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in these CGUs are mainly
due to operate the industry in which they are highly competitive,
and these CGUs have small market share with low gross margin.
The recoverable amounts of these CGUs has been determined
based on the value-in-use calculation using the following
assumptions in the below table:

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12A31H

16.9% - BEKRE =

BYeE: (#8)

(d)

MR2023F K - ERER MR EED BT
B EE AN R EEDEITRETE
ST AR EBMZ OB YE  BE L&
HURGERAEEENTRESRE - 1ERZ
DEEERETEN—HD EBEER
AT AR (EAEBIBREEASMN H
FEEBARBRERR) M]0S5
BEREEREE - BRERETHER SEE
BB SEEEMNME BB K& E N
LEAEEENRESESHINAEARE
7,689,000t R £) A R #1,640,0007T * LA
ZERCEABMNMNEAAEMRELBE
FAEERANAIKNESE ZSREE
EEBEMNNYE BERREARERAES
ENREEEEZEARNELCEMEEES
FH BRERSEABNNTHBNE
BN B ERE - F RS EEEMAA
e & &8 Ty fE AT R ATE A TR SRR RS
BEBTEEE:

Funing Jichua Yuxi Jiechua Tianjin Tianjin
Zhongmin Clean Zhongmin Clean Ji County Civigas
CGU Energy Energy Civigas Heng'an
BEELEN EERCPREZER IEZBLPRFERER RERGPRAR REPREZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR NG S
4
Recoverable amount DL EkE: 1,059 4,726 635 54,384 |
Impairment for property, plant %1% * & R & B E
and equipment RN 1,682 2,010 2,569 1428 N
Impairment for ROU FREEERE 99 - 644 =
Period of cash flow projection B & 72 B 5 5 5 5
Revenue growth rate within -~ AFBRZ K AE R %
5-year period -14.49% -1.00% 0% - 4.62% -1.00% - 23.99% -11.29% - 25.64%
Growth rate beyond REBEIHERE
5-year period - - - -
Discount rate B3 % 11.50% 11.50% 11.50% 11.50%
FRERARAF 147

2024 F R (B ZE2024F12A31B L FE)

B




Notes: (Continued)

(e) At the year end of the 2023, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment on the recoverable amount
of one of Chongging Xiye Industrial Co., Ltd's properties, which
was purchased with a significant legal issue of ownership.
A professional legal opinion shows that there is significant
uncertainty to obtain the ownership of the property even if
consideration was paid to the seller, because such property
was involved in many legal proceedings and the seller does
not possess the ownership. The property with an amount of
approximately RMB10,308,000 was fully impaired.

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of 40 years or
the remaining terms of leases
Over the shorter of 5 years or the
remaining terms of the leases
Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

Leasehold improvements

equipment
Plant and machinery 2.5% - 10%
Pipeline 4%

Transportation vehicles 12.5% — 20%

The buildings are situated in the PRC, and are for own use and
situated on land held under medium-term lease.

The Group has pledged certain property, plant and equipment
with carrying value of approximately RMB139,123,000 (2023:
RMB151,819,000), comprising buildings of approximately
RMB18,532,000 (2023: RMB24,937,000), plant and machinery
and pipeline of approximately RMB120,591,000 (2023:
RMB126,882,000) to secure certain bank borrowings granted to
the Group as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

B eE: (#8)

() M2023F KR ARRIEFZHEEEHEE
ERARFMBENEEERNNAELZRN
B ER AU Bl S BT ER G - 5%
ARERRE BEREFZMNRE BB
ZYERNFBRIIGEEATREE  RA
BEZMESRZEEEZFR MEHILE
HEFMEE - %A A AR%10,308,000
TR E B BEURE -

Eat¥Z - EE RREERE (FERTERIN)
TIABEER T O FRIFTE

BF A0F SRR EFH
(AERE AE)

HEWHEEE S54F ok | o4 70 & F B
(AEBREHE BZE)

R EE R 20%

/N

BB K i 25 2.5% — 10%

EE 4%

188 ) B8 4 12.5% — 20%

BFMRFE - NiIEEEER  BARIBE

REAFR A FTIS £ £ o

AEBE B FEREEL A KE139,123,000
7T (20234 : AR #151,819,0007T) (&8
F 4 A R #18,532,0007T (20234 : A R
24,937,00070) K= R MEBHAR
#120,591,0007T (20234612 H318 : AR
126,882,0007T) 2 & T ¥ % B MR BN
EARFAEEETRITEEZER (RE
RARFERIR A B R HER B 7E44) o



Leasehold

lands

HELH

RMB'000

ARET T

At 1 January 2023 7202361418 88,277
Additions NE 2,589
Depreciation e (2,767)
Impairment loss (note 16(d)) AEBE (ME16(d) (644)
Derecognition IR -
At 31 December 2023 120236124318 87,455
Additions NE 6,085
Depreciation e (2,191)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) KB A R (FiEE38) (3,425)
Impairment loss (notes 16(a) and (b)) SR{EEE (FizE16(a)%(b)) (4,343)
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE (24,558)
Derecognition RIEHER -
At 31 December 2024 2024512 F318 59,023

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Total cash outflow for leases HERS AR

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, gas supply
pipelines and related equipment and facilities and transportation
vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts were entered into for
fixed terms of 1 year to 15 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contained a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

Leasehold lands are upfront payments for leasehold lands under
medium-term leases in the PRC for own use properties.

The Group entered into several short-term leases for various
offices, warehouses, equipment and transportation vehicles. As
at 31 December 2024, the total outstanding lease commitments
were approximately RMB316,000 (2023: RMB243,000).

E5G HATH E AR < B X

Transportation

Properties  Equipment vehicles Total
3 R ERER CL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT
4,997 - 358 93,632
549 8,768 - 11,906
(1,696) (756) (81) (5,300)
(996) - - (1,640)
(296) - - (296)
2,558 8,012 277 98,302
5,611 2,240 - 13,936
(1,687) (1,357) (81) (5,316)
(319 = - (3,744)

- - - (4,343)

- - - (24,558)

(151) - - (151)
6,012 8,895 196 74,126
2023

2023%F

RMB'000

AR¥ETTT

3,150

5,910

AEFEHERERAZE BE MAHEE
BRABRELRRENERERNEL -
EEHMREEHIIFERISFFL-HETD
HERIEREER YA ZTETRANERK
iRt - REEEH RGN BE SRR &
B AEERBENNERLEE SO
58 BB TTHY A o

HE LR ABEE T HATARNK  HRHh
MR HEE TN EERYE-

AEERSERAE BE REREHE
AN & TRAAE-72024F128318
REBHEREBET LN ARK316,0007T
(20234 : AR#243,0007T) °



At the year end of the 2024, the directors of the Company
have conducted impairment assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and an impairment
loss of approximately RMB4,343,000 (2023: RMB1,640,000) was
recognised in the year ended 31 December 2024 as disclosed in
notes 16(a) and (b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has pledged certain right-of-use assets with carrying
value of approximately RMB1,150,000 (2023: RMB1,198,000)
to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB14,677,000
(2023: RMB19,892,000) are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of approximately RMB15,103,000 (2023: RMB10,847,000)
as at 31 December 2024. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor and the relevant leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes as disclosed
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

R2024F K A RAREEHAEEF A
BEEMA WL S |ETREFT® TR
HZE2024F12831B L FERARER
&5 49 N R #54,343,0007T (20234F : AR ¥
1,640,0007T) (4R E B 7% R &= Bi sk 16(a)
K (b)#E5E) o

AEBEEHEFRABENAARKK1,150,000
70 (20234 : AR #1,198,0007T) & F1£
REEE MMEARTAEER TRITEER
ZHER (RERE SRR F44BE) ©

AN 7A2024F 12 A31H HREEEE
#) N R#14,677,0007T (2023F : AR ¥
19,892,0007T) R iEFEF AEEEHN AR
15,103,0007T (20234 : A R #10,847,000
) BREAAFENHEEETERE
moN HERE T EINEA LM WA
EHBEEEERUA AEGEMNER (B4R
B ISR TN T44IEFE) -

RMB'000
AREBTTT
Carrying amount: BRTEE
At 1 January 2023 202341418 4,540
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RERBRZ AR EE (480)
Disposal k== (290)
At 31 December 2023 72023512 H31H 3,770
At 1 January 2024 202451418 3,770
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B Y% B K R el 85,066
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEAEEESR 24,558
Depreciation provided during the year FRNFHRITE (2,063)
Impairment provided during the year FRRERE (6,019)
105,312
At 31 December 2024 2024512 H31H 146,256
Cost BN
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (19,034)
Accumulated impairment ZEORE (21,910)
Net carrying amount BRHE FE 105,312



With effect from 1 January 2024, the investment properties are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of 40 years or the
remaining terms of leases

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of 5 years or the
remaining terms of the leases

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC, and
are held under medium-term leases.

The fair values of investment properties are estimated for
disclosure purposes and under Level 3 fair value measurement.
At the end of the year 2024, the management worked closely
with the independent qualified professional valuer to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

At 31 December 2024, the Group's investment properties were
revalued at approximately RMB112,706,000 on the estimation
of the fair values by Lianhezhonghe Land Real Estate Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd.,* (“Lianhezhonghe”) an independent valuer
who holds recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations and category.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2024 were determined based on the market
approach by directly comparing with recent sales transactions
of comparable properties and income capitalisation approach
by capitalising the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by
reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the
similar properties in similar locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In the absence of observable market transactions for
comparable properties, income approach is adopted.

*  For identification purpose only

H2024F1 B1BRE  BEWMENEZEZT
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The Group leases out the investment properties as retail stores
under leasehold interests with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain any residual value guarantees or
lessee’s options to purchase the property.

The Group has investment properties with historical cost less
accumulated depreciation of approximately RMB10,725,000 as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023, that have restrictions on sale
and were determined to have nil fair value as at 31 December
2023 and fully impaired as at 31 December 2024. The Group
has commenced litigation proceedings regarding the ownership
of these properties; however, the Group is unable to obtain
the legal titles of these properties as at 31 December 2024.
The Group has pledged certain investment properties with
carrying value of approximately RMB4,776,000 (2023: RMB
nil) to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the management
identified impairment indicators of the investment properties
due to decline in transaction volumes and prices in property
markets in the relevant locations. The decline was due to
the macroeconomic recession in the property market. The
Group engaged Lianhezhonghe to perform assessment of the
recoverable amounts of each individual investment property
of the Group, based on their fair values less cost of disposal.
Lianhezhonghe applied market approach for commercial
buildings and car parks and income capitalisation approach
for commercial and industrial buildings. The key assumptions
for each valuation approach are listed below. As a result of
the valuation, certain investment properties of the Group
were found to have fair values as at 31 December 2024 which
was below their carrying amounts. Hence impairment loss of
approximately RMB6,019,000 was recognized in consolidated
profit or loss in the year ended 31 December 2024 to write
down the carrying amounts of these investment properties to
their recoverable amounts.

AEERBHERSELEAREVERTE
E-HEASAHN -HE-—RVIT R —

BERFe

HRAAHENEEER ZHENERE
FHE - ANSR B30 R & % Bk i m N
e HMESHL BT EMEREEREL
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REBHEBIREWME  FR2024F &k2023F
128318 BEELRABRFTITETELN B
AR¥10,725,00070 B2 EMEHREHE
R &l 7A2023F12831HM AR BEEE A
TR ER2024F12A31H BEGHRBE -
REBEERZEMENFTBRERIRFARE
Fr i {B582024F12 A318 » REE H AREUE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18 REWE
Details of the Group's investment properties and information REBER2024F 12 A31H 2 EMEFE
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024, are as FARBEEBH 2 EREHFNNT :
follows:
Fair value Relationship of unobservable
Properties in the PRC hierarchy Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RAEZN% MEER fHERE EXTAEREAYE TUEERAEREMAEZBE
RMBA46,509,000 Commercial Level 3 Market approach Market sales price, taking into account direct market - The higher the market sales
AR46,509,000C  buildings and =8 comparables within the properties ranging from price, the higher the fair value.
aar parks The key inputs are: RMB3,624 to RMB11,500 per square meter. -
HEETREER (1) Market sales price per square EER A4 BN
meter or per parking space Market sales price for car parks, taking into account
direct market comparables within the car parks
(i) ranging from RMB45,600 to RMB9,700 per car
parking space.
il =%
(ff%%%%ﬁ TEER (RIS IR EETETALRY
SHEERE FINFETHRARSS CUTEARK1 5007

RERMRER (B REESAZERTSTEY
REH)NTEERENARKLS 0T EARY

99,7007z °
RMBG6,197,000 Commercial and Level 3 Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation rate,
AR%066,197,0000  industrial buildings £=% capitalisation of the net income potential, nature  the lower the fair value.
HERTEET The key inputs are: of the property, prevailing market condition, at

(1) Capitalisation rate 5.0% and 5.5% for industrial and commercial The higher the market rent, the
(2)  Market rent per square meter buildings, respectively. higher the fair value.
RARA{CE Market rent, taking into account direct market AL EBR A EEME- "
N . comparables within the properties ranging from SR
TREAIER: RMB26.90 to RMB62.90 per square meter per TS HE AR EHHE: g
(1) E&fix month. =

@ sEEKDAEE
TRRBERT AN R (B3 RFUAE
NERERRATRNEALLE) DRIR5.0%
J5.5% °

mEhe HRASNERZERTEUELBE)
BAGTAXAEE2.90TE AEBE2.907T 0
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Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2023, are as

follows:
Fair value
Commercial properties in the PRC hierarchy
RPEZBENE MEER HERE
RMB3,770,000 Commercial Level 3
ARH3770,0000  buildings 228
HEET The key inputs are:

(1) Capitalisation rate

Valuation techniques

Income capitalisation approach

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUREEARE

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of the net income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing market condition, of
3.5%

(2)  Market rent per square meter

RARKILE

%6

1

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

COST
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2024

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2024

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

i %
0

Market rent, taking into account direct market
comparables within the properties ranging from
RMB10 to RMB37.50 per square meter per month.

EAfH & (A RFUNED DERER
BOMANERLE) B3 5%

e GIRASDERZERTSALENE)
BEETHKAERIOTE AR50

AREBER2023F12A31B 2R EMEFHB
FEARERBRZERSFINNOT

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

TURRBABNRAAEZBE

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value.

The higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value.

ARl s DA EAEE-

maleln AAEAER

B E2024F K2023F12A31H IEFE - #

BEALEHFE =R

A
M2023F1HA1H » 2023%F12HA318 &
2024412 A318

2 REEE
M2023F1A18 » 2023512318 &
2024412 A31H

BREE
M2024%12H31H

72023F12A31H

RMB’000
ARETT

42,202

42,202



CosT
At 1 January 2023
Derecognised upon expiry

At 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2024

A
R2023F1A1H
TA g i B 4% L TR

R2023&E128318 &
202412 A31H

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Zit##RAERFE

AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year
Derecognised upon expiry

At 31 December 2023
Charge for the year
Impairment

At 31 December 2024

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

®2023F1A1H
ERTH
A8 i B 4% L TR

R2023F12 8318
FRTH
ERED

#2024 12 8318

REE
R2024%12 318

$2023F 128318

Construction
permission

BEMX
RMB'000
ARETT

187,314
(187,314)

187,314

(187,314)

At the year end of the 2024, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts
of the Group's intangible assets and an impairment loss of
approximately RMB4,697,000 (2023: nil) was recognised in the
Year as disclosed in note 16(a) to the consolidated financial

statements.

In 2023, construction permission and exclusive rights of purchase
had expired and could not be prolonged. The water drawing
permit had been withdrawn by local government due to
concern of strengthening groundwater management to prevent
overexploitation and pollution of groundwater.

Water
drawing
permit

BUK & AT 3%
RMB'000
AREFTT

162,633
(162,633)

162,633

(162,633)

Exclusive

Exclusive rights of
rights of operation of
purchase  piped gas

Bx  BREE
FBERN MRCEREN

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR
10,000 37,061
(10,000) =
= 37,061

10,000 17,477

= 1,229
(10,000) =
= 18,706

= 1,229

= 4,697

= 24,632

= 12,429

= 18,355

Total

&t
RMB'000
ARBTT

397,008
(359,947)

37,061

377,424
1,229
(359,947)

18,706
1,229
4,697

24,632

12,429

18,355

R2024F K AR EEZCHAE[MELE
EMrURE S mEETRER S BWiREE
EmER KT 16(a)FTH# B8 1A AR JE FE SRR (B
184 A R #4,697,0007T (20234 : &) o

R2023%F BE# X RBRBEEECERHE
BRI - R ED ISR 3 T 7K E AR 1E
N AGRERFRRRFR  EHIBATE B #HE
KA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

ZOlNTANG | BLE ASSETS (Continued)

21

The exclusive right of purchase, wholly related to the exclusive
right of purchasing natural gas was acquired separately, while
the construction permission, water drawing permit and exclusive
rights of operation of piped gas were acquired from third parties
in business combinations. The above intangible assets had finite
useful lives. The intangible assets were amortised on a straight-
line basis over the following periods:

Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas 30 years

Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas represent the rights to
operate gas pipeline infrastructure and piped gas transmission
and distribution businesses granted by local government in
various cities in the PRC.

ANTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

7, S
208 EE »

BEERBENZ2/EBRBZREBERR
SEVE SKAER - RS BUKEF A & &
BREENRAEEENIREBAHT A
F=ZHWE - LB EEREEN RAF
Hl-ZEBVEER NIHNMREGELS
il

BREBMRRELREN  30%F
BREEMRCEENEEFES TH™

ZHTBRFRTRERREBERRE R
BEMRBEER B -

= N7

> oy —_ == N\ 7
1T REBENR 2 RS

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTT

Carrying amounts at initial recognition BRHERR 2 BREE 91,129 91,129
Share of post-acquisition profits and other — FE{f 4 8% 12 & F1) & H b 2 ) Ye 25

comprehensive income, net of dividends Bk B U B
received 21,833 82,923
112,962 174,052
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21 |NTERESTS |N ASSOC'ATES (Continued)

The Group has interests in the following associates:

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

. pwN f— AY == N\ 7
21 R E QB 2R =
REER T E AR EE#ER

—~

Place of Proportion of nominal
Form of business establishment value of registered
Name of company structure and operation capital held by the Group  Principal activities
BIREE EEERFEZ
ARER SBRERA M at i & A fE L B TEEK
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Southwest Panva Gas Co. Ltd.*  Limited liability PRC 49.90% 49.90% Cylinder gas supply
("Southwest Panva”) company
BIRERRERAR BREERA hE BEMALE
(MBIfEmEl)
Yunnan Panva Gas Co. Ltd.* Limited liability PRC 20.12% 20.12% Cylinder gas supply
("Yunnan Panva“) company
EHAIRRARAT BREERA h BEMAMLE
(IEEAI!
5 Yunnan Panva is a subsidiary of Southwest Panva with 56.94% & EEAIAEIAMZMBAR  BIIA

of its registered capital being held directly by Southwest Panva.

Summarised financial information of associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

*  For identification purpose only

1A H56.94% 3 & AN o

BEQNT2MBERBRE

ERAAGEEABERRZHBENRE
T - T BEERBRERIN R 2 &5
ERBEEBYBHREEANRE - IEZFH
LRBRBBDEFTAREE 2K E /T
HK-

B

=
I0
v
=
<
=
'S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

== N\ /

oY = =
21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 RNBERNF 2R @
Summarised financial information of associates BEQNT2HBERNBE (&)
(Continued)
Southwest Panva Group BIAEEE
(including Yunnan Panva as its subsidiary) (BREEFBIIEAENEAA)
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Current assets mEEE 236,100 227,535
Non-current assets FERBEE 225,379 218,772
Current liabilities BB A (215,150) (82,890)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (18,022) (12,650)
Net assets BEFE 228,307 350,767
Equity attributable to owners of BT A ARG ER
Southwest Panva 172,811 283,425
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR A 2 55,496 67,342
228,307 350,767
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREF T
Revenue WA 1,411,519 1,619,238
Profit and total comprehensive income for T~ Il J& 5 7K 4F & 3% A1 &2
the year attributable to: EHEREBE:
Owners of Southwest Panva B EA A 43,086 39,071
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR R 2 12,426 3,920
55,512 42,991
Dividend received and receivable by the NEEAREEE YK FE U A A
Group from the associate during the year % 8 76,698 -
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271.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)

Southwest Panva Group
(including Yunnan Panva as its subsidiary) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Southwest
Panva recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

21 REFE R A 2wl o)

BENTAZHMBERNBE (F)
ERINiE =]
(BEZEFBEIERENBLAA) (&)

PR BEMRE MR ES B HRER
PRERA MRS REE K

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFTT
Equity attributable to owners of Southwest & /T 78/ E@B#H A AE(HHES
Panva Group 172,811 283,425
Group's share of equity of Southwest Panva 74 B 7 &L 249.90%
at 49.90% (including 28.41% Group's Dt (BRASERER
indirect effective interest in Yunnan Panva) B 128.41% v B BEEZ) 86,233 141,430
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEB R A/ LAmEER 2
Southwest Panva Group w2 REE 86,233 141,430
Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva REFTAIZEEFREEES
Yunnan Panva EHHL
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000 | ’ig
AR¥T T ARET T g
.uE_
Current assets MBEE 89,596 88,313
Non-current assets EMBNEE 109,713 113,450
Current liabilities mEEE (57,535) (28,868)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (8,928) (10,764)
Net assets BERE 132,846 162,131
FRERERAF

2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE) e



ol
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FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

Py . = N\ 7/
21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 RBENT 2R ()
Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva (Continued) REBRIZEEFREEER (8)
Yunnan Panva (Continued) EEEI (&)
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFIT
Revenue A 540,801 579,923
Profit and total comprehensive income for — ZN4F & i Fl| &2 & 8 W &5 44 48
the year 27,665 9,212
Dividend received and receivable by the NEFEAREE D YRR
Group from the associate during the year B A &% &5 11,458 =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB ERE RRNERE I RE TR
the carrying amount of the interest in Yunnan Panva recognised REEA IS REBEZ HEK:
in the consolidated financial statements:
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
Equity attributable to owners of RAEHER ANEIHEZ
Yunnan Panva 132,846 162,131
Group's share of equity based on its direct AEBEIRERE AL AZEELE
ownership interest in Yunnan Panva at BEmaTHE 2 B A20.12%
20.12% 26,729 32,622
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in  ANEBRER 5T 2w 2 BREE
Yunnan Panva 26,729 32,622
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES N NREELE ER
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETTT

Cost of unlisted investments (note) JEEMRE KA (FiE) 314,129 303,929
Share of post-acquisition profits and other & 1f 4% i 12 & Fl) M E i 2 [ Ue 25
comprehensive income, net of dividends Bk B U B

received 768,819 800,525
1,082,948 1,104,454
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in GELERAESETAZSRATBER
these consolidated financial statements. o
Note: The cost of investments includes goodwill of approximately MiaE: REKANBIEREL ARKT6,846,0007T
RMB76,846,000 (2023: RMB76,846,000). (20234 : AR ¥76,846,0007T) °
Details of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: REEZEEREFBHET:
Form of Place of Proportion of nominal
business establishment value of registered
Name of company structure and operation capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEREELZ
AR BB ABEBKX  HURKEREL ot i & A B e ) TEER
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Fujian Province An Ran Gas Limited liability PRC 51% 51% Investment holding in subsidiaries
Investment Co., Ltd.* company which are engaged in
("Fujian An Ran") (note (a)) distribution and supply of ng
piped gas and installation of é
gas distribution facilities =
BEELAMRKREBRLE AREERA H JME% SEREERFEELR |8
(MegzRl) (M) MR E B R B A Al
ﬁfﬂxéﬂx
Fujian An Ran Yipin Smart Limited liability PRC 51% - Provision of value-added services
Technology Co., Ltd.* company and wholesale and retail of
("Yipin Smart") (note (b)) household equipment, electric
appliances, kitchen appliances
and others
BEZASHENRBRLR AREARFA i RPEEEREARRBRE B
(I1Em=]1) (KzEb)) # BEAAREMERNL
ERTE

*  For identification purpose only
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= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12831H

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The relevant activities that significantly affect the returns of
Fujian An Ran require unanimous consent from the Group
and the other joint venture partner holding the remaining
49% equity interest in Fujian An Ran. In addition, the joint
arrangements do not result in either parties having rights to
assets and obligations to liabilities of Fujian An Ran, hence the
Group has accounted for Fujian An Ran as joint venture.

(b)  The relevant activities that significantly affect the returns of
Yipin Smart require unanimous consent from the Group and the
other joint venture partner holding the remaining 49% equity
interest in Yipin Smart. In addition, the joint arrangements do
not result in either parties having rights to assets and obligations
to liabilities of Yipin Smart, hence the Group has accounted for
Yipin Smart as joint venture. Yipin Smart was established during
the Year with the paid-up capital of RMB20,000,000, of which,
RMB 10,200,000 was paid up by the Group.

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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(a) HERRALNREEAZ B ZIEMES
FERERERABRTI9%M AR 2
Hith & B REBHZ A E - 1o i
RAEBLHL & EREM— 7 HRE
RRZEEFRERNEEARERR
T ARAREEBRELZRINEREE
BEAK-

(b) HERERREEATZEZHBEDF
DR EMEH T4A9%R AR 2 B
BELENEZ—REE 1IN HRE
BTt re8REf—rEEnE
EEHREENRHEBERBET Bt
AEEEKRESREBIESELEAKR -F
MERREERKY  BERERNABARE
20,000,0007T * & # A K #10,200,0007T
EHASEEHRE -
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

/\ ;m Y I P2 AY ] ¥
22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES N AEELEZRERS =
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of joint ventures EECECUMBEERBE (&)
(Continued)
Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries 1EREL N R HE N E A
(collectively “Fujian An Ran Group”) (RBR[EREZAEEH])
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Current assets mEEE 875,570 813,662
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,928,789 2,889,657
Current liabilities mENAa R (1,240,940) (1,184,618)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (491,369) (420,710)
Net assets BEFE 2,072,050 2,097,991
Equity attributable to owners of BRZASEHRE AR Z
Fujian An Ran Group = 1,926,629 1,998,372
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 2 145,421 99,619
2,072,050 2,097,991
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the M EEREGESEAETNISE:
following:
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBETIT EEd
.g E
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEFEIER 551,386 569,267 [
[N
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B KRG 2,597,192 2,630,992
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,130 16,541
Trade receivables B 5 rEW R IE 34,790 46,676
Current financial liabilities e maE
(excluding trade and other payables) (T BEE S KEMENFKIE) (154,897) (203,762)
Non-current financial liabilities JERNHERAE
(excluding other payables) (T BEEMENRIE) (387,759) (312,979)
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

(Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries

(collectively “Fujian An Ran Group”) (Continued)

NDNREELEZET @

BELECHMBERME ()

BELRREHNE R A

(R EELAEE]) (E)

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARET ARETIT
Revenue A 2,598,505 2,432,062
Depreciation and amortisation e R 111,829 130,637
Interest income B U A 6,893 4,634
Impairment loss on non-current assets FEREEE ZREEE 27,060 783,658
Interest expense B HAX 15,180 10,380
Income tax expense T8> 63,096 65,604
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income T 41 fE {5 A 4E &% 7 (518 ) &
(expense) for the year attributable to: EHEN = (FAX) 858
Owners of Fujian An Ran Group BEZAEBERE A 128,257 (474,286)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 73,784 (80,920)
202,041 (555,206)
Dividend received and receivable by the AEEREEDBEKEW
Group from the joint venture during the EEDERE
year 102,000 -
Group's share of results of the joint venture ANEEFERABPEEE 65,411 (241,886)
Less: other expenses o BB X (767) (767)
Share of result of joint venture BIREELEEE 64,644 (242,653)
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures
(Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Fujian An Ran Group”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Fujian An Ran Group
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

2REEERERw

BELECHMBERME (B)
BELRKENE R
(B Has}%‘;z%ﬁlj) (%)

LB ERREE RN S B TR
RERLAREE D 2 REEHEK:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Equity attributable to owners of RERAREBRERANBLEZER

Fujian An Ran Group 1,926,629 1,998,372
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBRBRELASEES 2

interest in Fujian An Ran Group at 51% 51 %7 2= tb, 1 982,581 1,019,170
Goodwill S 76,846 76,846
Others Hitb 7,671 8,438
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEBREBEELZTARER 2

Fujian An Ran Group w2 BREE 1,067,098 1,104,454

B

=
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v
=
<
=
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7 & B 35 8 RO 5

31 December 2024 2024F12H31H

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures
(Continued)

Yipin Smart and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Yipin Smart Group”)

2 NEELERZER

BELECHMBERME ()

E‘j%{&ﬁﬂﬁ/’?
M fEu‘juffs‘ElJ)

2024
20245
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Current assets mEEE 60,370
Non-current assets EMEBEE -
Current liabilities mEBAE (26,057)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE -
Net assets BEFE 34,313
Equity attributable to owners of Yipin Smart Group TmEEEREAEBGRER 31,078
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR HE 2 3,235
34,313

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the FHEEREESEAETNISE:

following:

2024
20244
RMB'000
AR T
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 52,516
Trade receivables B 5 rEW A 730
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31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

22 .INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES N NEELEZER @

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures EECECUMBEERBE (&)
(Continued)

Yipin Smart and its subsidiaries ERERENERF]
(collectively “Yipin Smart Group”) (Continued) (B[ EnEEE]) (&)
2024
20245
RMB’000
ARET
Revenue WA 26,679
Interest income F 2 U A 68
Income tax expense FriS 8 i 2,678
Profit and total comprehensive income TG AN F R &
for the year attributable to: HEREBE:
Owners of Yipin Smart Group SmESEESA 11,078
Non-controlling interests FEERE = 985
12,063
Share of result of joint venture BlEEEhEZEE 5,650
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information FRMBEERBME RN R ERFRETE gy
to the carrying amount of the interest in Yipin Smart Group RemEEEER REE2HE: Tg%
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: =
'uE.
2024
2024%
RMB’000
ARET T
Equity attributable to owners of Yipin Smart Group TmEEERE ARGRER 31,078
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEBERERESEER ZKREBES1%
Yipin Smart Group at 51% 15,850
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= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

23.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

23R AEFTARMEE

Wz Em T B

RMB’000
AR T T
At 1 January 2023 7202351418 127,544
Addltlon 5/]\\% 190
Disposal HeE (106)
Fair value change recognised in OClI WREAMEPEMBEN AL EEED (19,895)
At 31 December 2023 1R2023F12H31H 107,733
Add|t|on 5/]\\% 2,090
Disposal HE (2,022)
Fair value change recognised in OClI BREAMPEREN AL EEED 2,132
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12HA31H 109,933
Note: B ot

The above investments represent equity interests in certain private
entities established in the PRC. These entities are mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of glass products, banking, sale and distribution
of cylinder gas and gas appliances, sale and distribution of cookware and
food ingredients supply and FMCG business. These investments are not
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that these investments are not
held for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.
Details of the investments are disclosed in note 36(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

24 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24 EHiZ £ R H b E UK
RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant Uz 341 3 « = K 2% 18 &

and equipment and right-of-use assets FTREEEZENES 11,898 18,435
Other receivables (note) E A ORR (&) 8,540 =
20,438 18,435
Note: B 5
As at 31 December 2024, other receivables represent amount due from M2024F 128318 bR RIERKE=F
a third party of approximately RMB8,540,000 which is of non-trade RIEL AR #8,540,000T BIEZE S 4L - EIR
nature, unsecured, interesting bearing of average rate 2.8% and a IR FFE2 8%5r B R H ASESF o
repayment period from 5 — 8 years.
€5
25.INVENTORIES 2578
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Materials and consumables YL B E R 19,538 15,698
Gas appliances MR E 5,315 2,076
Merchandises [ESEE 7,349 15,080
Gas KRR 11,527 14179 [
o 5
g K
43,729 47,033 |
[N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

26.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

26. B 5 » 2B R H ALK
15 LK FB A 7KR

2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT AREEF T
Trade receivables B 5 WA 62,991 60,978
Bills receivables FERE IR 4,129 6,677
67,120 67,655
Less: Allowance for credit losses S EEERE (12,724) (10,759)
Total trade and bills receivables (net of ECL) 2 5 M= 1% & U sk 4 58
(HREHEEER) 54,396 56,896
Deposits paid for purchases of natural BERAR  EEMR
gas; cylinder gas; merchandises and Em&k IREMEERS
construction materials 105,546 83,670
Rental and utilities deposits and prepayments # % & A B E £ iZ e kA RIE 6,872 7,914
Other tax recoverable E 4th AT Ug [0 7 18 6,394 11,171
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & Ug FE 42 B 4 25 A 0E 33,096 17,075
Amount due from an associate & U — [ B & R Bl ZRIB 480 =
Dividend receivable from associates JE U Bt 2 N B AR B 52,179 =
Dividend receivable from a joint venture Bl —EEErERE 51,000 -
Other receivables and deposits Eih el sIE KRS 36,579 43,084
Total other receivables and prepayments e W IE R TR FOIE B R 292,146 162,914
Less: Allowance for credit losses S EEERE (23,303) (24,214)
Total other receivables and prepayments E b JE YRIE R FE S IR B 5
(net of ECL) (HBRTEEREEEE) 268,843 138,700
323,239 195,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period ranging
from 0 to 180 days to its customers. Longer credit period
is also allowed on a case by case basis. The following is
an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of ECL,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the
revenue recognition date for sales of gas and the respective
construction contracts completion dates, as appropriate:

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

26. B 5 - 2B R H ALK

HLARFENRIE @

B 5 EWHA

AEBEZBRBHETHEEFP N F0E180R
ZEEH -RIERER AEEAHE TR
ENEER -REZAH (REEMREA
W A B RARE R E TS R B8 (i
R HRE)HEE S REREYIR (TR
HEEEBR) MREITOT

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEF T

0 to 90 days 0%290H 41,501 40,920
91 to 180 days 912 180H 3,596 3,119
Over 180 days 180H KA |k 5,170 6,180
Trade receivables =) e 50,267 50,219
0 to 90 days 0%290H 2,948 3,680
91 to 180 days 912 180H 1,121 2,997
Over 180 days 180H LA E 60 -
Bills receivables Z R WEIE 4,129 6,677

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB5,170,000 (2023: RMB6,180,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. These past due balances
have been past due 90 days or more and are not considered
as in default based on the Group’s assessment of historical
credit loss experience of these debtors and available forward-
looking information, including but not limited to the expected
economic conditions in the PRC and expected subsequent
settlements. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

R2024F 12 A31H A& B & FEWER &
FEEEEREARSNARKS,170,0007T
(20234 : AR #6,180,0007T ) B & U BR
o EERKRERNFEBE RS - BER
EEHZSEBEARTESHEEER (8
FEB PR 1A A B T8 B AR O A R FE R 12
BREE)NTE ZEEaAKDEE0
ARERER BETHRERL - AEET
EZE ARSI R-

PRERERAF
2024 F R (B ZE2024F12A31B L FE)

=
I0
v
=
<
=
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As at 31 December 2024, included in other receivables and
prepayments, there are deposits and advance payments to suppliers
of approximately RMB105,546,000 (2023: RMB83,670,000)
in relation to the purchase of natural gas; cylinder gas and
merchandises, which will be delivered within one year from the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, included in other receivables and
prepayments, are amounts due from non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries of approximately RMB12,744,000 (2023:
RMB2,210,000) in relation to the sales of natural gas, cylinder
gas and merchandise. None of these balances is past due 90
days or more.

As at 31 December 2024, included in other receivables
and prepayments, are amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries of approximately RMB20,352,000
(2023: RMB14,865,000) which are of non-trade nature,
unsecured, non-interesting bearing and repayable on
demand. As at 31 December 2024, the amounts due from
non-controlling interests of approximately RMB20,352,000
included capital receivable of approximately RMB4,138,000,
loans of approximately RMB4,002,000, compensation for land
demolition of approximately RMB4,438,000 and others of
approximately RMB7,774,000.

The other receivables and deposits mainly include deposits of
bid submission, gas supply and pipe installations, staff cash
advance and receivable for compensation from government.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 36(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MR2024F12 8318 @ i fE W X1 & T8
NREEREHERBERAR EEMLR
rEmziEe k THER 2 BIRIALD
AR #105, 546000%(2023$'AE¢+%
83,670,0007T) ' sKIBAF B RS BHAIRE —
FRART -

#2024&12%15 H e U 58 & FE

HIEPEEBEHEERAR BEMANE D
z&u&mgawm et DS 2 FIBH AR
12,744,0007T (20234 : AR %2,210,000
T0) o X BT E D B 90 sk LA | -

#2024&12%15 H e W 508 & FE

FXIE B FE E YR B B N B FE AR M 25 2 3R E
%’7AE¢%20,352,00071 (2023F : AR ¥
14,865,0007C) BIEE 5 1HE - EIKIF 5
B RBRBRER - 72024F128318 ' &
U SE 22 % #E 2 31 1B 49 A R #20,352,0007T
BLIE FE IR AN 49 A R #54,138,0007T * B KX
# A R #4,002,0007T  EH 3B E A
R#4,438,0007T R EH At %) A R#7,774,000
Tl

HEUWHIER RS T E2EERE HAK
EERENRES BIEXRESUARBA
e YRS -

85 KE b EUGR IR E R 2 FE B RN
iR e R M E36(b) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

27.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 7 EHNEE BE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTR AR¥ETTT

Contract assets — current EHEE-NH
Construction contracts in gas pipeline MR BEERERZIERED
construction 25,496 34,072

Contract liabilities — current EHNEE-HH

At 1 January R1A1H

Sales of piped gas EHEMRIEE 182,683 164,474

Cylinder gas supply S PR SR e 3,624 10,362

Gas distribution =R 2,810 15,438

Wholesales and retail of merchandise HELRTEE R 127 -

Piped gas connection construction contracts & ERREEEES 4 42,659 29,358
231,903 219,632

At 31 December M12H31H

Sales of piped gas BEMREE 186,322 182,683

Cylinder gas supply R IE 5,254 3,624

Gas distribution MRR D8 10,078 2,810

Wholesales and retail of merchandise HELRTEEM 97 127

Piped gas connection construction contracts & & A T KEEE 4 49,230 42,659
250,981 231,903

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to BREEXZHEASEWRTHK LIE 2 28

consideration for work completed because the rights are FERENEMNEH BAZSEATUANE R

conditional on the Group’s future performance in achieving SERAHNIRERESAMERETEREE [

specified milestones at the reporting date on contract work. ZARRKIR K AEGER GHE |9

The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when EEZEEE SRR

the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract REBRANEHNEERGNEBESEAY

assets and contract liabilities recognised are as follows: 20 BLA A SRAGFRADT -

PRERBRAT 173
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The Group's revenue from construction contracts is measured
by input method. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits before the commencement of the
construction work as part of its credit risk management
policies.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle
and in the next 12 months.

When the Group receives a deposit before the construction
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

The Group would require advance payment before the usage
of the natural gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual charge for the actual usage of natural
gas will be billed by the Group accordingly. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for future usage
of natural gas to be supplied by the Group. The Group also
requires advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas through the prepaid card for certain household users. The
charge of the actual usage of natural gas will be deducted
directly to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers can
only consume the natural gas up to the balance of the prepaid
card. This will give rise to contract liabilities until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
advance payment.

The Group sells cylinder gas to its customers. Payments received
in advance that are related to the sales of cylinder gas not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities. Revenue are recognised when cylinder gas are
delivered to customers.

AEBHZESHBARBRAEAE - RE
RIEFIAA  AEEZRETEPREMIHE
N REEERREEBRZ —&D -

AEBBZEANEENDEAERDEE  E
AASEBHeEETEERABANARKI2
BARNERZELEE-

EASEETHAMKEIZES R  BBES
HRBRELSHNAE BEEHEEOHER
ZHRABBREERE -

AEEHERETEFPERRARABEKRE
IR - AN 5 B 12 FR B R A8 A R PR SR A B
TATENERERKRERE - WEREFH
R HREAAEERBHRARINE
H-mEMETERAFME  AKEITR
HEARARA EIE BN RIAN 5K
B BREARARNERBERNBNFR
RBERT IR - LEFE P RAUERM AR RE B
HEREBNREHR -EBELEANAR
EEAHAANBRNBABBBENRIEAS
AL

AEBRAATF HERRRR - ARHE H
ARXNTEFPZBEERR ZBUFIAEE
ERERR/ANEE BRMEARINTER
By FE RS A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas
distribution and merchandise (Continued)

The Group sells LNG/CNG to its customers. Payments received
in advance that are related to the sales of gas not yet delivered
to customers are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when gas is delivered to customers.

The Group also sells merchandise to wholesalers. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales of
merchandises not yet delivered to customers are deferred and
recognised as contract liabilities. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current period relates to carried forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

m]ﬁh

1 EHNEE &

HERDHEE
KEm (&)

AEEREFPHERECRAR,BHERA
R ARBMREERMARRN TFEPZBEK
HERELENERA/AWAE RARXNTE
PR RER WA

KRR HEEMRR MR 2 88

REE RS EEHER M BB AR T
g}f' B 72 on 35 55 48 B8 A9 T8 UCEUI A R E

REGHEB WAREYRNTTFAREF
FRRRERR ©

TRERAHAMERLZEEANAESR
BN ameBRERAEREETHELD
EEABNKESR-

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E2024F12A31HLLFE
Piped gas
connection Wholesales
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas  and retail of
piped gas contracts gassupply  distribution  merchandise
BEMRR EERRER BEMRR HER
HE BEEH fitfe MR D # ZEHM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARETR AR®TRT AR%BTR
Revenue recognised that was BEEFMNAENAE
included in the contract REERE R RIA
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 182,683 30,871 3,624 2,810 127
PREREBRAA

2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE)

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

AN > ==
27 .CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 27.6HNEE 8w
(Continued)
Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas HERDHEEERR BERR  RRDH
distribution and merchandise (Continued) REm (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31B IEFE
Piped gas
connection Wholesales
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas and retail of
piped gas contracts gas supply distribution merchandise
BEMR EEMREN &30 HER
HE BELH fitfe BRR 7 85 ZEHM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR ARBTT ARETT ARET:
Revenue recognised that was BEEEMANERE
included in the contract HEAEERBRA
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 164,474 21,095 10,362 15,438 -

Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of
the Year, approximately RMB11,788,000 (2023: RMB8,263,000)
was not recognised as revenue during the Year mainly due to
the delay in the construction work.

RETVHEHNEBEEBRT OARE
11,788,0007T (20234 : AR #8,263,000
TL)REBEAFEWRERSBA - T2 H
REETREEE -

e o~ SRR
28.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 28 NABEFTABRZE
=1 2.
Bl & =
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREF T
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BARBFABRZEMEE
Unlisted wealth management products JELETIBHEMR 5,393 16,595
Analysed for reporting purpose as MEREBNDTA
Current portion VoEIE:3%) 5,393 16,595
Net unrealised gain included in other gains 5t A E it Ue ek K EE R
and losses, net REIE W a5 F 58 193 95
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

During the Year, the Group entered into several contracts to
acquire unlisted wealth management products with various PRC
financial institutions. The returns of those wealth management
products were determined by reference to the performance
of the underlying investments and their expected return rates
range from 1.55% to 2% (2023: 1.15% to 2.04%) per annum.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the fair
values of the unlisted wealth management products at 31
December 2024 approximated their principal amounts as
they have no fixed term and during the product’s existence,
investors may submit subscription/redemption requests on any
product open day within the open period. The fair values of
the unlisted wealth management products at 31 December
2023 approximated their principal amounts as they had short
maturities ranging from 0 to 15 days. All wealth management
products would mature within twelve months of 31 December
2023.

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

28.%

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

A = | = NI
ZNANETABRZZE

=h >

& E o)

NAFE  AREBEZRPES KB L
ZDEHANIEIE FTHIREE G o R E IR
EmZERDNL2ERBREZRRET &
8 HA 4F [0 ) R F1.55% Z22% (20234 :
1.15%%2.04% ) °

AEEEEERE HNRIELMENERI
EETHR BERERGESE KEEA
RERBRZEMERMKRBRELRE,
fB B 53K - B aZ FE fm pR2024F 12 A31H
ZAREHERGHEAS -BRIELTIEN
EmZHA AR HOEISATE K
ZEEMMP2023F12A31B 2 AR EEE
REFEE - FTAEMERBR2023F 124
1B+ -_@AREH-

2 RITEFMURBEE KRR

THEEH

2024 2023
20245 20234
Interest rate RMB’000 RMB'000
| & ARBET T AREFT
Cash at bank and on hand 0.10% to 1.0% (2023: 0.25% to 1.05% per 578,906 393,033
(as stated in consolidated annum)
statement of cash flows)
WITRFHERS (WFEE 0.10%=1.0% (20234 : FF|*L0.25% %=
RemE&RM) 1.05% )
Bank deposits, matured over 3 1.85% t0 3.1% (2023: 2.0% to 3.1% per 117,900 211,468
months annum)
=B AR EBE 2 RITIFR 1.85%%3.1% (20234 : FF|E2. 0% =
3.1%)
Restricted bank balances
XRE 2,413 =
Total bank deposits and cash and 699,219 604,501
cash equivalents
RITTERARBE S K&
ReEHEEERHE
FRERERAF

2024 F R (HE2024F 128310 L EE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

29.BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB681,314,000 (2023: RMB601,922,000).

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies in the PRC.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Included in bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, the
following amounts are denominated in currencies other than
RMB:

29 BITERURBEERE

EZEEHIEH @

R2024% 12 A318  REB A R E
ZHRITEZFUARBERREEEEL A
4 N R #681,314,0007T (2023F : AR
601,922,0007T) ©

ARBRFENAT BB BRSEMINE 1R
BHBEINEER GO NREE SERMNEE
BT AREREREREREINERR
ZIRITIEARE LB BINE o

RITFFARRERBAEFERERET
FIAANRBEAINERTTEZ S

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

=7 +
30.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.B 5 K H th f& {3 FXIE
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for BoOREMENKBREE ZEERIFE
trade purchases and ongoing costs with the average credit RAZMAZN & EEERCTHEER
period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The following is an HI/RO0H » Fo ARG BARBEERAH
aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice 25 B ZENFIEZBRRD
date at the end of the reporting period:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 90 days 0%£90H 77,113 103,133
91 to 180 days 912 180H 11,647 7,968
Over 180 days 180H A E 23,509 13,766
Trade payables BB SRR 112,269 124,867
Piped gas customers deposits BEBMRBERPTFN 18,275 19.662
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE{HF{} B /2 7] FE 22 B 25 7K 08
of subsidiaries (note (a)) (Kt5E(a)) 196 814
Dividend payable to non-controlling ENWB AR IR ER 2K S
interests of subsidiaries 8,000 -
Amount due to a joint venture ER—RE& & ERIE - 96
Other tax payables Hh eI 3118 36,854 27,712
Wages and staff benefits ITEREIRER 20,220 20,536
Retention payables and security deposits ~ EfE RS LKEKREFEES
received 28,862 35,542
Compensation received in advance (note (b)) =842 # (& (Fi (b)) - 15,699
Accrued charges and other payables FEET B R & E A BT BRI
—Endorsement of bills —ZBEE 279 3,675
—Property, plant and equipment —WE WEKF 3,838 4,219
—Reimbursement —EfF 7,260 4,702
~Others —H At 10,970 16,496
28
Total trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIBEEE 247,023 274,020 [
=
[
Notes: Pt 3T -
(@) The amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (@ EAWBRARIEER#ER 2 KB ARER
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand, B IHERREREBE BEBIFES
which is of a non-trade nature. =
(b)  Compensation received in advance represents amount received (b) TEEWBIHFMERERE=FTHIHAR
from a third party for compensating the removal of the Group's HEFRASENEBNRAREN S
pipelines and gas facilities. The removal of the facilities to which B 7R2024% 128310 BB E R 2 &%
the receipts related have been completed as at 31 December MEHFBR B TTAK ©
2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

31.LEASE LIABILITIES 31.

HERE

-~ ~

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Within one year —FRr 4,207 3,730
More than one year, but not more than two 818 — & 18 T {38 N F

years 2,759 3,374
More than two years, but not more than five 8/ 18 {28 A F

years 4,342 8,747
More than five years HBBRF 3,369 4,041

14,677 19,892
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : 27| AREBHEAEENZ
under current liabilities —F AR B FIE (4,207) (3,730)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities Z%|AIERBAEBEE N 2458 10,470 16,162

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB14,677,000 (2023:
RMB19,892,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately RMB 15,103,000 (2023: RMB10,847,000) as at
31 December 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes as disclosed in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

.BANK BORROWINGS

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

32.8R1TEE

2024 2023
202445 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARET T
Secured bank borrowings BEMIRITEE 51,800 62,000
Unsecured bank borrowings EHIRITEE 36,450 19,775
88,250 81,775

Carrying amount repayable: JEEZEREE
Within one year or on demand —FRRIZEK 83,550 81,600
In the second and fifth year, inclusive F_FRFAF (BREEEME) 350 175
Over five years AFELE 4,350 -
88,250 81,775

All secured and unsecured bank borrowings are Loan Prime
Rate (“LPR") borrowings of which interest rates are in the
range of People’s Bank of China base rate minus 0.25% to plus
1.00% (2023: 0.00% to 14.15%) per annum.

Certain assets of the Group are pledged for the secured bank
borrowings, details of which are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 36(b). As at 31 December 2024,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached (2023: RMB nil).

DEFERRED TAXATION

FreEa iR RERMBETEEYHAERE
MAEESE FEENTFTHBEARBITER
A 2 3[0.25% 2 511.00% (20234 : 0.00%
Z14.15% ) °

AEEZETEECHAEBRITBERE
B EFBENAFRG SV BRRME
44 -

AREBRMARTRENEASEREBAE
EETEEQBLRZLELTIERIT It
THEEBI ISR 2 (B E TR 2 % RMCE - 4
AEBERBBERZE  AEREEEBK A
AREENREE -ANEB T BB IS
LHEZ2BR - FRASERBECRARERE
ZHE— S IBE K EE36(b) ° 72024512
B3 TEERECREBMESBNLH
(2023F : A\REEJT) o

=
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v
=
©
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33. R AT IE

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Deferred tax assets BEIEFRIBEE 14,658 3,163
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFRIBAE (14,088) (17,740)
570 (14,577)
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33.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the years:

Allowance  Impairment
for of non-current
credit loss assets

FEER #hiB
B KENHE
RMBO00  RMBI000
ARBTT  ARETR

33IRAEFLIE (&)
FHARZEES Y D ERE S EERE
GEREREEE:

Fair value

revaluation

of equity

Right-of-use Lease instruments
assets liabilities Others at FVT0Cl Total

BRAERHA

A2 EKE

fidit 4 HE ZEHTIR
BE 8f Bt ZARBEfR ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETn ARETR  ARETR

(note)
(Wb
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 418 5,007 - (656) 382 (4,442) (16,220) (15,929)
Credited to OCI REMZEHEFA - - - - - 2,655 2,655
(Charged) credited to profi RES (B )FA (F5E13)
or loss (note 13) (1,045) - 49 (307) - - (1,303)
Upon initial recognition RERERR - - (1,337) 1,337 = = =
At 31 December 2023 12023127318 3,962 - (1,944) 1,412 (4,442) (13,565) (14,577)
Charged to OCI REMZERENR - - - - = (288) (288)
(Charged) credited to profi s (183 A (H3k13)
or loss (note 13) (1,578) 12,672 339 (372) 4442 - 15,503
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38)  HEFAE (Hii38) (409) = 347 6) - - (68)
Upon initial recognition REABRE = - (695) 695 - - -
At 31 December 2024 12024%127318 1,975 12,672 (1,953) 1,729 - (13,853) 570

Note: The deferred tax was recognised in prior years in respect of
the Group’s gain on disposal of certain property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments. According to the
respective EIT Law, the Group can defer the EIT on such gain
after considering deductible reconstruction cost, if any.
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Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax of 5% is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB1,016,722,000 (2023: RMB1,062,776,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately RMB205,745,000 (2023: RMB304,166,000).
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in relation
to these unutilised tax losses and deductible temporary
differences in respect of lease liabilities, ECL provision and
impairment for property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and investment properties amounting to approximately
RMB172,420,000 (2023: RMB64,541,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Other temporary
differences are not material.

Authorised EE -

Ordinary shares of par value HKD0.07 each &AXEEE¥0.077T.2 T @A

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023

and 31 December 2024

Presented in consolidated financial
statements as:
At 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2024

202351 A18 » 20234
128318 }%2024412 8318

M2023F12A318 &
2024412 A31H

BIEPBEERSHE BRBEKEAR
A 200841 A 18 i F7 B BUs A AT 2 Kk
ZHREEEHRS%M BN IE - E LT
TH 18 AR gk FE AL P BB B A R R A& FI A
AR #1,016,722,0007T (20234 : AR ¥
1,062,776,0007T ) 2 E s [ Z RER AR & BT 75
WARFTIREE RADAEEGRE EHE
BMEEREERNEEEZSEREEZEE
Al BE N2 A T8 B R R B B o

R2024F 128318 - A& B RFRIEE
B4 A8 ANRE205,745,0007T (20234 ¢
304,166,0007T) * AE B W KL Z F R
AREEBEEAREHEEESRE BHEER
EEBEARDE BER&HE FHE
BERKREYERENANRER =2
4 N R #172,420,0007T (20234F : AR #
64,541,00070) ERIBELEFMSHEE  RA
R B ) SRR A A TR o EL At BT A= A
TEK-

REGEHMBHRRAZ5 R

Number
of shares Share capital
HKD’000
KRG# AR BETT
38,000,000,000 2,660,000
8,934,561,203 625,419
RMB'000
ARBTT
564,507
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35.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

As at 31 December 2024, the debt-to-capitalisation ratio of the
Group, represents the ratio of total borrowings as disclosed in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report to total borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company.

35. EANE eI
REBEBEEMN UERAEEBANL
REIF B RS R NERELESERER
ZEBMAREEN S EH NEFH
BRI R EFEAER -

B

¥ Bk e

MR2024F12A318  AEBE 2 BEFHER
Lb 2R FE AN F AR S B S 3R I RE32 N BT
BYEERTEHEERBERALRER A
JElGER 2 =X

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET R ARET T

Debts B 88,250 81,775
Total borrowings and equity attributable EEABERANFHEE ARGER

to owners of the Company 2,606,495 2,581,924

Debt-to-capitalisation ratio BEREEAREX 3.39% 3.17%

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36.2m T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments () EMIBEZHE
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories NTEEeHEERSBMABERR
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the HEHRZEEERKIIAT :
reporting period are set out as follows:
2024 2023
20244F 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets SREE
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BARER A M2 E WS

ZHE=TA 109,933 107,733
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBERABRZ

EMEE 5,393 16,595
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHERAVEN SR EE 912,186 697,342

1,027,512 821,670

Financial liabilities SRAE
At amortised cost T2 8 SH PR AR 316,998 320,434
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity AEBCEZCRTABREEAAE
instruments at FVTOCI, trade, bills and other receivables, SFAREMEER Sz ERTE 5
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and R M E MR  BRITEKC RE
other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these kIReEEER BHRHEMBEMNRK
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The BHRRITEE ZE2BMIAZHE
risks associated with these financial instruments and the REBRFEARE - HZEE/MITA
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. HE Az [ B DA BRI I 55 B B 2 R o
The management manages and monitors these exposures FINTX-EEEEERERLE [EE
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a BB - TR K B B UM R EUE B 1R §
timely and effective manner. it iT

PRERBRAT 185
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The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank deposits (note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements) and bank borrowings (note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements). It is the Group's
policy to keep its bank deposits, and bank borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Floating-
rate bank balances have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that the
interest rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near
future and therefore the financial impact to the Group
is not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2023: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rates had been 50 basis points (2023: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the Year would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB331,000 (2023:
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2023
would increase/decrease by approximately RMB307,000).

AEEZREREMNERARERZRT
B RRITER (REFHHRRME
29) ARSRITIEE (ARE MBS MRM T
32) 6@ - RBERAENRRR &
KB 2 R BRE HIRITF A KR
TTIEEAZFBFIRE S

AR Z 8K E 75 A T AR IR F B I R 4R
TEERFEHRZIEZAR SEE
MEEE 2B RIBITRBITER/A
BERELSN AAEREERBIILEHF
g NN D RS e S E g
B ETTERN - SLZBF RIEIT
BEMS HBEZESTERER R
EHRZAEERBESHEREEN
KEE - BERMALESEEABER
FI = [, & BF = i ) 3R N s 5018 & Bh
(20234 : ORI E L) F WM R KR EE
JZ 8 FI R A B A] g 2 8) 2 5745 o i FI
RAE,/ FHE501E & 25 (20234 : 50
EE2DMAMEEM SR ZEFT
B AREBBEAFEZHEBH G
B EANH AR %$331,0007T (2023
FHE2023F12A31BLEFE 2
% IEEEE I, R4 AR 307,000
JL) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk associated with movements
in foreign currency rates which will affect the Group's
financial results and its cash flow. As at 31 December
2024 and 2023, certain bank balances of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities. The Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging the potential foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

36.2/m T A o)

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (&)

|| o
Bl AR

BRI iE NS E R E B HEE A
B EAREE 7 HFEEERARER
= 7 EK - 720244 2023412 A31
B AEEETRITEHREANEE
BRI EE (BARE) ASMNIN
Bl & ¥ E o AN 5 B N M E ] SN EE
HBEE o AT BIEEERINES K 2
B THEREFTERZSEEFEKX
Z INES LB

7 e

RBEMR REB AN EHEZR

denominated bank balances at the end of the reporting TS REBEST
period are as follows:
Assets
EE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR¥BTT
HKD B 17,905 2,579
Sensitivity analysis BBE 5T

The Group is mainly exposed to HKD currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2023: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2023: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2023: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates.

AEETZEHEEZEHRAR-

TRFFAEBERE AR X HEEIN
BB R EZE5% (20234 : 5% ) 28K
RKJE ° 5% (2023%F : 5% ) AN ERH E
TEE A BIREINERBRFTHERB Z &K
RREF K - IR KR EEE Y[ KAl g
EEEH TG - HERELNERRE
NS E 2 MAFREKIER I
R4 BR R 8 2 H X 3 DA R Bk S0 RS [
R 75% (20235 :5% ) &F o

PREREBRDF
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A negative number below indicates decrease in post-tax
profit for the Year (2023: increase in post-tax loss for the
year 2023) where the functional currency strengthens 5%
(2023: 5%) against the relevant foreign currencies. For a
5% (2023: 5%) weakening of functional currency against
the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on profit or loss for the Year and the
balances below would be positive.

36.2/m I A o

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (8)

E i ] s [ 4E
E# R (4E)

HBEDH (&)

T3 B SRR WD B & ¥ KR AR SN
B {E5% (2023%F : 5% ) FTEE 2 AN
F[Z 1% 5 R A (20234 : 20234
BB EBE ) o e & ¥ 54
BN BZE5% (20234 : 5% ) &
HAFEERENSHEREAR ZZE
M T &R BIES -

Assets
EE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T AR®EF T
HKD koo (671) (97)

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to price risk through equity
instruments at FVTOCI. The directors do not implement
specific measures to mitigate the price risk.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties, is arising from the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and contract assets (excluding
financial assets at FVTOCI) as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively managed.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties of significant bank balance are reputable
banks in the PRC with high grade ratings assigned by
National Financial Regulatory Administration of China.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances by reference to
the average loss rate for respective credit rating grades
published by international credit-rating agencies and
concluded that the expected credit loss is insignificant.

Other receivables

The Group has taken into account the economic outlook
of the industries in which the debtors operate and
concluded that there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. As such, other
receivables are assessed for impairment individually at
each reporting date.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

36.2/m T A o)

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (F)

REAREMERESERR N&EE
EEEEZk—HABRAEEIER
RE - EEEHMEMERER
ERRBURERBR @B HRMN &
Reltdh RERBBEM K REER
FRE AEERRAMNEEHER
N REBRBEREARTEFIEHE
TTREGE - FULME  ARBESR
RAKBENEERRGIARER -

AEBEYEBREESTER ER
DHRBEHFHTRES -

RITBEBRZEERRER ER/EK
RITERNEF I DHEEEEELZ
RIT AEFEBERSREEEER
BT aEMarse

20244 N2023F 128318  AEEH
L2ZBBREETREERBBEEE
AR AR BRI EIE R RTT A
BETRAEN G TRLEHEHEER
BT E -

AEEEREEHALETREER
B YREANSERREERRY
EWREEN AL REREAHEF
& E i FRIB Z RE -
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The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

R EPIEEFFR

Low risk

1K B

Watch list

BRRE

Doubtful

15 5t

Loss

18

Write-off

5

Description
i

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts
RSEFEHRRK - B I EE (T8 ERIE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settles after due date

BEEABRTRIHEREE BERENIH
HigE&E

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed internally
or external resources

B BRHERLAR - BB AN E R B
Z B 58 = KRN

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit impaired

BERBBRRNEELREERE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

ERBRTEBAMBARENBEEE  mA
SEVEBERFLEBREBRIE

AEBEARMEERRTERIEATH

Bl :

Trade receivables/
contract assets
BESEWRE
EHEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

GFEAEREEEE -
EEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

FEBAEREEEE -
EEERE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
FEMEBEEEE -
EEERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
FEMEBEEEE -
EERE

Amount is written off

SR M

Other financial assets/
other items

HtbemEE
HfEE

12-month ECL

12 AFEHEEREE

12-month ECL

12 AEHEERRE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

FEPEREEEE -
EEERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
FEAEREEEE -
EERE

Amount is written off

& RO M
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External credit  Internal credit
Notes rating rating

Wi SHBEEFR AREEFR

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H
36T A )
(b) £REBREEEEREE ()
=B R K EF G (&)

TRAMIHAEEEREENER
Rk EXBRREHEEERE:

12-month or lifetime

ECL Gross carrying amount
12 A EES
BHEEER EHAE
2024 2023
20245 2023F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBHEBAIRNEREE
Trade receivables 26 n/a (note)
& SRR TER (FizE)
Loss
B
Amounts due from 26 n/a Low risk
non-controlling THEA KRB
interests
PRI IR
B
Amount due from an 26 n/a Low risk
associate N -
Rl BB A2 30R el g
Dividend receivable 26 n/a Low risk
from associates @R NEN
R E R ERE
Dividend receivable 26 n/a Low risk
from a joint venture TR KRB

ER—RagLEKRE

Lifetime ECL (not credit 63,204 65,212
impaired and provision
matrix)

FERRHEERR (&
EERERERER)

Lifetime ECL (credit 3,916 2,443
impaired)

FEBEBEE
EB#E (FERE)

12-month ECL 33,096 17,075
(assessed individually)

NREABRBEERE
(EBTMH)

B

12-month ECL 480 -
(assessed individually)

RMEREHEERHE
(BRFH)

12-month ECL 52,179 -
(assessed individually)

12MAREHEERHE
(EBFM)

12-month ECL 51,000 -
(assessed individually)

NREABBEERE
(EBTM)

=
I0
v
=
<
=
'S
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

External credit

Internal credit

6.2/ TR @
b) SREAREEEBERKE(2)

=B ER R E (&)

12-month or lifetime

Notes rating rating ECL Gross carrying amount
128 A R FEH
M SMBEEER A EETR BHEEER REAE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARET T
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
RBERAIRENEREE (B)
Other receivables and 26 n/a Low risk 12-month ECL 32,275 26,679
deposits N A KRR (assessed individually)
Hftn YR IE & REABBEERBE
Be (EB\FME)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit 582 -
re2=4 impaired and assessed
individually)
FRMENE
BB (A
REBH(E)
Loss Lifetime ECL 12,262 16,405
B (credit impaired)
FERBHEEER
(58 E)
Bank deposits 29 A to Bbb Low risk 12-month ECL 120,313 211,468
BITEH AZBbb YEN (assessed individually)
NREAEHEEER
(EBFM)
Bank balances and 29 AAA to Bbb Low risk 12-month ECL 578,906 393,033
cash AAAZBbDb il (assessed individually)
BOEHEAE REABBEERSE
(EB\FME)
Other items
HtiEE
Contract assets 27 n/a (note) Lifetime ECL (not credit 25,496 34,072
BAHEE T (P &E) impaired and provision
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors which were
credit-impaired which are assessed individually, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items grouped
by past due status for trade and bills receivables and the status
of the relevant projects of the contract assets. When there
are indicators that the relevant contract assets may be credit
impaired, the relevant amount will be assessed for expected
credit losses individually.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its operation because these customers
consist of a large number of customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities
to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. Based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit
loss experience of the existing debtors and all available
forward-looking information, including but not limited to
the expected economic conditions in the PRC and expected
subsequent settlements, the Group does not consider that
default occurs for those contractual payments that are more than
90 days past due.

The Group used estimated loss rates based on aging for classes
with different credit risk characteristics and exposures, and
the estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. M A s

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) REREEEERBX (8)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= BB R R E G (&)
Trade receivables: B EINGRIA
2024
20244
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
FEHAF S

BEE AKREE HERE REFE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®BTR AR%TR

Less than 3 months 318 A A 0.28% 41,619 (118) 41,501
3 — 6 months 3Z6fE A 8.50% 3,930 (334) 3,596
6 — 12 months 6% 121 A 29.42% 3,916 (1,152) 2,764
1 -2 years 1226 55.59% 4,143 (2,303) 1,840
2 - 3 years 2E34F 71.40% 1,979 (1,413) 566
Over 3 years HAHA3F 100.00% 3,488 (3,488) -
59,075 (8,808) 50,267
Credit impaired EERE 100.00% 3,916 (3,916) -
2023
20234

Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

T HA 15

BEx RkmEE BERRE EKEFE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTI ARBETET ARETRT

Less than 3 months 3 AR 0.00% 40,921 (1) 40,920
3 — 6 months 361 A 6.22% 3,326 (207) 3,119
6 — 12 months 621218 A 14.74% 5,191 (765) 4,426
1 -2 years 1225 36.02% 2,610 (940) 1,670
2 — 3 years DESR 97.26% 3,067 (2,983) 84
Over 3 years BiB3F 100.00% 3,420 (3,420) =

58,535 (8,316) 50,219
Credit impaired EERE 100.00% 2,443 (2,443) -
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.2/m T A o)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRIEREEEZRBEER ()
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER R R EF G (&)
During the Year, the Group made impairment loss REFEA AEERBREEERREREZ S
of approximately RMB2,078,000 (2023: reversal of FEUGRIA K & K& EFT IR E BB 4
impairment loss of approximately RMB639,000) for trade AR #2,078,0007T (20234 : J5l (B &5
receivables and contract assets based on the provision 1B B 49 A R #639,0007T ) °
matrix.
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRETREBESTERE SRR
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables and BHREHNEECHERANFERERE
contract asset under the simplified approach. EEBE2E2%-
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit (not credit ECL (credit
impaired) impaired) impaired)*
REHES FEHES BENEY
BEFE BEER REER
(BEEHE) (BEERE) (GEHME)*
Contract assets Trade receivables Total
AHEE LU &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2023 202351418 - 11,105 2,443 13,548
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B2 E FERA KR E S 1B - @.777) = 2,777)
Impairment loss recognised ERAZAESR = 2,138 = 2,138
Write-off 34 = (2,150) - (2,150)
28
At 31 December 2023 12023F12 8318 - 8,316 2,443 10,759 g =
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & [EIE AR A BEE - (220) - (2200 B
Impairment loss recognised BRRAZRERSE - 825 1,473 2298 |
Write-off s - (113) = (113)
At 31 December 2024 320245128318 - 8,808 3916 12,724
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there B ERBEREBR ARREERN IS

is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

* Full provision was made for respective credit-impaired
trade receivable.

W B E B S 2 EIWE SR
AEESMEE 5 EWHIE  WED
AEBBRREEARERF-

& EEBNEERERNE S EKK
TREH 2R -
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss that

6.2/ TR @
b) SREAREEEBERKE(2)

1= B g Ko E A (&)
TRETE®RRNEARAGEEER

has been recognised for 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL RiFEPRBEREEERNEREEM
on other receivables. FE U SR B8R o
Lifetime ECL (not  Lifetime ECL (credit
credit impaired) impaired) Total
FEHRES BENES
EEFR EEFR
(BREERE) (E&HE) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2023 R2023%1A18 6,732 17,102 23,834
Reversal of impairment loss recognised REOEERNRESE (690) (2,409) (3,099)
Impairment loss recognised BRRZAESE 4,030 7,999 12,029
Write-off fi 34 - (8,550) (8,550)
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12431H 10,072 14,142 24214
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BRI EERHFESE - (3,410) (3,410)
Impairment loss recognised BERRZAEER 969 2,180 3,149
Write-off fi 35 - (650) (650)
At 31 December 2024 12024128318 11,041 12,262 23,303
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains the level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’'s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management manages
liquidity risk by monitoring adequate reserves, banking
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
The Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated from
operations and bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

36.2/m T A o)

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (&)

REERBREEAMRE  AEBEER
REFEEBERRABNAEERE
BRKEZRe RREFEERA
YHERERERNGZFE -ERE
BAREEERANERRERE
ASEIR Tt R M - SRITIRAE - WM E R
mBE T E R

HRAREXGBEATEEE &
AEERREFRARRSNEERE
UHEAKRERDESTFE - AKH
BREEMELZES RRITEELR
BHARREEESRE-

TREHZBIPE ZEBGH A&
BIETES BB ERNBE VIR ZF
B RDIBERASENEHAE
ARERFRERMRZAZARUHAR
EREMMBmSE - LR BEMNERAE
BEMRE - WH S AFEN R REE - 8
AR B RIFRE R ZF K
ARETE

PREREBRDF
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. M A s

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) REREEEERBX (8)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB LR (&)
Weighted Within
average second to Total
effective Within fifth years, Over fifth undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year inclusive years cash flow amount
F-ERER
MEFHIER (BREEE AERRS
Gk —£R mE)  ERFHNE hEAE REE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

At 31 December 2024 20245124318

Trade and other payables & 5 REMENFUE - 228,748 - - 228,748 228,748
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.53 85,125 362 4,504 89,991 88,250
Lease liabilities HERE 4.67 4,731 8,269 3,622 16,622 14,677
318,604 8,631 8,126 335,361 331,675
Weighted Within
average second to Total
effective Within fifth years, Qver fifth  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year inclusive years cash flow amount
F-RRER
METHER (BHEEE AERRE
% —£R mE)  FREHNE mEBE KA

% RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETRE ARMTT ARBTR AREBTR

At 31 December 2023 20234124318

Trade and other payables &5 REMEMFA - 238,659 - - 238,659 238,659
Bank borrowings RITEE 372 83,059 192 - 83,251 81,775
Lease liabilities HERAR 487 4,675 14,209 4,452 23336 19,892

326,393 14,401 4,452 345,246 340,326
The amounts included above for variable interest rate i) Z BT R E B AP RS HAREE R
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject FE{EFAR - B LM FTE & IELTE
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those TREENIHNEXTIASHETER
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the o

reporting period.
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

e MBRERNE

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.2m T B

() PR{EFE

AEERDEMEETINEREHR
BAREFE TREHRDMEE L
FeRMEELABZER (FRIERR
ERZEETERBABE)

Fair value  Valuation technique and significant
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
tREE ARE AREER RERMREATTEERANE
2024 2023
2024% 2023F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOCI
PEREALEHAR
th2EREZH LT
BEIA
An entity engaged in 78,145 78,168  Level 3 Fair value is derived from market multiple -
manufacturing and enterprise value to earnings before interest, tax,
sale of glass products depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") of 8.1
business (2023: 8.2) and discount for lack of marketability of
20.4% (2023: 20.5%) (note)
— R ERE RHER F=R ARETATERSGE-CREERUNE B
BEREH ER B EREHANRF (TEV/EBITDA]) A8.1 (2023
F:82) RBZT5RBMNZ#ER204% (2023
:20.5%) (M3
An entity engaged in 21,451 20,148 Level 3 Fair value is derived from the market multiple -
banking business price-to-book (“P/B") ratio of 0.43 (2023: 0.4) and
discount for lack of marketability of 20.4% (2023:
20.5%) (note)
=R RAERDEGE-M&RE (P/B])0.43(2023F

—BARERTEHL
B

0.4) LBz HHRBEZIE20.4% (2023F:
20.5% )& (HizE)

FREZERERAF
2024 F R (HE2024F 128310 L EE)

B

=
I0
v
=
<
=
'S

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12831H

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. @i T A (s

(c) Fair value measurements (Continued) () AAREFE(E)

il

Fair value  Valuation technique and significant

Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
tHEE ARE AREER AERMREAFTTEERGAHE
2024 2023
2024% 2023F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOC/
(Continued)
PEREALEHAR
th2EREZH LT
B&TA(H)
Entities engaged in sales 5,525 5,154 Fair values are derived from market multiple — EV/

and distribution of
cylinder gas and gas
appliances business

EBITDA of 6.9 (2023: 6.9) and discount for lack of
marketability of 20.4% (2023: 20.5%) (note)

fEEHE RN HERM # R ETIATSEHEE— EVEBITDARG.9 (2023
AEMRBARKL F0RBRZ M E MBI 217 R204% (2023F :
EE 20.5%) (FtzE)

An entity engaged in 345 412 Fair value is derived from market multiple - EV/

sales and distribution
of cylinder gas
and gas appliances

Revenue of 0.1 (2023: 0.2) and discount for lack of
marketability of 20.4% (2023: 20.5%) (note)

business

—RREHE R i RABNATSREEAE-CXEERABAR
KMRARMRSAR 0.1(2023% : 0.2) R Z M5 MANE 2 3 520.4%
BEER (2023%F:20.5%) (KizE)

Entities engaged in sales 2,260 2,969 Fair values are derived from the estimated fair value
and distribution of of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
cylinder gas investees

REHE LD HERM RAETREREURBAZEBEERARZRE
ALER ARRERE

An entity engaged in 307 366 Fair value is derived from the market multiple — EV/

sale and distribution
of cookware business

EBITDA of 7.2 (2023: 7.9) and discount for lack of
marketability of 20.4% (2023: 20.5%) (note)

—RREHERSH = DRETUTSEEE— EV/EBITDART.2 (2023
HERAXK R F79)RBREZ MG BN 2 HTEA20.4% (2023
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31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36.2m T B

(c) Fair value measurements (Continued) (c) AREE(E)

Fair value  Valuation technique and significant

Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
tHEE DA MREER RERAREAFTTERGHARE
2024 2023
2024% 2023%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOC/

(Continued)

PEREALETAR
tE2EARZZHF LT
EHXTE(E)

An entity engaged in - 516 Level 3 Fair value is derived from the estimated fair value
provision of company of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
consulting service investee

—RARERHE QAR =8 RAETREREUSKAZEBEER ARG
RB2ER AARERE

An entity engaged in 1,900 - Level3 Fair value is derived from the estimated fair value
sale and distribution of the underlying assets and liabilities held by the
of cylinder gas investee
(inactive)

—EREHER D HE E=H AREDRBEREUSGFECRBEERARB 2R
KRR ER (LR AR EEE
%)

b
109,933 107,733 =

=
I0
v
=
<
=
'S
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Note:

The higher the market multiples applied, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa. The higher the discount, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa. The significant unobservable inputs
are the discount for lack of marketability, the market multiples
applied. A 5% increase/decrease in the discount rate for lack of
marketability, holding all other variables constant, the fair value
of the investments would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB6,644,000 (2023: RMB6,589,000) as at 31 December 2024.

The EBITDA and net asset value of the respective investees
used for the valuations at 31 December 2024 are based on the
audited financial statements or, where the audited financial
statements are not available, the management accounts of the
investees up to 31 December 2024.

Fair value measurements

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets

(d)

ERANMSEEYES 2AERS  R2TF
RoWrZEA RAMBEAITR  RZIFKe
EATAHERGALRBEAREZ DHERBM
e ™5 S HA B A 0 702024912 A31
H RZmSn@EirEEin,/ mM45%:
FBEMEESRIFTE KEZ AR EBR
A1 IN4) A R #6,644,0007T (20234 :
AR #6,589,0007T) °

72024512 A31 8B 2 G EFT AR E Y
KZHE BB -MERBHEINRFRE
EEVFE TR IR A A% B TE SR ok i R
BREZHEHRE  AREREHREE
2024512 A31H LB A EL -

Unquoted equity investments FLmEzmTA
RMB'000
AREEF T
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1 818 127,544
Addition = 190
Disposal k=S (106)
Fair value change recognised in OCI BAZEMZEARENAAEBEEZD (19,895)
At 31 December 2023 72023512 H31H 107,733
Additions NE 2,090
Disposal k== (2,022)
Fair value change recognised in OCI BREEMEEREN AR EEED 2,132
At 31 December 2024 720245124318 109,933
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(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

36.2m T B

RMB’000

AREFTT

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1 818 =
Purchase of wealth management products EEIEUEM 16,500
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss BREB=MALBEED 95
At 31 December 2023 (note) 720235128318 (MF&E) 16,595
Redemption of wealth management products & [0 32 BF = (16,595)
Purchase of wealth management products EEEMEM 5,200
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss REB=ERZ N FEE 193
At 31 December 2024 (note) 72024512 A318 (M) 5,393

Note:

The fair value measurement was determined based on valuations
provided by the counterparty banks as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the management establishes the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The management
reports the findings to the directors half yearly to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets
and liabilities.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the Year.

B &L -

AREFTENRIBER S E FEITR20244F
F2023F 12 A31H IR ZHEEE -

N EFERIGEEF

REFTEEXRBENAAER AL
BEAERAD SRR - B&
FREE—RBABER EEES
REERABRYABENGET ARE
ABE-BEEESFFREFTERS
RUBEBEEENABRAARERINER
o

BHELEHEEEEA R EH B2 2
BEEREBEEL LA
EERA NEAYBBRETREY
RARENSBAERSRARNHE
EERAD A EEE -

REFRNE-—R F_RRE=ZH2
Faﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%;"

PRERERAF
2024 F R (B ZE2024F12A31B L FE)
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31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

37.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

37.

#f Bk

TRHANAKERERDMELAGB L

MEETBELEEEZ

=4

B (EEASRFRSEH) MEZHHN
EEZBEREERERECHARKRAER

ERRAEE

VAN
=a

BRPHREREZRE-

Amounts due

RERERTHIELR

to non-
controlling
Bank interest of Lease
borrowings subsidiaries liabilities Total
FE A3 B 2
FERER
BITEE ZRE HESE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T AREF T ARETT
At 1 January 2023 MW2023F1A18 85,520 1,676 15,296 102,492
Financing cash flows BERERE (7,171) (19,274) (5,188) (31,633)
Addition of lease liabilities HES L = = 9,146 9,146
Increase in amount due to a non-  FEft — R KB 2 A
controlling interest of a subsidiary FE¥E M 2 FIBIE N - 18,412 = 18,412
Finance costs recognised ERRRERAK 3,426 = 1,068 4,494
Derecognition of lease liabilites ~ & IFEZHEEEE - - (430) (430)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12831H 81,775 814 19,892 102,481
Financing cash flows BERERE 3,269 8,000 (5,727) 5,542
Addition of lease liabilities HEEEEN - - 7,780 7,780
Decrease in amount due to a non- JERf —REIH B A Al
controlling interest of a subsidiary ~ JEVE A% iE % 2 B = (618) = (618)
Finance costs recognised EERBEXA 3,206 - 1,039 4,245
Derecognition of lease liabilities & It ERAHE & E - - (8,307) (8,307)
At 31 December 2024 M2024F12 4318 88,250 8,196 14,677 111,123
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31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group has disposed of certain subsidiaries
which are no longer subsidiaries of the Group subsequent to the
disposals.

38. HE T2 7
FR AEBCPLEETHE AR  ZEH
BArRNLEERTBAKREENB AR

MR2024F4 7 AEBHE EXE THER
BRAT ([FEET])Z501%0%%# 8
EH(—EZBUE=H)WRMZ2ELRELY
BARYT 763,0000° EEET EEHE
HERDIHBEREMR - AL KAEB KLY
TR T Ry il -

In April 2024, the Group disposed of 50.1% equity interest
in Yuxi Pugong New Energy Co., Ltd."* (“Yuxi Pugong”) at
cash consideration of approximately RMB7,763,000 from
the purchaser, an independent third party. Yuxi Pugong was
principally engaged in the sales and distribution of cylinder gas.
As a result, the Group lost control on Yuxi Pugong.

The aggregate net assets of Yuxi Pugong as at the date of FEETITREERPNFEEBBLOT
disposal were as follows:

RMB'000
ARETTT
Net assets disposed of: HEEEZE:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MRS 444
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 3,425
Inventories FE 540
Trade, other receivables and prepayments 2 5 - H e W IE R TN IR 46
Deferred tax assets BEETIRE E 409
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 30
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E MR FRIE (618)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR A 2 (2,134)
Net assets disposed of HEEEZE 2,142
Cash consideration RaefE 7,763
Gain on disposal &z s 5,621
S
Net cash inflow on disposal: LEMBRESRAFRE: s
Cash consideration received BUIR e KRE 7,763 |=
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERITERNIAS (30)
7,733

U Formerly named as Yuxi Jiehua Zhongmin Clean Energy Co., 1

Ltd.*

* For identification purpose only

AT REM R RBEERERAA
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In October 2024, the Group disposed of 51% equity interest 2024F10A  AEBEEEERERRER

in Funing Jiehua Zhongmin Clean Energy Co., Ltd.* (“Funing RERER ARSI %K - BEERE P RBZR
Jiehua") at cash consideration of approximately RMB2,480,000 ERAERAR ([EEHL]) ReRED
to the purchaser, an independent third party. Funing Jiehua was R ARM2,480,000T - EFERIEEZH SR
principally engaged in the sales and distribution of cylinder gas. HE R D HERME - ALt REBKREH
As a result, the Group lost control on Funing Jiehua. B ERR L A= I RE -
The aggregate net assets of Funing lJiehua as at the date of EEMEREEANNFEERBNT
disposal were as follows:
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Net assets disposed of: s & ERE:
Property, plant and equipment VEN S 554
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 319
Inventories FE 249
Trade, other receivables and prepayments B 5 - Hth fE W SKIB R FE T 5RIB 399
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 1,023
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & & 6
Trade and other payables 2 5 K& H M JE T 5RI8 (1,352)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEAE (347)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 4 o (417)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 434
Cash consideration RENRE 2,480
Gain on disposal & 2 W 2,046
Net cash inflow on disposal: HEMBRESMAFE:
Cash consideration received BEWRERE 2,480
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTERRIAS (1,023)
1,457

*  For identification purpose only



All services received in exchange for the grant of any share
options are measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the fair values of share options
granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purposes of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include full-time employees (including directors),
consultants, agents and advisors of the Group. The Share Option
Scheme is valid and effective until 8 September 2026.

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of shares available
for issue under the share option scheme was 694,495,413
(2023: 694,495,413), representing approximately 7.77%
(2023: 7.77%) of the issued share capital of the company.
Without prior approval from the company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the share option scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any point
in time, and the aggregate number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the company in
issue at any point in time.

No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the share option scheme (the “offer”). The share
option scheme may be exercised at any time for a period of ten
years commencing from the date of acceptance of the offer,
subject to the conditions imposed by the board of the directors.
The exercise price of the option shares would be at a price
equal to the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of offer of the option; (i) the average closing prices
of the shares of the Company on the stock exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. No share option was
granted, exercised or outstanding during both years.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute defined percentages, ranging from 12% to 25%,
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits in compliance with the applicable regulations of the
PRC.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the rules and regulations of the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HKD1,500
(2023: HKD1,500) per month per employee to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution
is matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions under the respective schemes above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB23,370,000 (2023: RMB21,032,000) represents contributions
paid or payable to these schemes by the Group for the Year. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

BRETERTHAAZAEREINBEEX
LREZEN - RBEFE SERD -
TR 3K iR AR T (B (e R A e

ARBIRFEMBARZEE IFRBEBFZ
RIKEFIFTEIKE - BEF BB A R ZEN
TEXRAZEEAED L (N T12%=E25% )
HERAEMFEHRAUFTERR ZEHE
o

REBEAMBREBRFIELAESERRDR
AIRERB T2 EREBREERLAESD
TE - EEEREASBEESFAFEE A
EEANESHAERE NEBRERZES
ZEBABBEIENARBESFTEELS%
s _EPR & 7E¥1,5007T (20234 : & # 1,500
To) 3K B B MBI AR R B A R e A&
B E—&BABIBES Lilis 8l RRIKE
FIFTEIfE L 8 B K o

RIS R Z A BEEA AR 23,370,000
7% (20234 : AR #21,032,00070) IE RN E =
AEEAEBAZES BN RENZH
Ko R20244F 2023F 12 A318 ' I EE &
Wz XA AR BB AR 2R fE A5 2 fE 3R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AMEHEBBREALTZRS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRRErE I mEREMI D AT IEEEIN - A
statements, the Group entered into the following transactions SEABMA TR AFEANEEL TR
with related parties during the Year: 2
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTT AR¥ETTT

Purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi BRRFEE RARKRMN B R A A RE

Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd.* (note i) RARE (PsEi) 170,790 163,014
Purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi Gas MR RSB EREE R RERE

Group Co., Ltd.* (note i) KAS (BIsEi) 15,930 -
Purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi City BRANMRREXEREGR AT

Gas Industry Development Co., Ltd.* BERAR (MzE)

(note i) 8,917 =
Purchase of cylinder gas from Yunnan Jiehua B ZEEHE(LERERAEER A A

Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd.* FREERERAT (i)

(note ii) 10,163 23,480
Purchase of cylinder gas from Southwest BB IAEEBRERR

Panva 5,365 9,276
Purchase of cylinder gas from Yunnan BEBEBRLEIARAARE

Pioneer Chemical Co., Ltd.* (note ii) W R R, (Bt =i ) 27,860 5,345
Purchase of gas appliances from Fujian BRRELABEMNRSFZR

An Ran 147 1,053
Sale of cylinder gas to Funing County MEZEEEAEARRBRIEE

Fuxiang Oxygen B Express Factory* BERRR 44 =
Sale of cylinders to Yunnan Panva MEMBEIHEEMR 422 -
Rental fee paid to Mile City Xinyuan Gas MR MERMRBEEEARF

Co., Ltd.* X & 105 105
Rental fee paid to Funing County Fuxiang HEEZEHER RS

Oxygen B Express Factory* 75 100
Consulting service fee received from MEEL AW ARG E

Fujian An Ran 49 76
The above transactions were made on terms mutually agreed LA ER S TR E TS € 2GR GEST

between both parties.

*  For identification purpose only

PRERERAF
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41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. is a connected person
of the Company as it holds 40% equity interests in Xi‘an Civigas
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas"), a subsidiary of the Company.

Shaanxi Gas Group Co., Ltd. is the parent company of Shaanxi
Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd..

Shaanxi City Gas Industry Development Co., Ltd. is the subsidiary
of Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd..

These are connected person transactions and details are set out
under the heading of connected transactions in the report of the
directors.

(i) Yunnan Jiehua Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. is a
connected person of the Company as it holds 49% equity
interests in Yunnan lJiehua Civigas Clean Energy Co., Ltd.
("Yunnan Jiehua"), a subsidiary of the Company.

Yunnan Pioneer Chemical Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Yunnan
Jiehua Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd..

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company considered they are the sole
management personnel of the Group, and their remuneration
during the Year is disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements. The remuneration of the directors of the
Company is recommended by the remuneration committee to
the Board having regard to the performance of individual and
market trends
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31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

42 .OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42 X &0 S & IE

The Group as lessor AEEFERHAA
The Group leased its investment properties, as set out in note 4R A B 75 R R K aE18FT 8 A BRI
18 to the consolidated financial statements under operating KEHERHELHEEEEMSE £ TEf
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for terms ranging EFHA1ZeF  BETHERABEERS
from 1 to 6 years at fixed rental for certain leases and periodic REMASERLEMES: & THERY
rental escalations for others; early termination rights were IRATAR IR BRSEHEEREB LB
granted in some agreements, and priority renewal rights REEMRDNMOMERSRBRANBAR
were granted for specific leases. Gross property rental income #5,294,0007T (20234 : A R #3,293,000
earned during the Year was approximately RMB5,294,000 L) M E DL 2R - HERK—RINE
(2023: RMB3,293,000) with minimal outgoings. The terms of KEFPHRREBLEE -
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits.
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: MBS 2 ZEBENREINAT
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 1,681 1,449
In the second year B_F 373 247
In the third year EFE=F 183 100
In the fourth year Efusfes 57 -
In the fifth year FRF 44 -
2,338 1,796
P -
43.CAPITAL AND OTHER 43. BN H A AIE o
.o
COMMITMENTS 2 =
Capital and other expenditure contracted for but not provided B AEMARGANBEREREYER =
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: REMRARL
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Purchases of: PRAE -
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk 7,232 11,093
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15,787 13,986

23,019 25,079
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44 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain assets to banks to secure certain
bank borrowings of the Group. Carrying amounts of the assets
pledged were as follows:

44 & = IR

AEBBEMBITERE TEENRBAE
By ETRITEE BEMAEEZREEN
T

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment M B MR
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Investment properties WEY

Restrictions on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB14,677,000
(2023: RMB19,892,000) are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of approximately RMB15,103,000 (2023:
RMB10,847,000) as at 31 December 2024 (note 31). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor
and the relevant leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

A natural gas charging right was pledged from 17 March 2022
to 16 March 2025 as collateral. The assessed or negotiated
value of the collateral between the Group and the bank is
approximately RMB276,171,100.

45.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no significant contingent
liability.
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46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46.78 A | 2 B FE AR R R 3k

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period includes:

ARMEMRZFBMRRABREIE:

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk 1 3
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 470,920 447,845
470,921 447,848
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables and prepayments HL A FE WK IA K FE S FOE 897 834
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 274 337
1,171 1,171
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Other payables Hh P& 3RIE 1,449 724
1,449 724
Net current (liabilities) assets mE (BB EEFE (278) 447
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 470,643 448,295
2%
Capital and reserves IR AN R R4 R
Share capital (note 34) AR (BT 5E34) 564,507 564,507 [
Reserves L] (93,864) (116,212) |+
Total equity B 470,643 448,295
FRZRERAF

2024 F R (HE2024F 128310 L EE)
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46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Note:

The following table sets out the components of the reserves of the
Company and the movements thereof during the current year and prior

46. 751 B) 2 B B AR I ¥R 3R

=R
(%

P & -

TREIIAR T2 BRBH RERAEER
BEFEHD-

year.
Deemed
Share Contributed Contribution Capital Accumulated
Premium Surplus Reserve Contribution Losses Total
R EE EIN-L RERERE EAES it ER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AEETT ARETT ARETTR AREFT
At 1 January 2023 ROF1A18 1,003.9% 104,932 (429083) 77 (816,459) (128874)
Deemed contribution arising from EUMBLRFE EEHE
imputed interest on amounts due EEZBETE
from subsidiaries - - 9,954 - - 9,954
Profit and total comprehensive income A E R k2 ARGES
for the year - - - - 2,708 2,708
At 31 December 2023 R03ENA31A 1,003.9% 104,932 (419,109 77 (813751) (116,212
Deemed contribution arising from EUBBEARTEZ BEHE
imputed interest on amounts due EEZBETE
from subsidiaries - - 12,425 - - 12,425
Profit and total comprehensive income  AEEEF R 2AUNRLE
for the year - - - - 9923 9,923
At 31 December 2024 H04E127318 1,003,995 104,932 (406,684 1701 (603,828) (93.864)

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company's shares issued and the value of net assets
of the underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
(i) the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

The deemed contribution was arisen from a fair value adjustment of
imputed interest of a consideration related to acquisition of subsidiaries
from the major shareholder during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Capital contribution was arisen from the discontinuation of electrical
and mechanical engineering service operations at the time of disposal
of Kenworth Group in 2004.
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47.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

47. FEH B R A

202412 A31H K2023F 128318 ' &
RRAIZEZEWBRAAFBELOT

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Held by Held by
Name of company?# establishment paid share capital Group's effective interest the Company directly the Company indirectly Principal activities
AL/
P2 RihY BRRERRE rEERRER RAMTERES HALAEREE  IERE
2024 2013 2024 2023 2024 2023
04= 3% WuE NB3E WuE 038
FRARMEARAT PRC USD60,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Bejing Civigas Co,, Ltd) i 60,000,000 70 RERHK
oI RRRRERRAT PRC RMB300,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Sichuan Chigas Investment Co, Ltd) AR300,000,0007 RERH
IrREERRERAR PRC RMB152,222,200 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Befing Zhongmin Tongjn Gas Co, Lid) Bl AR#152,222,007 RERK
REPRMEMEERAT PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Tianjin Civigas Technology Co,, Ltd) AR100,000,00070 RERH
TRAREZRMEHERERAR PRC RMB114,740,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Beijing Zhongmin Ruojia Supermarket 6l ARH114,740,0007C RERK
Chain Management Limited)
HSnRRRARAR PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Yanting Civigas Co,, Ltd.) HE AR&20,000,0007 HEEERS
BIRRBRERAR PRC RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas
(Mianzhu Civigas Co,, Ltd) G AE70,000,0007 REEERA
&
BhTRERAZEEREMALE PRC RMB15,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas S5
(Mianzhu City Long Teng Gas k] ARE15,0000007 HEEERS §
Installation Co, Ltd.) ic
BImERRRRARAT PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Mian Zhu City Han Wang hE ARE10,000,0007 REEBRA
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.)
FERREFARR A PRC RMB16,762,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas
(Beichuan County Civigas Co, Ltd) ARE16,762,0007 REEERA
ERPRMRARAR PRC RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of piped gas
(Chongging Civigas Co, Ltd) e ARE70,000,0007 kEEBRA
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47.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

A7.EEMHE A 8 @

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Held by Held by
Name of company?# establishment paid share capital Group’s effective interest the Company directly the Company indirectly Principal activities
AL/
PEES RUtE BRARMERE AREERER HALRERKE HALREERE E3:54)
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
NUE ABE WuE 035 WnE 035
ERPRERIFMAARAG  PRC RVB2,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Provision of piped gas
{Chongaing Civigas Fugiang hE AR2,000,0007 HEEENS
Industrial Gas Co, Ltd.)
ERTRRGRERRARAA  PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Provision of piped gas
(Chongging Civigas Xiangyang hE AR 10,000,0007 HEEERS
Compressed Gas Co., Ltd)
ETERRIRARLR PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Provision of piped gas
([ETHR])* e ARE30,000,0007 HEZERS
(Fuping Civigas Co,, Ltd.)
("Fuping Civigas”)
BRRRARERAT PRC RVB62,080,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Provison of iped gas
(4fan Ciigas Co, Ltd) E ARH62,080 0007 KESERR
ENeaEETRIABRERLE PRC RMB40,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provison of piped gas
(Guizhou Province Zhenfeng County Bl AR40,000,0007 fEEERS
Ping'an Gas Co,, Ltd,)
BRhRAENRERAA PRC RMB10,100,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Gas distribution
(Xi'an Civigas Haihui New Energy 8] (2023: RMB5,000,000) ik
Co, Ltd) AR%10,100,0007
(zB==¢:
ARH5,0000007t)
HERRARERAD ((fBRR]) PRC RMB26,000,000 55% 55% - - 55% 55% Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Hunan Civigas Co, Ltd,) hE AE%26,000,0007 HERARERRA
("Hunan Civigas")
HRRRRAERAT PRC RMB10,000,000 28.05% 28.05% - - 28.05% 28.05%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(IRRaR]) e ARE10,000,0007 HERAREENA
(Xupu Civigas Co., Ltd J*#
("Xupu Civigas")
ERPRIEARAA PRC RMB66,260,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Yunnan Civigas Co,, Ltd) HE A& %66,260,0007C HERDHREMR
BEARMEARAA PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Baise Civigas Co, Ltd)) HE ARE10,000,0007 HERDHERMAR
ERPRMEARAA PRC RMB12,353,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
{Guangdong Chvigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARE12,353,0007 HERDHERMR
REHGARMAHEARAT  PRC RMB6,640,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cyinder gas
(Tianjin i County Civigas Co., Ltd) AR B6,640,0007 HERAREZNA
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AY
===} e | 7=
47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. T 2B QA

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Held by Held by
Name of company?# establishment paid share capital Group’s effective interest the Company directly the Company indirectly  Principal activities

HhAL/
PEES RUtE BRARMERE AREERER HALRERKE HALREERE E3:54)

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
NUE a3 E 3 E 3
REBEMRARBENGERAA PRC RMB16,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Tianjin Binhai New Ditrct Civigas ARE16,0000007 HERDHERNR
(o, Ltd)

AHRNEARAA PRC RMB15,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Hebei Civigas Co,, Ltd) L ARE15,000,0007 HERDHREMR
TEPRERERAR PRC RMB13,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cyinder gas
Henan Civigas Co,, Ltd. #E ARE13,000,0007 HERDHERAR
MR RABRAR PRC RVB500,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Guizhou Civigas Co., Ltd.) L AR 5000007 HERDHREMR
REARMRERAT PRC RMB5,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60% Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Changshun Civigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARH5,000,0007 HERDHERNR
RERRERMKRARAR PRC RMB32,500,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Tianjin Civigas Hengan Gas Co, Ltd) ARE32,500,0007 HERDHREMA
ERRARATERARALAR PRC RMB55,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  Food ingredients supply and FMCG
(Chongaing Yubaijia Supermarket ~~ FRE] AR &55,000,0007 ANHEANES

Chain Co,, ltd)

EREREEAEREANAER  MC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  Food ingredients supply and FMCG
EREAAR hE AR 10,000,000 RNREAES "
(Chongging Grain Group Yubaijia % %
Agricultural Technology 5
Development Co, Ltd) £
ERMEEENIIAARERLT PRC RMB1,789,390 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  Food ingredients supply and FMCG
(Chongging Keweia Logistics i ARE1,789,3907 RNREAES

Distribution Co., Ltd)

EREREZARAT PRC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  Food ingredients supply and FMCG
(Chongqing Huiquan Trading Co,, R ABE#10,000,0007 RIEENES

Ltd)

ERRREFMERERARAA RC RMB10,000,000 53.50% 53.50% - - 53.50% 53.50% Food ingredients supply and FMCG
(Chongging Zhongmin Ruojia Supply B ARE10,000,0007 RNHEANES

Chain Management Limited)
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47.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

47. F BB A A =

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Held by Held by
Name of company?# establishment paid share capital Group’s effective interest the Company directly the Company indirectly Principal activities
HRL/
PEE2 RI%E BRARBRRE ARERRER RELTERER HELAEESS TEER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
nME PEG E 3 E 3
ERRIARELNRERAT  PRC RMB20,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Sales and distrbution of cylinder gas
(Yunnan Jiehua Civigas Clean Energy Bl AR&20,000,0007 HERDHERAR
Co, Ltd)
FRRREHRENRRAERAA PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Information transmission, software and
(Bejing Ye Lang Chu Fang Network 6] AR#6,000,0007 IT senices
Technology Co, Ltd.) [EEE BHRTER
EERREEEEARAA PRC RMBS8,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property investments and operation and
(Chongaing Jingtong Xive Industrial Rl ARE58,000,00070 other related business
(o, Ltd) NEREREENRERAREE
LEARREERAT PRC RMB26,530,600 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Sales and distribution of cylinder gas
(Shandong Zhongmin Gas Co,, Ltd) ARE26,530, 6007 HERDHEEMR
ERARERREERARAT  PRC RMB13,360,000 0% 70% - - 0% 70%  Sales of industrial gases
{Kunming Shengjian Hengtong Gas 1 AEE13,360,0007 BETZRE
Products Co,, Ltd.)
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC. f R EFEMRZINEBEE RS-
it Sino-foreign joint equity enterprise registered in the PRC. o RHREEMRINEERE
#h Xupu Civigas is a 51% subsidiary of Hunan Civigas. As a result, eORAPRANERRSI%FRZHE A
the total effective interest held by the Group in Xupu Civigas is Al At AEBERBRTREE ZEER
28.05%. % £528.05% ©
R English translated names are for identification only. B R R AR

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the Year and at the end of both years.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY A BB AR Em 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE FEEREMB LA
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEBERNEERER 2 NEB3E
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling 2EHEBMEB QRS :
interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and Profit (loss)
and principal voting rights held by attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AR ISR FERBRREZHER
WEAREH IEERBY BRRRRELH FRREREGEN (KR i FERER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024% W03% 2024% W023% 20245 2023%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AER®TR NS N ARETT

Hunan Civigas PRC 45% 45% 9,084 1421 22,553 21,320
HEeR i

Xi‘an Civigas PRC 49% 49% 18,621 13,771 113,973 102,702
fiyGil B

Xupu Civigas PRC 71.95% 71.95% 5,976 5,367 18,631 19,850
AR #

Yunnan Jighua PRC 49% 49% 8,067 (2,001) 14,305 11,970
EmE( i

2%

Fuping Civigas PRC 40% 40% (2.781) (28,149 (2562) 79
ETHE i =
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non- controlling interests 4,492 8,074 60,484 62,441

RRFEREL  BUFEANBLR

43,459 4490 227,384 218,502

PRERBRAT 219
2024 F R (B ZE2024F12A31B L FE)



-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 & 0 o

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

(i) Hunan Civigas

ASEEE RFIERER
I EEBERBRRIFE

(%)

BEEARFERERZ S AEENE R A
ZHBERBEHINNT - TS B ER M
EREESEARRREKFEN -

(i) HEPR
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Current assets mEN & E 27,726 29,682
Non-current assets EREBEE 52,792 50,951
Current liabilities mEna & (30,139) (33,248)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (262) (7)
Equity attributable to owners RNRARHEA ANEEER

of the Company 27,564 26,058
Non-controlling interests VR IR == 22,553 21,320
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48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(@

Hunan Civigas (Continued)

(%)

(i) #HREPE(E)

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T T
Revenue YA 121,980 119,713
Expenses 53 (101,794) (103,208)
Profit for the year R E JE i F 20,186 16,505
Total comprehensive income for the year ZN%F [& 2 [ e 4258 22,739 16,312
Profit attributable to owners of the RNRRHER AEAE 2% A
Company 11,102 9,078
Profit attributable to the non-controlling  JE 4% i% 1 25 15 2 3% F
interests 9,084 7,427
Profit for the year ANEE A 20,186 16,505
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A 4 25 2 A & 9,000 4,500 R
3 =
g
Net cash generated from operating SRS EE 2 S FE £
activities 23,269 11,493
Net cash (used in) generated from REEFY (FTAEEZREFHE
investing activities (1,752) 7,598
Net cash used in financing activities BEE BT 2R E T8 (27,350) (10,000)
Net cash (outflow) inflow RBe ORE) RAFEE (5.833) 9,091

PRERERAT 71

2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE)
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31 December 2024 2024F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (%)

| NTE RESTS (Continued)

AS EHB B RIEER

Bz

(i) Xi'an Civigas (ii) ARHFE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEF T

Current assets mENEE 196,364 162,741
Non-current assets ERBEE 234,721 233,099
Current liabilities mEaE (190,991) (177,879)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (7,495) (8,365)
Equity attributable to owners of the KRARIER AE(EERE

Company 118,626 106,894
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 4 2 113,973 102,702
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

ASEBEREERERZ

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (%)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(i)

Xi'an Civigas (Continued)

(i) ARPE(E)

HEERBWNB LTS

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTTT
Revenue YA 282,401 274,146
Expenses 53 (244,398) (246,042)
Profit for the year R E JE i F 38,003 28,104
Profit and total comprehensive income — ARAG#EA AR 2 %5 &
attributable to owners of the Company 2 #5485 19,382 14,333
Profit and total comprehensive income — FE4% A% 42 25 FE 1l 2 % 7 &%
attributable to the non-controlling 2HEWRERE
interests 18,621 13,771
Profit and total comprehensive income 7N 4F [ 3% Fl| & & T W 25 44 3R
for the year 38,003 28,104
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A% 4 25 2 A% & 7,350 4,900
v
28
.g 8
Net cash generated from operating SRS EE 2 S FE =
activities 43,389 59,006 -
Net cash used in investing activities BEESHMAZ
B FHE (17,584) (4,440)
Net cash used in financing activities BEE BT 2R E T8 (10,200) (10,000)
Net cash inflow BEeRAFE 15,605 44,566

BRERERAT 73
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FEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY ASEEE RIEEERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE T EREWE LA TIFE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (&)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iii) Xupu Civigas (iii) BBEHFE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Current assets mENE E 17,685 17,102
Non-current assets FEMEBNEE 13,100 13,430
Current liabilities mEna & (4,891) (2,944)
Equity attributable to owners of the RAEER AEILER

Company 7,263 7,738
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 18,631 19,850
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iii) Xupu Civigas (Continued)

ASEBEREERERZ

HEERBWNB LTS

(%)

(iii) BBEFRE (F)

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTTT
Revenue YA 43,461 45,454
Expenses v (35,155) (37,995)
Profit for the year R E JE i F 8,306 7,459
Profit and total comprehensive income for ZN4F & 5a ) &2 2 T M e 42 58
the year 8,306 7,459
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ ARAGEHE ABEZEF RE2HE
attributable to owners of the Company W5 48 %8 2,330 2,092
Profit and total comprehensive income — FE4EREAERS B 28 F R 2 H
attributable to the non-controlling I % 4R RE
interests 5,976 5,367
Profit and total comprehensive income 7N 4F [ 3% Fl| & 2 T W 25 44 3R
for the year 8,306 7,459 b
S R
g
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A& 4 25 2 A & 7,195 3,597 =
Net cash generated from operating activities 4% & 375 & £ 2 I & /F 5 12,053 8,759
Net cash used in investing activities REEHAAZREFHE (65) (8)
Net cash used in financing activities BEE BT 2R E T8 (10,000) (5,000)
Net cash inflow BERAFE 1,988 3,751

BRERERAT 25

2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE)
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7 & B 35 8 RO 5

31 December 2024 2024F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

ASEBEREERERZ

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

| NTE RESTS (Continued)

(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries

FEEEBNB LTS

(%)

(iv) EFEBRAENELQF

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests
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MEEE

FRBEE

mEAR

FRBAE

ARAEE ANEEERD

FEER R

25,080 21,066
6,702 11,456
(9,472) (17,653)
(1,188) (671)
6,817 2,228
14,305 11,970
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REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY ASTEE B RIEERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2 EHEAMB A RS
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (&)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (Continued) (iv) EEMBEEEHBAR (8)
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue A 84,586 98,529
Expenses b3 (69,323) (101,065)
Profit (loss) for the year AEZmH (EE) 15,263 (2,536)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive KRAEER NG 2 aF (EE)
income (expense) attributable to Eemizs (S H) 458
owners of the Company 7,196 (535)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive IR E S G 2 m F (E518)
income (expense) attributable to the Eemilies (S H) 458
non-controlling interests 8,067 (2,001)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive AEE A (EE) R

income (expense) for the year 2EME (AX) 2% 15,263 (2,536)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 15 ¥ JE#2 B 25 2 % 8, 2,150 3,160 | %
E K
Net cash generated from operating MEHEBEE RS FHE =
activities 9,753 10,020
Net cash generated from (used in) REEBESE (FTA)Z
investing activities 8 & FEE 5,077 (3,286)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTA 2B e F 5 (10,059) (6,437)
Net cash inflow WEMAFEE 4,771 297

RRERERAA 77
2024 F R (HE20245F12A31 B IEFE)
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FEMBERRME

31 December 2024 2024F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY ASEEE RIEEERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE T EREWE LA TIFE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (&)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(v) Fuping Civigas (v) BEFHE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Current assets mEEE 24,089 15,019
Non-current assets ERBEE 40,134 37,568
Current liabilities mEAaE (70,629) (52,041)

Equity attributable to owners of the RAGHER ANELER
Company (3.844) 327

Non-controlling interests SRR = (2,562) 219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H

48.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY ASTEE B RIEERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE = EBREWE L AIFE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING (&)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(v) Fuping Civigas (Continued) (v) EFHRE(E)
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Revenue PN 78,966 60,301
Expenses B (85,918) (130,672)
Loss for the year KEEEE (6,952) (70,371)

Loss and total comprehensive expense  ANAREE AELZERB R

attributable to owners of the Company 2 m 7 42 %8 (4,171) (42,223)
Loss and total comprehensive expense JEE RS E (L 2 EE
attributable to the non-controlling 2EY H4a%E
interests (2,781) (28,148)
Loss and total comprehensive RNEEEER
expense for the year 2HEMAYAE (6,952) (70,371)
Net cash generated from (used in) rmeEExBES (FTA)Z
operating activities IH 4 F%E 14,811 (12,233)
Net cash used in investing activities B EBRRAZH S %58 (8,864) (517) § .
.uE_
Net cash (used in) generated from BMEES (TR ELAZIRES R
financing activities (1,388) 7,108
Net cash inflow (outflow) BWERA Rl FE 4,559 (5,642)

49 EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 49 SREHIBRE1E

=
The Group has no significant events after reporting period. RIpERE AEBWESEANEE-

RREZERARAT 209
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBEER

For the nine
months
For the year ended
ended 31 December 31 December
HZ12A318 HZ128318
tEE 19 A
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20235 20226 20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RESULTS ES -
Revenue LN 2,634,675 2,513,521 2,867,697 2,731,601 1,747,553
Profit (loss) before tax bR A A (B518) 69,842 (202,312) 74,762 184,510 168,758
Income tax (expense) credit FrisH (AX)HE (11,066) (24,947) (12,545) 2,543 (24,057)
Profit (loss) for the year/period A /HRIET (B1E) 58,776 (227,259) 62,217 187,053 144,701
Profit (loss) for the year/period T HIREIEEE /B
attributable to: Al (B9 ) -
Owners of the Company KARIERA 15,317 (231,749) 35,655 167,781 107,906
Non-controlling interests I 43,459 4,490 26,562 19,272 36,795
58,776 (227,259) 62,217 187,053 144,701
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total assets BERE 3,368,353 3,353,205 3,602,834 3,579,584 3,536,600
Total liabilities AEBE (622,724) (634,554) (620,410) (642,464) (710,314)
Net assets BEFHE 2,745,629 2,718,651 2,982,424 2,937,120 2,826,286
Equity attributable to owners ADAEE ARG ER
of the Company 2,518,245 2,500,149 2,749,051 2,702,081 2,590,199
Non-controlling interests IR 227,384 218,502 233,373 235,039 236,087
Total equity B 2,745,629 2,718,651 2,982,424 2,937,120 2,826,286
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Principal Activities
EFEXRH

Piped Gas Transmission and Distribution Business

EEMRRBERE

e Construction and operation of city gas pipeline network
HEREEHMMREBRLE

* Provision of piped gas
REEEMRE

Cylinder Gas Supply Business
R MR HERE

e Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)
BILRAR

e Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)
WAL BBR

e Liquefied Dimethyl Ether (DME)
— A

Gas Distribution Business

MRDHER

* Purchases a large amount of gas resources from upstream
suppliers and then distributes to other gas operating companies

REHEHEBAERBRIRER  2HEGHMUNMRREELE

Food Ingredients Supply and FMCG Business
BEMERRESER

* Service to commercial consumers by supplying fruits and
vegetables, fresh produce, seasoning, dry foods and oil and
other ingredients

MEXAFRERE £8  FAR;m - BASEMRE
* The community supermarket and convenience stores

A & B h M E A 5
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